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F: 918.586.5865
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Tulsa County Budget Board and Citizens of Tulsa County May 20, 2009

The letter of transmittal contains the following four sections: Formal Transmittal of the Comprehensive
Annuai Financial Report, Profile of Tulsa County, Oklahoma, Information Useful in Assessing Tulsa
County’s Economic Condition, and Awards and Acknowledgements.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of Tulsa County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 is
comprised of three main sections:

» The Introductory Section
+ The Financial Section
» The Statistical Section

The accuracy, completeness, and fairness of the information presented in each of these three sections are
the responsibility of Tulsa County. The material is reported in compliance with the Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) and is accurate in all material aspects to the best of our knowledge.

Management Discussion and Analysis

Please review the Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) located in the Financial Section of this
report, in conjunction with the transmittal tetter and the basic financial statements including the notes. The
purpose of the MD&A is to present the financial highlights and to demonstrate whether or not the finan-
cial condition of Tulsa County improved or deteriorated during the past year.

Profile of Tulsa Coun ki i

Tulsa County, as well as its political offices, was established under Article 17 of the Oklahoma Constitu-
tion, which was ratified on July 16, 1907, The county is located in the northeast portion of Oklahoma.
The City of Tulsa serves as the county seat. In 2008, the population of Tulsa County is estimated to

be 577,727, with a total area covering about 587 square miles. The Board of County Commissioners
{BOCC), a three-member board, governs the county.

The BOCC meets once weekly on the first floor of the Court House Administration Building and is
responsible for the general governmental and administrative affairs of the county. The county is divided
into three highway districts, and one commissioner is elected to represent each district. All other county
officials are elected on a county-wide basis. The other elected officials are the County Treasurer, the
County Clerk, the County Sheriff, the County Assessor, and the County Court Clerk.



According to State Statutes, the County Assessor is responsible for the valuation of all real and personal
property located within the county for taxation purposes. The Oklahoma Tax Commission determines the
values of public service properties. lLocal control over the valuation of real and personal property by the
County Assessor provides a tremendous advantage for local citizens. Provisions have been made in the
law, which allow the citizens to discuss assessments or changes in assessments of their property with local
officials in person. At no other level do citizens have as much say about their legal obligation to pay tax
as they do at the county level.

The resulting taxes are collected by the County Treasurer, who also acts as a collecting agent for much of
the revenue for schools and cities focated within the county. The Treasurer also maintains all county funds
as well as manages the funds belonging to the Tulsa County Employees’ Retirement System.

The County Clerk acts as registrar of deeds and is the official record keeper for the County, recording all
appropriations and expenditures for each county office or department. The Clerk prepares the Compre-
hensive Annual Financial Report. In addition, the Clerk processes the payroll and accounts payable for ail
County offices and departments.

The County Sheriff provides law enforcement protection to rural areas of Tulsa County, as well as assist-
ing local police forces when needed. The County Sheriff is responsible for operating the David L. Moss
Correctional Center (jail). The Sheriff’s Office also provides courthouse and courtroom security including
court guards while court is in session and inmate transport to and from district courts. The County Sher-
iff is also responsible for serving the civil process and the execution of writs which includes processing
foreclosures and serving protective orders.

The County Court Clerk acts as the custodian of all files and records of the District Court of the State of
Oklahoma. The Court Clerk maintains the law library. Many licenses, including marriage licenses and
passports, arc issued from the Cowt Clerk’s Office.

In addition to their management responsibilities, the County Commissioners maintain rural roads and
bridges within the County. They also operate an emergency management agency (civil defense),

In 1981, a County Budget Board was created with the adoption of the “County Budget Act.” The Budget
Board was created to establish uniform and sound budgeting practices and control procedures. The Bud-
get Board is comprised of all eight elected county officials. The Budget Board meets monthly on the first
floor of the Court House Administration Building. A more detailed explanation of the budget process and
the funds affected is included in the notes to the financial statements.

The Tulsa County elected officials believe in the concept that the more local the level of government, the
more responsive it is to the needs of its citizens, County government was designed to provide certain ser-
vices to all citizens of the county whether they live in an incorporated city or a rural arca, These services
include maintenance of rural roads and bridges, law enforcement protection, and the provision of rural
water and fire protection services in cooperation with local public authorities and municipalities. The fol-
lowing services are provided through an array of legally separate entitics:

111



Entity

Service

How presented

Tulsa County Employees” Retirement System

Retirement benefits

Blended Fiduciary Fund

Drainage District #12

Public safety

Nonmajor Governmenial Fund

City/County Health Department

Health care

Discretely Presented C.U.

Tulsa County Public Facilities Authority

Fair and trade shows

Blended C.U.-Major Fund

Tulsa Countly Home Finance Authority

Provide housing opportunitics

Discretely Presented C.U.,

Tulsa County Industrial Authority

Economic development

Blended C.U.-Major Fund

Tulsa County Criminal Justice Authority

Law enforcement

Discretely Presented C.U.

Internal Conirel and Independent Audit

Tulsa County utilizes the Oklahoma Statutes as the basis for its internal control procedures. The basic
framework provided by these laws is enhanced by additional procedures that are codified in the county’s
policies and procedures manual. A strong internal control system is necessary to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance that the county’s assets are protected from theft, loss, or misuse. All federal funds
are also protected by the internal control system. To ensure that the internal control procedures are imple-
mented uniformly, the county establishes periodic meetings for all division bookkeepers. The expected
benefits from any internal control system shouid exceed the costs of its implementation.

In accordance with Title 19, section 171 of the Oklahoma Statutes, the State Auditor and Inspector con-
ducts an annual audit of all books and records of Tulsa County. The audit is required to be performed

in accordance with Generally Accepted Auditing Standards, which are established by the Governmental
Auditing Standards Board and Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. The auditors also perform a single audit according to the provisions of the “Single Audit
Act Amendments of 1996,” and the U.S. Office of Management and Budget {OMB) revision of Circular
A-133, retitled ™ Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations.” The findings and
recommendations as a result of the audit, according to OMB Circular A-133, are reported under separate
cover. In addition to the annual audit of Tulsa County, the State Auditor’s Office also performs a thor-
ough review of the County Treasurer’s books and records. This review is unannounced and includes any
tests and procedures that the auditors consider necessary in the present circumstances. The resulting report
is issued and dated when the examination is complete.

Budgetary Control

Tulsa County prepares an annual budget for the General Fund, the Debt Service Fund, the Visual Inspection
Fund, the County Highway Fund, the Park Fund, and the Juvenile Detention Fund. The General Fund and
the County Highway Fund are reported as Required Supplementary Information; the other budgets versus
actual comparisons are presented as Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-
Budget and Actual in the Supplemental Combining and Individual Fund Financial statements and Sched-
ules. All other Governmental Funds, Proprietary Funds, and Fiduciary Funds are not subject to budgeting
requirements. These budgets are generally prepared on a cash basis for revenues, and on an accrual basis for
expenditures. The primary level of budgetary control is maintained by the Budget Board.

The Budget Board must approve transfers between primary categories at the object level (salaries, operat-
ing expenses, other charges, capital outlay, and debt service). Transfers between accounts within these
categories may be approved on a departmental level. The county also utilizes an encumbrance system

to enhance its system of budgetary control. Budgets are published in the local newspaper and copies are
available (o the general public at the Tulsa County Courthouse during normal business hours,



Long-term Financial Planning

The Fiscal Officer prepares a five-year capital budget to assist in the long range financial planning for
Tulsa County. The five-year capital budget is a focused plan to identify the County’s infrastructure and
capital needs and the funding to meet those needs. The capital budget is updated to reflect changing pri-
orities and revised cost estimates.

Financial Policies

Tulsa County’s financial policies are established to comply with the statements and pronouncements

issued by Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The financial statements are presented in
conformity with accounting principles gencrally accepted in the United States of America as applied to
government units. No new financial policies were implemented by Tulsa County in this past fiscal year.

Debt Administration

Tulsa County is prohibited by law to incur any indebtedness that cannot be paid within the fiscal year
without a vote of the people. Such indebtedness may not exceed 5% of the total assessed valuation of real
property within the county. The county had only one bond issue outstanding, the Library Bonds of 2001;
the last of four principal payments of $1,575,000 was due and was paid on June 1, 2006. The county lev-
ics ad valorem taxes each year in an amount equal to the minimum legal requirements for servicing the
claims and judgments against the county over a three-year period.

Cash Management

The county’s cash management program involves such factors as legal authorizations, liquidity require-
ments, and interest rate trends. The county is required (o invest all available monies in interest bearing ac-
counts/vehicles that are authorized under State Statutes. These accounts are to be fully protected through
FDIC insurance and/or pledged collateral from the participating institution. The county uses a “pooled
resources” concept, pooling together all the separate funds, for purchasing investments to take advantage
of the higher interest rates available when investing larger amounts of money. Interest is periodically ap-
portioned to the appropriate investing fund. Pension funds are not pooled with county funds for invest-
ment purposes.

Risk Management

The county currently insures its employees through an HMO network. Both the county and its employees
contribute to the cost of the coverage. The county maintains a Workers Compensation Fund (non-major
Special Revenue Fund) through an independent third party insurer. Contributions to this fund are made
primarily from other departments within the County’s General Fund and from the Highway Fund. Work-
ers’ compensation cases are processed through the County’s personnel department.

Oklahoma law requires the employees of the County Treasurer’s Office be covered by a liability bond
in the amount of $50,000 each, with the Treasurer carrying a rider policy of $250,000. Except for the
County Clerk who is covered by a liability bond in the amount of $50,000, all other County employees
are bonded at $2,500 each. The Oklahoma Tort Claims Act Hmits the County’s liability for tort claims to
$1,000,000. During the year, no claims have been filed against these bonds.
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Informat

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when the specific envi-
ropment within which Tulsa County operates 1s considered,

Condition and Outloock

Tulsa County is located in the center of the United States. The County has excellent access to other cities
by water, air, or [and. The Tulsa Port of Catoosa conncets Tulsa to the Guif of Mexico by the 445 mile
MecClellan-Kerr Arkansas River Navigation Systent. Tulsa International Airport is serviced by most of the
major airlines. Tulsa is also served equally well by railroad, motor freight and bus. The Tulsa area has an
excellent quality of life with an abundance of affordable housing and apartments. This area also has many
colleges, hospitals, parks, and other recreation areas. Tulsa’s cost of living is approximately eight percent
below the national average.

In 2008, Tulsa County’s economy experienced signs of the economic downturn that affected the entire
country but not locally as severe as the country as a whole experienced. The metropolitan statistical area
as of June 30, 2008 had 440,380 non-farm employment in the labor force, 422 040 were employed, and
18,340 were unemployed according to the Oklahoma Employment Security Conumission, indicating a

4 2% unemployment rate, which is lower than the national average. Overall total employment for the
Tulsa County area in 2008 was forecast to be 437,220 up from 430,930 in 2007 according to the Center
for Applied Economic Research, Oklahoma State University, Professional & Business Services were ¢x-
pected to gain 1,430 jobs, Education & Health Services were forecast to gain 1,440 jobs, and state, local,
and federal government were expected to gain 1,000 jobs. Construction was expected to lose 250 jobs,
manufacturing was forecast to lose 90 jobs, and other services were expected to lose 740 jobs.

The Tulsa MSA comprises seven counties: Creek, Okmulgee, Osage, Pawnee, Rogers, Tulsa, and Wag-
oner, whose aggregate population in 2008 is estimated to be 922,049 is expected ta grow by 1.1% during
the year, versus an expected growth rate for the state of Oklahoma of 0.9%. The gross product or value of
all goods and services produced in the seven-county MSA in 2008 is $37.2 billion (constant dollars), or
29.0% of the Oklahoma economy. Also, according to the Tulsa Chamber of Commerce economic profile,
the real per capita income for Tulsa County was $39,423, up from $38,677 the previous year, New resi-
dential building permits for Tulsa MSA are projected to increase by 62 permits in 2008, or a total of 4,880
building permits.

Forbes Magazine in 2007 ranked Tulsa as the sixth best city for jobs among the 100 largest metropolitan
areas in the country. The ranking takes into account median household income, unemployment, income
growth, cost of living, and job growth,

Property values continue to increase in the Tulsa market leading to increased ad valorem tax assessments.,
During fiscal year 2008, the levy on property taxes increased by over $3.0 million or a 5.6% increase.
Collections of ad valorem taxes levied during fiscal year 2008 increased by nearly $1.4 million or 2.6%.
Much of the fees collected from real estate activity are related to increases in the valuation of residential
and commercial properties.

Tulsa, formerly known as the Oil Capital of the World, is still considered a major player in the oil in-
dustry. According to a recent survey, Tulsa ranked third in the U.S. in number of oil-related jobs, behind
number one Houston and number two Dallas. More than 10,000 jobs are stilt related to the oil industey in
Tulsa. Tulsa is also the cighth largest employer in the acrospace industry and seventeenth largest employ-
er in technology.
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The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excelience in Financial Reporting to Tulsa County for its Comprehensive
Amnual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. The Certificate of Achievement is a pres-
tigious national award, recognizing conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state and
local government financial reports.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a governmental unit must publish an easily read-
able and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report whose contents conform to program
standards. Such comprehensive annual financial reporting must satisfy both generally accepted accounting
principals and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is only valid for a one-year period. Tulsa County has received a Certificate
of Achievement for the past 11 (eleven) consecutive years. We believe that our current Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program requirements.

I would like to extend my appreciation to the employees of the Tulsa County Clerk’s Office and the
County Treasurer’s Office for their support in preparing this report. I would like to offer a special thanks
to Jim Smith, Fiscal Officer, and Steve Blue, Deputy Treasurer, for their cooperation and assistance. In ad-
dition, I would like to thank Ray Jordan, County Engineer, and the Engineering Department and Richard
Bales, Director of Parks, and the Parks Department for their help in monitoring and evaluating Tulsa
County’s infrastructure, Last, but certainly not least, I would like to thank Jennelle Enevoldsen, Tulsa
District Office Manager, and the auditors in the Oklahoma State Auditor and Inspector’s Tulsa office for
their assistance in auditing this report.

Respectfully Submitted,

@Q@Ma UA Lo QYo Ramdes

~joel L. Sander, CPA, CPFO
Finance Officer
Tulsa County Clerk’s Office

arlene Wilson, Tulsa County Clerk
Secretary, Tulsa County Budget Board

VIl
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STEVE BURRAGE, CPA
State Auditor

STATE AUDITOR AND INSPECTOR  sucurire ronsvse

Chiel Deputy

230N Liccoln Bowlevard  State Capitol. Room 100 Oklahoma City. OK 73105-4801 Phone (4053 521-3493 Fax (405) 5213426 www.sai.ok gov

Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE OFFICERS OF
TULSA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Tulsa County, Oklahoma, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008,
which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
These financial statements are the responsibility of Tulsa County’s management. Our responsibility is to
express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit:

e The financial statements of the Tulsa County Industrial Authority, which represent approximately
57 percent and 35 percent, respectively, of the assets and revenues of the governmental activities;
100 percent of the assets and revenues of the Industrial Authority Capital Projects governmental
fund and the Industrial Authority Debt Service governmental fund,

s The financial statements of the Tulsa County Public Facilities Authority, which represent 100
percent of the business-type activities as well as 100 percent of the proprietary fund statements;

* The financial statements of the Tuisa County Criminal Justice Authority, the Tulsa County Home
Finance Authority, and the Tulsa City/County Health Board, which represent 100 percent of the
discretely presented component units;

e  The financial statements of the Tulsa County Employees’ Retirement System, which represent 72
percent of the assets in the fiduciary funds and 100 percent of the total additions reported in the
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets.

Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to
us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Tulsa County Industrial
Authority, Tulsa County Public Facilities Authority, Tulsa County Criminal Justice Authority, Tulsa
County Home Finance Authority, Tulsa City/County Health Board, and the Tulsa County Emplovees'
Retirement Systern, is based on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An aundit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of the other auditors provide a reasonable basis for
our opinions.



In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund mformation of Tulsa County, Oklahoma, as of June 30, 2008, and the
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 20, 2009,
on our consideration of Tulsa County’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal conirol over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our
audit. That report is issued under separate cover with the Tulsa County Single Audit Reports.

The Management's Discussion and Analysis, Schedule of Funding Progress — Pension Trust Fund,
Schedule of Employer Contributions — Pension Trust Fund, Schedule of Funding Progress — Other Post
Employment Benefits, Schedule of Employer Contributions — Other Post Employment Benefits, and
Budgetary Comparison Schedules are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are
supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We and the other
auditors have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information.
However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise Tulsa County’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual
fund financial statements and schedules, supplemental schedules, and statistical section information are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules have been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied by us and the other auditors in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors are fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section, supplemental
schedules, and the statistical section information have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

STEVE BURRAGE, CPA

STATE AUDITOR & INSPECTOR

May 20, 2009
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

This section of Tulsa County’s annual financial report presents our discussion and analysis of the
County’s financial performance during the fiscal years ended on June 30, 2008 and 2007. Please
read the Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) in conjunction with the transmittal letter
that is located in the introductory section of this report and the County’s basic financial statements,
which follow this section.

Financial Highlights

The total net assets at the end of fiscal year 2008 and 2007 for governmental activities were
$(92.0) million and $(2.8) million, respectively. No Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds were
used during fiscal year 2008, Over $129.8 and $23.5 million was spent during fiscal year 2008
on Vision 2025 and “4 fo Fix the County” capital improvements, respectively.

The total net assets for business-type activities were $91.3 million and $74.2 million, at the
fiscal vear ending June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Net assets increased during fiscal year
2008 because of the $20.3 million contribution of capital assets and the $6.6 million transfer
from Governmental Activitics.

The total net assets for component units were $80.1 million and $81.0 million, at the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively. The component unit’s Change in Net Assets
overall decreased by $.9 million, as the Criminal Justice Authority had a $1.0 million decrease
in nef assets, the City County Health Department had a $.4 million increase in net assets, and
the Home Finance Authority has a $.3 million decrease in net assets.

Ad valorem taxes were levied at a slightly higher level during fiscal years 2007 — 2008 and
sales tax collections were moderately higher during fiscal year 2008 because of improved local
economic activity.

After the voters of Tulsa County passed a capital improvement initiative titled “4 to Fix the
County”, the Tulsa County Industrial Authority issued during fiscal year 2001, $59 million of
revenue bonds. The proceeds were used for flood mitigation, road expansion, park, and Expo
Square capital improvements. The Authority began receiving the sales tax in November 2001
and made the fifth and final debt service payment of $12.9 million during fiscal year 2007,

The amount of the outstanding debt conduit debt obligations of the Tulsa County Industrial
Authority as of June 30, 2008 and 2007 was $413.4 million and $493.6 million, respectively.

Phase three of the Public Facilities Authority’s Master Plan began in 2004. This phase cost
approximately $40 million. Two livestock barns, the central plant and the expo building
improvements, including a new roof, were completed in May 2006. The exhibit hall was
completed in March 2008.



Planning for phase four of the Public Facilities Authority’s Master Plan began during 2006.
This phase will cost approximately $34.2 million and include an exchange center, armory
kitchen, improvements to the expo building, pavilion extension, and parking lot repavement.
These projects were completed by in October 2008. The Authority issued $15.3 million in
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds at the beginning of fiscal year 2008 to finance the cost
of phase four projects.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The financial section of this report consists of several different parts: management’s discussion and
analysis (this section), the independent auditor’s report, the basic financial statements, required
supplementary information, and combining and individual fund financial statements and
supporting schedules.

The independent auditor’s report on the basic financial statements as presented by
management.

The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide both long-term
and short-term information about the County’s overall financial status.

The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of
County government, reporting the County’s operations in more detail than the government-
wide statements.

The governmental funds statements explain how general government services like public safety
were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending.

Proprietary funds statements offer short and long-term financial information about the
activities the government operates like businesses, such as the Tulsa County Public Facilities
Authority.

Fiduciary funds statements provide information about the financial relationships- like the
retirement system for the County’s employees- in which the County acts solely as a trustee or
agent for the benefit of others, to whom the resources in question belong.

Notes to the financial statements explain some of the information in the financial statements
and provide more detailed data.

Required supplementary information further explains and supports the information in the
financial statements.

Combining and individual fund financial statements and supporting schedules provide
additional details about the nonmajor governmental funds and the capital assets used in
governmental operations.



Government-wide Statements

The government-wide statements report information about Tulsa County as a whole using
accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector companics. The accrual basis of
accounting and the economic resource measurement focus is used. Under this basis of accounting
and measurement focus all assets and liabilities, both financial and capital, and short and long
term, are reported. All revenues and expenses are reported during the year, regardless of when cash
is received or paid. The statement of net assets includes all of the government’s assets and
liabilities. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement of
activities.

The two government-wide statements report the County’s net assets and how they have changed.
Net assets, the difference between the County’s assets and liabilitics, are one way to measure the
County’s {inancial health, or financial position,

* Over time, increases or decreases in the County’s net assets are an indicator of whether its®
financial health is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

* To assess the overall health of the County one needs to consider additional nonfinancial factors
such as changes in the County’s property tax base and the condition of the County’s roads and
highways.

The government-wide statements of the County are divided into three categories:

*  Governmental activities — Most of the County’s basic services are included here, such as public
safety, culture and recreation, roads and highways, and general government Sales and ad
valorem taxes, charge for services, and state and federal grants finance most of these activities.
Tulsa County Industrial Authority is also included here.

*  Business-type activities — The County charges fees to customers to help it cover the costs of
certain services it provides. The Tulsa County Public Facilities Authority is reported as a
business-type activity,

*  Discretely Presented Component Units — The County includes three other entities in ils report:
the Tulsa County Criminal Justice Authority, the Tulsa City/County Health Department, and
the Tulsa County Home Finance Authority. Although legally separate, these “component units”
are important because it would be misleading or incomplete to exclude them from the County’s
financial report.

Fund Financial Statements
The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about Tulsa County’s most

significant funds, not the County as a whole. Funds are grouping of related accounts that the
County uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending for particular purposes.



*  Some funds are restricted by State statutes and by bond covenants.

* The Budget Board establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes
(like the Sales Tax Fund) or to show that it is properly using certain revenue source (like the
County Highway Fund).

The County has three kinds of funds:

»  Governmental funds - Most of the County’s basic services are included in governmental funds,
which focus on (1) how cash and other current financial resources can be readily converted to
cash and used to pay obligations and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for
spending. Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting and the current
financial resource measurement focus. Under this basis of accounting and measurement focus,
revenues are recognized when cash is received during or soon after the end of the year;
expenditures are recognized when goods or services have been received and payment is due
during the year or soon thereafter. Consequently, the governmental funds statements provide a
short-term view that helps you determine whether there are more or less financial resources
that can be spent in the near future to finance the County’s programs. Because this information
does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the government-wide statements, we
provide additional information at the bottom of the government-wide statement, or on the
subsequent page, that explains the relationship (or differences) between them.

» Proprietary funds -~ Services for which the County charges customers a fee are generally
reported in proprictary funds. Proprietary funds use the same basis of accounting and the same
measurement focus as the government-wide statements. Proprietary funds provide both long
and short-term financial information.

In fact, the County‘s Enterprise fund (one type of proprietary fund) is the same as its
business-type activities, but provides more detail and additional information, such as cash
flow,

* Fiduciary funds - The County is the trustee, or fiduciary, for its employees’ pension plan, It 1s
also responsible for other assets that can only be used by the trust beneficiaries. The County is
responsible for distributing the assets reported in these funds to the intended beneficiary.
Fiduciary funds use the same basis of accounting and the same measurement focus as the
government-wide statements. All of the County’s fiduciary activities are reported in a separate
statement of fiduciary net assets and a statement of changes in fiduciary net assets. We exclude
these activities from the County’s government-wide financial statements because the County
cannot use these assets to finance its operations.



Notes to the financial statements

The notes, which are an integral part of the financial statements, provide additional information
that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and individual
fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements follow the basic financial
statements,

Other information

In addition to the basic financial statements and the accompanying notes, this report also presents
certain required supplementary information (RSI) concerning the County’s progress in funding its
obligation to provide pension bencfits to its employees and comparing actual with budgeted
amounts for the General Fund. RS information follows the notes to the financial statements. The
combining statements, which include nonmajor funds, for governmental funds and discretely
presented component units, are presented immediately following the RSIL

Financial Analysis of the County as a Whole

Our discussion and analysis of Tulsa County’s financial performance provides an overview of the
financial activities for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007.

Statement of Net Assets

Net assets are an important indicator of an organization’s ability to improve or maintain their
financial position. Tulsa County’s total assets as of June 30, 2008 amounted to $549.6 million,
$88.3 million less than the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 mainly because the decrease in the
Governmental Activities restricted cash was slightly offset by the increases in the restricted cash
and cash equivalents and capital assets of Business-type Activitics. More specifically, the only
current asset account with a significant change from the prior year was restricted cash and cash
equivalents because the sales tax transfers of $72.5 million was more than offset by the $153.3
miilion spent for Vision 2025 and 4 to Fix capital initiatives and $43.6 spent on reducing the
principal portion of outstanding debt. The amount of interest receivable for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2008 was $.9 million lower as a result of lower interest rates on a declining amount of
restricted cash and cash equivalents. The amount of sales tax receivable for the year ended June 30,
2008 was $1.5 million higher as a result of increased sales tax collections. Of the percentage of
total assets, capital assets represent 42.7% and 32.4% for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2008 and
2007, respectively. The percentage increases in capital assets over the past several years
corresponds with the heightened construction activity of the Vision 2025 and 4 to Fix 11 capital
projects. These capital initiatives are reflected in the capital asset totals for both the Governmental
Activities and Business-type Activities. With the adoption of GASB No. 34, Tulsa County’s
infrastructure has been reported in the financial statements for the past seven fiscal years. The cost
of infrastructure assets of roads and highways, bridges, and signal light installations totaled $89.2
in fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 and $81.7 million in fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. $85.3
million of the $89.2 million of infrastructure assets as of June 30, 2008 was spent for capital
improvements to the roads and highways; the remainder was spent for capital improvements to
parks.



Total liabilitics as of June 30, 2008 were $550.2 million or $15.8 million lower than the balance at
June 30, 2007, mainly duc to the $43.6 million debt service payments made during fiscal year
ended June 30, 2008 offset by the issuance of the Series 2007 revenue bonds of $15.3 million and
the $15.8 million increasc in accounts payable due to ncarly completion of the BOK Center
(Arena). The implementation of GASB #45 during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 increased
the liabilitics of Governmental Activities by $.6 million Net assets totaled (8653,689) for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2008, a reduction of $72.0 million from the previous year, mainly a result of
the restricted cash and cash equivalents utilized for capital projects and the increase in the negative
amount of the reported unrestricted net assets of the Industrial Authority. The net assets of the
Business-type Activities were slightly lower than the net assets of the Governmental Activitics as
of June 30, 2008.

The Tulsa County Indusirial Authority is reporting in their Statement of Net Assets a deficit
balance of $324.3 million as of June 30, 2008 in unrestricted net assets. The result of adding the
current and non-current portion of revenue bonds payable to the positive amount of reserved fund
balance on the Balance Sheet-Governmental Funds results in a negative balance in net assets
restricted for debt service on the Statement of Net Asscts, Based on a GASB inferpretation, the
standard provides that “no calegory of restricted net assets can be negative - that is, if liabilities that
relate to restricted assets exceed those assets, no balance should be reported; the negative amount
should be reported as a reduction of unrestricted net assets”. We believe that this guidance does not
consider the substance of the transactions that has affected and will affect the Authority’s
operations in the current and future fiscal years. The deficit will be absorbed in the “future” by
“future sales tax collections”. The unrestricted net assets of the Industrial Authority, and the
County, cannot absorb this deficit. In addition, we considered netting the deficit with the net assets
restricted for capital projects, but this would still not eliminate the deficit in total net assets.

Tulsa County’s Net Assets
(In thousands of dollars)

June 30, 2008 and 2007
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Current assets Y 282,515 401,492 % 4,834 6,394 § 287,349 407,886

Capital assels 120,340 118,247 114,573 88,148 234,913 206,395

Other non-current assets 5,541 6,708 21,748 16,407 27,289 23,115

Total assets 408,396 526,447 141,153 110,950 549,551 637,396

Current liabilities 92,421 73,401 6,222 4,088 98,642 78,090

Long-term liabilities 407,977 455,869 43,585 32,089 451,563 487,959

Total liabilities 500,398 529,271 49,807 36,778 550,205 566,048

Net assets

Invested in capital asset,

net of related debt 110,679 109,531 70,025 58,033 180,704 167,564

Restricted 78,503 347,794 18,045 12,319 90,548 360,112

Unrestricted (281,183) {400,148} 3,277 3,820 (277,9006) {456,328)

Totai el assets: $ (92,001) 2,824y % 91.347 74,172 § (654) 71,348




Statement of Activities

Tulsa County’s total revenues amounted to nearly $274.7 and $256.2 million during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Of that total for June 30, 2008, ad valorem and other
taxes make up nearly $53.0 million or 19.3%, charge for services approximately $35.7 million or
13.0%, and sales tax $96.1 million or 35.0%. Of that total for June 30, 2007, ad valorem and other
taxes make up nearly $49.6 million or 19.4%, charge for services approximately $30.1 million or
11.7%, and sales tax $90.9 million or 35.5%. The assessment of ad valorem taxes was slightly
higher for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008 as compared to the previous fiscal year because of a
slight increase in the valuation of local properties. Charge for services was 18.9% higher during the
most recent fiscal year because of the higher collections ($2.7 million) in the County Highway
Fund, while the charge for services at Expo Square increased slightly ($1.4 million) when
comparing the two most recent fiscal years. Sales tax collections were $5.2 million higher or 5.7%
higher for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. Sales tax collections were approximately $6.8
million or 7.8% higher during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. The increase in sales tax
collections over the past (wo fiscal years indicates that the local economy is slightly improving
because consumers are purchasing more goods and services or buying the goods and services at a
higher price.

The County’s total expenses amounted to $343.5 million and $310.7million during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Of the total expenses for the fiscal year ending June
30, 2008, general government makes up nearly $59.7 million or 17.4%, Vision 2025 expenses
(prior to sorting by function) makes up nearly $129.8 million or 37.8%, Public Facilities Authority
makes up $28.7 million or 8.3%, and public safety expenses including the expenses to operate the
jail totaled $57.7 million or 16.8%. Of the total expenses for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2007,
general government makes up nearly $45.5 million or 14.7%, Vision 2025 expenses (prior to
sorting by function) makes up nearly $131.3 million or 42.3%, Public Facilities Authority makes
up $24.4 million or 7.9%, and public safety expenses including the expenses to operate the jail
totaled $51.2 million or 16.5%. The increase in general government expenses ($14.1 million) and
the increase in 4 to Fix capital initiatives ($12.5 million) are the major reasons expenses increased
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. Net assets decreased entity-wide by $72.0 million and
$55.3 million for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2008 and 2007 respectively, largely because of
the capital asset expenses of the Industrial Authority offset by the contribution of capital assets to
the Public Facilities Authority.



Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charge for services  §
Operating grants
and contributions
Capital grants and
contributions
General revenues:
Sales tax
Ad valorem and
other taxes
Use lax
Interest
Payment from
Component Unit
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues $

Expenses:

General government
Public safety

Health and welfare
Culture and recreation

Education

Roads and highways
4 to Fix expenses
Vision 2025 expenses
Interest on long-ierm
debt

Public Facilities
Authority

Total Expenses
Increase (decrease) in net
assets before transfers
Special item
Transfers
Net assets, beginning

Net assets, ending

Tulsa County’s Statement of Activities
(In thousands of dollars)
June 30, 2008 and 2007

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
14,496 10,201 § 21,253 19,854 § 35,749 30,055
20,755 21,373 0 0 20,755 21,373
0 0 20,333 0 20,333 0
96,113 90,934 0 0 96,113 90,934
53,006 49,619 0 0 53,006 49.619
6,624 6,626 0 0 6,624 6,626
12,607 18,170 0 0 12,607 18,170
22,819 20,500 22,819 20,500
0,098 12,112 (2,367) 6,793 6,731 18,905
235,518 229,535 § 39,219 26,647 3 274737 256,182
Business-lype
Governmental Activities Aclivities Total

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

$ 59,085 45,540 % 0 o % 59,685 45,540

57,682 51,220 0 0 57,682 51,220

9,380 8.818 0 0 9,380 8,818

7,917 7,610 0 ¢ 7,917 7,610

439 432 0 0 439 432

9,630 11,900 0 0 9,630 11,900

23,477 10,9306 0 0 23477 10,936

129,807 131,287 it 0 129,807 131,287

16,849 18,450 G 0 16,849 18,450

0 0 28,668 24,463 28,668 24,463

314,866 286,193 28,668 24,463 343,534 310,656

(79,348) (56,0658) 10,551 2,184 (68,797) (54.474)

(3,205) 0 0 0 (3,205) 0

(6,624) (6,620) 6,624 6,626 0 0

(2,824) 60,460 74,172 65,362 74,348 125,822

h (92,001 (2,824) § 91347 74,172 § (654) 71,348




Revenues - Governmental Activities

Use tax Ad valorem taxes
3% 21%

Other taxes
1%

Interest & invesiment
earnings

Saies laxes 5%
41%

Payment from
component units
10%

Miscellaneous

4%
Operating Grants & Charge for Services
Contributions 6%
9%

Governmental Activities

Of the total revenues of $235.5 million and $229.5 million for governmental activities during the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively, ad valorem taxes make up 22.5% and
21.6% and sales taxes make up 40.8% and 39.6%, respectively. During fiscal year 2008, the levy
on property taxes was $56.1 million, a $3.0 million increase over the previous year. During fiscal
year 2007, the levy on property taxes was $53.1 million, a $1.3 million increase over the previous
year. Ad valorem tax collections during fiscal year 2008 increased by $3.8 million or 7.5%.Ad
valorem tax collections during fiscal year 2007 decreased by $.6 million or 1.2%. Property tax
collections during the most recent fiscal year were at 95% of the amount levied for the period.
Historical patterns indicate that between 1 1o 2 % of the levy amount outstanding will be collected
in the 5 or 6 years after the year tevied. The average percentage of the levy collected during the
years 2002-2007 was 98.67 percent of the taxes levied. Property values in Tulsa County have risen
slightly over the past three fiscal years as reflected by the higher tax levies. Sales tax collections
were nearly $5.1 million higher for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, resulting from a slightly
improving local economy. Payments from component units (Criminal Justice Authority) to the
Sheriff Jail Fund of $22.8 million represent sales tax collections forwarded during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2008 to the Sheriff to operate the jail. The Sheriff has been operating the jail since
July 1, 2005.



Of the total expenses of $314.9 million and $286.2 million for governmental activities during fiscal
year ended Junc 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively, general government makes up 19.09% and 15.9%,
followed by 41.2% and 45.9% for Vision 2025 expenses, respectively. Expenses for public safety
including the amount transferred to operate the jail were $57.7 million and $51.2 million during
fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively or 18.3% and 17.9% of total expenses in
Governmental Activities. Other Tulsa County’s expenses cover a range of services, including roads
and highways, public safety, health and welfare, culture and recreation, and social and cconomic
programs and they were fairly constant over the past two fiscal years.

Expenses - Governmental Activities

Vision 2025 expenses
41%

Roads and highways
3%
Education .
0%

Culture and recreation
3%

Health and welfare
3%

Interest on long-term
debt

Public safety 5%

18%

4 to Fix expenses
8%

General government
19%



Business-Type Activities

The Public Facilities Authority’s net assets increased $17.2 million and $8.8 million for the year
ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively, The Authority’s net assets as a percentage of total
assets were 64.7% at the end of June 30, 2008, and 66.9% at the end of June 30, 2007. Capital
assets net increased by $26.2 million but the long term portion of revenue bonds also increased by
$12.2 during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. Total assets increased $30.2 million and $8.3
million for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively, resulting primarily from
Phase IV construction, which the County is funding through the improvements with a five-year,
two-twelfths of a percent county sales tax and an increase in restricted cash. Phasc 111 consists of
the construction of a ceniral plant, Barn D, barn E, and central park hauling (building). Phase 1V
include an exchange center, armory kitchen, improvements to the expo building and parking [ot
repavement. The Phasc 111 and IV projects are expected to be completed by the fall of 2008. Net
assets were reduced by $2.4 million during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 due to the purchase
of a simulcast facility.

Total liabilities during the fiscal year 2008 increased by $13.0 million, resulting from $1.2 million
payments for the 2003 and 2005 revenue bonds, more than offset by the $15.3 million issuance of
the Series 2007 revenue bonds. Total liabilities during the fiscal year 2007 decreased by $.5
million, resulting from payments of the 2003 and 2005 revenue bonds, partially offset by an
increase in accounts payable. Total liabilities during the fiscal year 2006 increased by $4.6 million,
resulting from the refinancing of the Series 1999 revenue bonds with the Series 2005 revenue
bonds at a higher §7.7 million present value less the $2.5 principal payment.

Total revenues increased by $1.4 million or 7.0% during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008,
because of increased collections of $1.3 million in food and beverage. Total revenues increased
by $1.1 million or 5.6% during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2007, because fair revenues were
higher because of favorable weather for the duration of the fair. Also, several new horsc shows
were added due to the improvements made to the facilities. Total revenues increased by $1.4
million or 8.3% during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2006, as a result of a $1.4 increase in other
non-racing revenue. Live racing commissions increased by nearly $.3 million during the current
fiscal year.

Operating expenses increased by nearly $3.3 million during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008,
because of a $1.3 million increase in personnel costs, a $.6 million increase in food and beverage
expense, and a $.5 million increase in advertising, promotion, and entertainment expenses.
Operating expenses increased by $1.1 million during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007,
because of increased personnel expenses, including health insurance and overtime, higher utility
costs, and an overall increase in general operating expense because of the increased number of
events held during the year. Operating expenses increased by $1.3 million during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2006 because of the $.9 million increase in advertising, promotion, and
entertainment and the $.3 million increase in the cost of utilities.



Financial Analysis of the County’s Funds

Major Funds

As Tulsa County completed fiscal year 2008, its governmental funds reported a combined fund
balance of $235.1 million, or $135.3 lower than the previous year. The Tulsa County Industrial
Authority Special Revenue Fund’s fund balance decreased by $149.5 million whiles the Industrial
Authority’s Debt Service Fund’s fund balance increased by $11.2 million. The Special Revenue’s
fund balance decreased because of the amount expended on 4 to Fix and Vision 2025 capital
initiative. The Industrial Authority did not issue any revenue bonds during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2008. The Debt Service’s fund balance and restricted cash increased because the sales tax
collections exceeded the debt service payments. The Other Governmental Funds fund balances
increased by $2.7 million during the year ended June 30, 2008 because of the $1.1 million increase
in the fund balance of the Special Projects Funds and the $.5 million increase in the fund balance
of the Parks Fund. The General Fund’s fund balance decrecased by $.4 million, the County
Highway’s fund balance increased by $1.2 million, the Sheriff’s Jail Fund’s fund balance declined
by $.5 million fund balance in its third year of operation, and the Sales Tax fund balance remained
the same. Management made a concerted effort this past fiscal year to maintain the fund balance
particularly of the General Fund. The ad valorem tax revenues increased by $3.5 million, charge
for services remained the same, and fransfers in exceeded transfers out by $2.2 million. The
increase in the ad valorem tax collections correspond with the increase in property values for both
residential and commercial properties. The County Highway Fund spent $.8 million more on
capital road and highway construction and maintenance this year as compared to the previous year.
The Sheriff’s Jail Fund spent $.6 million more to operate the jail this past fiscal year than what the
Sheriff’s Jail Fund received in sales tax collections. The Sales Tax Fund holds a small balance in
the fund but serves as the collector and disburser of sales and use tax to the various authorities.

The two major initiatives of the Tulsa County Industrial Authority are “4 to Fix the County” and
Vision 2025.

4 to Fix the County |

Capital expenses of $1,334,470 were spent during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008 for three
separate “4 to Fix the County” 1 projects. The allocation of funds to the individual projects during
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008 was as follows:

*27.7% was spent on developing individual plans for flood control.

*1.7% was spent on paving a parking ot at a local golf course.

*54.0 % was spent on selecting engineers, identifying additional right-of-way for street widening,
designing and implementing the road improvements.

*The remainder was spent on constructing a livestock barn and expo-building improvements at
Expo Square, the host of the Tulsa State Fair and other year round exhibits.
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The total capital outlay for the “4 to Fix the County™ 1 initiatives project to date has been
$39,745,409; 11.1% of'the total of $59,745,409 has been spent on flood mitigation, 5.0% on parks,
44.0% on roads, and 39.2% on Expo Square, and .7% on Administration,

As of June 30, 2008, the “4 to Fix the County” I projects arc at the following stages of completion
(as compared to the original budget plus funds received in excess of bond proceeds and including
reimbursements or a total of $61,542,214):

Flood Mitigation is approximately 86.8% complete.

Parks are approximately 99.9% complete.

Roads are approximately 96.7% complete.

Expo Square is approximately 100% complete.

The original budget for all of the 4 to Fix the County initiatives was $59 million; funds in excess of
bonds and reimbursements total $2,452,214. The percentage distribution of budgeted funds per
governing body resolutions were 13% for flood mitigation, 5% for parks, 42% for roads, and 40 %

for Expo Square.

$12.9 million (the remaining balance) of outstanding 2001 Capital Improvement Bonds was paid
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007.

4 to Fix the County I1

The following schedule depicts the status on a cash basis of the major capital projects as of June
30, 2008 with the amount expended this fiscal year and the total expended project to date, as well
as the percentage of completion as of June 30, 2008 as compared to budget.

Expended this Total Expended Percentage
Capital Project fiscal year project to Date Completed
Criminal Justice Construction $1,675,709 $2,619,617 33.6%
Parks Construction 1,085,183 1,712,940 13.3%
Streets Construction 643,747 931,229 4.2%
Expo Square 18,870,526 18,870,526 96.8%

The 4 1o Fix I1 money spent at Expo Square was for the renovations at the expo building (Quik
Trip Center), building the exchange building and the armory kitchen, paving lot 12, and relocating
utilities in the midway.

The initial financial activity for 4 to Fix the County Il capital initiatives occurred during May 2006
with the issuance of the Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds Series A 2006. The amount



outstanding on the Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds Series A 2006 as of June 30, 2008 1s
$12,910,000. The amount outstanding on the Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds Series D 2006
as of June 30, 2008 is $36,020,000,

Vision 2025

The following schedule depicts the status on a cash basis of selected major capital projects
(arranged by voter proposition) as of June 30, 2008 with the amount expended this fiscal year, the
total expended project to date, as well as the percentage of completion as of June 30, 2008 as
compared to the budget.

Expended this | Total Expended Percentage
Voter Capital Project fiscal year Project to Date Completed
Proposition
American American Airlines $0 $ 21,184,000 95.0%
Airlines
Economic QOU-Tulsa 468,011 30,000,000 100.0%
Development
Economic OSU-Tulsa 9,719,275 24,120,656 80.4%
Development
Economic NSU-Broken Arrow 0 26,000,000 100.0%
Development
Economic Tulsa Regional 80,281,823 165,450,749 72.4%
Development | Convention
Economic Expo Square 0 33,019,384 82.5%
Development
Community | Tulsa County Parks 2,007,417 9,537,991 74.8%
Enrichment
Community | Route 66 2,657,289 5,309,018 35.4%
Enrichment
Community | Downtown Tulsa 4,034,103 6,946,444 32.2%
Enrichment
Community | Owasse Medical 444 501 4,285,973 95.2%
Enrichment
Community | 61st Street City 0 2,730,359 100.0%
Enrichment

The amount outstanding on the Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds Series 2003 as of June 30,
2008 is $178,500,000. The amount outstanding on the Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds
Series A & B 2005 as of June 30, 2008 is $116,625,000. The amount outstanding on the Capital
Improvement Revenue Bonds Series C 2005 as of June 30, 2008 is $50,800,000. The amount
outstanding on the Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds series B and C 2006 as of June 30,
2008 is $31,650,000.
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The final budgeted amounts for the General Fund beginning fund balance, budgetary basis was
$1.1 million higher than the original budgeted amount; a conservative estimate is made early in
the budget cycle for the projected carryover amount. The final budgeted amount for revenues
was $4.4 million higher because of the increased amount of other taxes and miscellaneous
revenues that were collected. The final budgeted amounts for general government expenditures
was $1.5 million higher than originally budgeted because a $2.2 million appropriation was added
was added to General Government Accounts. Overall actual revenues collected were $.7 million
or 1.2 % higher than budgeted revenue amounts. The actual collections of ad valorem taxes were
higher than the final budgeted amount by nearly $1.5 million because of the higher than expected
collection of current year ad valorem taxes. Actual charge for services was $.3 million higher
than budgeted. Realized investment income was nearly $.2 million higher than budget because of
higher than expected interest carnings.

Actual expenditures were $6.6 million, or 10.4% lower than the final budgeted amount for
expenditures. General Government actual expenditures were $6.7 lower than the final budgeted
amounts. The major reason for this is the General Fund appropriations for the Cash Management
Accounts and the General Government Accounts were not spent.

Since the actual revenues and expenditures for the General Fund compare favorably with the
General Fund budget for revenues and expenditures, there is a positive ending fund balance. The
positive fund balance coupled with the expectation of increased local economic development as
reflected in the increasing property values and higher sales tax collections; these positive trends
indicate that it is not anticipated that future delivery of services to the Citizens of Tulsa County
will be interrupted. There does not appear to be a liquidity problem with the funds currently
available for appropriation in the General Fund.

County Highway Fund Budgetary Highlights

For the County Highway Fund, there was no difference between the original and the final
budgeted amounts. The budgeted amounts do not include any amount for beginning fund
balance, budgetary basis. The actual amount of beginning fund balance was $8.4 million. The
actual amount of intergovernmental revenue is based on a 20 % revenue grant obtained from the
State. Other revenues collected in the County Highway Fund are fees charged by the State of
Oklahoma and distributed to Tulsa County. The actual amount of miscellaneous revenue consists
of a $.9 million miscellancous reimbursement and gross production tax of nearly $.3 million.

Actual expenditurcs were $2.0 million higher than the budgeted amounts for expenditures.
Operating expenditures were $1.8 million higher than the budgeted amounts because of higher
paving material costs and the higher cost for operating supplies.



Capital Asset and Debt Administration
Capital Assets

At the end of 2008, the County had invested $234.9 million in a broad range of capital assets,
including police equipment, buildings, roads, and bridges. This amount represents a net increase
of $28.5 million, or 13.8% over last year (note HI. D. to the financial statements provides
additional detail on capital assets).

Talsa County’s Capital Assets
(Net of depreciation, in thousands of dollars)
June 30, 2008 and 2007

Governmental Activilies Business-type Activilies Total

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Land h 21,738 21,620 & %6 9% $ 21,834 21716
Construction in
progress 18,164 21,380 19,727 6,348 37,891 27,728
Buildings 10,242 10,625 90,035 77,185 100,277 8£7,810
Machinery and
equipment 13,408 13,199 4714 4,519 18,122 17,718
Infrastructure 56,787 51,423 0 0 56,787 51,423
Total $ 120,339 118,247 § 114,572 88,148 % 234911 2(06,395

Long-term debt

Tulsa County had a total of $482.4 million and $512.1 million in outstanding debt at the end of
fiscal years 2008 and 2007, respectively. Governmental Activities decreased by $43.7 million
while Business-type Activities increased by $14.0 million. The $43.7 million decrease in
Governmental Activities debt is a result of the payment of $16.3 million on the Capital
Improvement Revenue Bonds Series 2003, the payment of $11.5 million on the Capital
Improvement Revenue Bonds Series 2005, the payment of $4.7 million on the Capital
Improvement Revenue Bonds Series 2005 and the payment of $11.1 million on the Capital
Improvement Revenue Bonds Series 2006. During fiscal year 2007, the Tulsa County Industrial
Authority issued a total of $78.7 million in Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds Series 2006 B, C
& D. Funds to pay the revenue bonds outstanding will come from the sales tax that was approved
by voters in September 2003, as the Vision 2025 initiative. The proceeds from the revenue bonds
will fund capital improvements for American Airlines, education, health care, and event facilities
that will promote economic development, and capital improvements for community enrichment.
After the voters of Tulsa County approved the initiative “4 to Fix the County” I in fiscal year 2002,
debt of $59 million resulted from the issuance of 2001 Capital Improvements Revenue Bonds by
the Tulsa County Industrial Authority. The remaining payment of $12.9 million on the Capital
Improvement Revenue Bonds Series 2001 was made during fiscal year ending June 30, 2007.
These revenue bonds were issued to make improvements for Expo Square, flood mitigation, parks,
and roads. The Public Facilities Authority issued Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series
2007 for $15.3 million during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.
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State law [imits the amount of general obligation debt the County can issue up to 5 percent of the
assessed value of all taxable property within the County’s limits. The total debt limit is calculated
to be nearly $235.5 million at the end of fiscal year 2008. The general obligation debt outstanding
($0) less the amount available in the Debt Service Fund ($0 million) is $0 million, leaving a legal
debt margin of $235.5 million.

Standard and Poor’s rates the County’s general obligation bonds at AA- /A-1+ while Moody’s
Investor’s Services rates the County AA2. The County’s other debt, principally, revenue bonds,
carrics the same rating.

Ad valorem tax collections have remained relatively stable at 98.3% over the past five fiscal years.
Between the Vision 2025 and “4 to Fix the County” initiatives, Tulsa County has been able to both
expand and maintain its infrastructure (note 111.J. provides additional detail on long term debt).

Tulsa County’s Qutstanding Debt
(In thousands of dollars)
June 30, 2008 and 2007

Governmental Activities Business-type Activitics Total

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Revenue bonds payable-2003  § 178,500 194,800 % 4,200 4700 $ 182,700 199,500
Revenue bonds payable-2005 116,625 128,115 116,625 128,115
Revenue bonds payable-2005 50,800 55,500 25,052 25,745 75,852 81,245
Revenue bonds payable-2006 12,910 12,910 12,910 12,910
Revenue bonds payable-2006 31,650 31,650 31,650 31,650
Revenue bonds payable-2006 36,020 47,090 36,020 47,090
Revenue bonds payable-2007 15,295 15,295
Notes payable 77 77
Capital leases payable 7,920 8,716 7.920 8,716
Judgments payable 144 125 144 125
Compensated absences 3,261 2,667 3,261 2,667
Total $ 437,830 481573 % 44,547 30,522 § 482377 512,095

Economic Factors and the Impact on Next Year’s Budgets

Sales tax receipts for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 were 4.3% higher than the previous year
and 10.2% higher than the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. Sales tax collections through August
arc 10.0% above last year’s comparable number. The total assessed valuation of residential
properties increased by 5% during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. The total assessed valuation
of commercial properties increased by 6% during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. In summary,
property values in Tulsa County have increased and collections of ad valorem taxes increased
slightly in fiscal year 2008, while the general economy as evidenced by sales tax collections has
improved during fiscal year 2008 and 2007. As local economic indicators remain positive and
future growth appears likely, the primary threats to Tulsa’s economy are macroeconomic and
geopolitical factors affecting the national economy.



Contacting the County’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide citizens, taxpayers, plan participants and others with a
general overview of Tulsa County finances and to show accountability for money it receives.
Complete financial statements of the individual blended and discretely presented component units
can be requested from the Tulsa County Clerk’s office at 500 South Denver, Tulsa, Oklahoma
74103. Questions concerning any data provided in this report or requests for additional information
should be directed to Tulsa County Clerk, 500 South Denver, Tulsa, Oklahoma 74103.
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Tulsa County, Cklahoma
Statement of Net Assots
June 3¢, 2008

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type Component
Aclivilies Activities Total Units
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 3 45,603,765 456,599 § 46,060,364 § 12.124.044
Invesiments 0 1,374,712 1.374.712 o]
Reslricted cash and cash eguivalents 211,680,091 0 211.680.061 0
Accounts receivable 0 761,449 761,448 117,401
Ad valorem laxes receivable, net of 1,886,871 O 1,886,571 64,866
alfowance for ungoliectibles)
Sales tax receivable 18,876,295 0 16,676,285 o]
Use lax receivable 1,145,215 0 1,145.215 o]
Accrued interas! receivable 676,466 ¢ 676,466 6,234
Intergovernimental receivables-Due from Tulsa County 0 1,145,215 1,445,215 4,100,594
Intergovernmentat receivables-From Others 2.180.141 Q 2,180,141 2,492.562
Telephone receivable 0 0 G 51,805
Prepaid pension obligation 2,566,457 0 2,566,457 o]
inventory 0 51,717 51,747 1,408,085
Deferred and prepaid expenses 0 1,044,087 1.044,087 0
Total cutrent assels 282,515,401 4,833,779 267,349,180 20,385.6811
Nen-cuirent assets: ) B
Resincted cash and cash equivalents & 16,868,590 16,868,580 981,824
Horseman's Trust Account o] 2,260,984 2,260,984 o]
Restricted investments a0 1,176,500 1,178,500 a
Land 21,738,096 96,000 21,834,086 5,203,624
Construclion in progress 18,163,975 19,726,865 37.890.840 ]
Capitai assels, net 80,437,922 94,749 665 175,187 887 63,501,442
Other assets-net ¢ 0 [ 447,182
Deferred debt expense, net - restricted 5541112 0 8,541,112 ]
Bond issuance costs, net . ¢ 1,442,123 1,442,123 0
Total non-current assets } 125,881,108 136,320,727 262,201,832 70,234.172
Total assets b3 408,396,506 § 141,184,506 % 549,551,012 5 90,599,783
LIABILITIES AND NEYT ASSETS
Current liabilities.
Accrued interest payable $ 2,886,120 3 354475 3,240,595 § 0
Accounds payable 35,202.120 1,058,003 36,260,123 584,265
Accrued liabifties 52,060 o] 52,060 108,209
Due to Public Facilities Aulhority 1,145,215 o 1,145,215 0
DCue to Criminal Justice Authority 4,100,594 o] 4,100,594 0
Due to industrial Authority 4] 0 4] ¥}
Mortgage loans payable, current portion o] 0 ¢ 74 583
Escrow deposits payabie 0 o] 0 4475
Workers Compensation, currenl potion 86,000 0 86,000 0
Other acorued expenses 0 212,885 272.885 0
Deferred credits and event revenues 0 1,373,584 1,373,584 208,781
Judgments payable, current portion 62,167 0 62,167 0
Notes payable, current portion o] o 0 0
Bonds payable, currenl postion 45075000 3,222,805 45,297,805 0
Compensaled absences, current portion 2,688,688 0 2.688,688 0
OPEB Hability, surrent portion 305,800 0 305,900 0
Onbligations under capital leases, current portion 816.814 0 816.614 241,830
Total current iiabifities 92420.678 8221752 98642430 1,169,843
Non-current fiabilities:
Bonds payable 396,127,044 41,324,397 437,451 441 0
Liability to horsemen o 2,260,984 2,260.984 0
Mortgage foans payable 0 ] 0 598,657
Workers Compensation, long term portion 766,053 0 766,053 O
Judgments payable 82,166 V] 82,166 0
Compensaled absences, long lerm portion 572,533 0 572,533 863,991
Rebatable arbilrage 3,020,106 0 3,020,106 0
OPER Hability, Jong ferm portion 305,446 0 305,446 0
Obligations under capital leases . 7.103,542 0 7,103,542 7,838,610
Total non-current fiabililics 407 976,890 : 43,585,381 451562 271 9,302,258
Total fiabilities 500,397,558 48,807,133 550,204 701 10,472,104
Metl assets:
Invesled in capitai assets 110,679,261 70,026,328 180,704 589 61,863,540
Restricted for:
Debt service 76,503,176 18,045,081 96,548,267 0
Criminal Justice Authority Operations o] 0 o] 8,333,540
Unrestricted {281,183 499) 3,276,854 4277 906,545) 9,930,602
Total net assets o t92.001,062) 91,347,373 {653,658 80,127,682
Total iabilitics and net assets $ 408,396 506 § 141,154,506 § 549 551,012 § 90599 783

The notes to the financial statements are an integral pait of this statement
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REVENUES

Ad valorem taxes

Olher faxes

Charge for sarvices

Sales taxes

Use 13x

Intergovernmental ravenue

Investment income

Miscellaneous revanuea

Payment [rom Criminat Justice Authority

Payment from Deposilory Accounts

Payment from City/County Heaith
Tolalrevenues

EXPENDITURES
Current;
General goveramen!
Pubiic salely
Haaith and welfare
Gullure and recreation
Education
Roads and highways
Paymenl to Griminal Justice Aulhority
Expenditure for Vision 2025 projects
Expenditure for 4 lo Fix | projects
Expenditure for 4 to Fix || projects
Capital autiay
Debt service:
Pringipal retirement
interest and fiscal agent charges
frrincipal on judgments
Interast on judgments
Total expendilures

Excess {doficlency) of revenues
over (under) expendilures

Ot financing sources {usesk
Transler to/from beneliciary
Sale of real property
Transfors in (primary government)
Transters out {primary gavernment)
Tolal olher linancing sources {uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balance, beginning

Fund batance, ending

$

$

Tulsa County, Okiahoma

Statements of Revenuss, Expendituras, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmentat Funds
Far the year ended June 30, 2008

Counly Sales Sheriff Industrial Aulhority industrial Authority Other Total
General Highway Tax Jail Special Revenue Debt Service Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

45,147,899 § - $ -8 - § - $ 2748595 S 47896494
3,128,304 - - - - 386,355 3,524,659
4,354,643 2,848,726 - 24,145 - 7418201 14,485,718
- - 96,112,765 - - - - 96,112,765
- - £.6824.221 - - - - 6,624,221
488,283 5,472,226 - - - - 13,7683 620 20,755,128
2,218,832 292,817 198,818 - 5,269,564 4,592 115 35,626 12,607,372
1,990,055 979.430 - 14,461 - - 3545544 8,529,480
228,740 - - 22,355,307 - - 49,703 22 633,750
15,926 - - - ~ - 54,831 70,457
36,000 - - - - - 78535 114,535
57,609,382 10,443,198 102,835 805 22,392,913 5,268,564 4,582 115 28,120 811 231,364,587
33,024,647 - - 1,868,141 1,763,906 16,981,562 53,638,248
8,368,685 - 22.914,754 - - 2,710,983 33.994.432
5,588,615 - - - - - 2,710,665 8,298,280
4,749,348 - - - 2,711,856 7.461.204
436,759 - - - - 436,759
674,429 &.850,825 - - - - 9,525,254
- - 25833512 - - 23,633512
- - - - 129,807,186 - - 129,807,186
- - - - 1,334470 - 1,334,470
- - B - 22,142,238 - - 22,142,238
1,939,524 205,924 - 15,236 - - 2.808.901 4,967,675
- - - - - 43,560,000 - 43,560,000
- - - - - 20,153,240 - 20,153,240
- - $ - & - - - 75,500 78,500
- - - - - - 14,624 14,624
55782 007 8,056,749 23633512 22,929 930 165,152,035 65477 146 28012.181 360,042,620
1,827,375 1,366,448 78,302,283 {836,077) {149.882.471) {60,885,031) 108430 {128,679,033)

- - {72,479,254) . 72,479,256 - -

- - - - - - 1.932 1,932
5510881 1,000,000 - - 8.217.239 8,643,419 10,669,437 35,541,076
(7 707.386) {1,226,707) {6,825 G57 {3.700) {8,843.419) {9,217,330) 8341001} (42,165,298
{2,196,505) (226,707) {79.304.811) {3.700) 373.920 72.105,334 2.630278 {G.622,291)

{369,130) 1,169,742 (2.619) {528,777) (149,508,551} 11,220,303 2,738,708 (135.301,324)
1,957,367 £.368,020 35,120 892,824 202,167,046 125.977.902 20,968,151 370,367,430
11,500,237 & 0537762 S 32502 S 383047 § 52.658.495 137.198.205 & 23707859 & 235066108

The noles (o the financial stalemeits are an integral pan of this siatement
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Tulsa County, Oktahoma
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the year ended June 30, 2008

Net change in fund balances--total governmental funds & {135,301,324)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the 81,836
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is sllocated over their

estimated useful lives as deprecigtion expense. This is the amcunt by which
capitai outlays ($4,967 675) exceeded depreciation ($4,885,839) in the current period.

Repayment of debt principaf is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the 43,560,000
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets.

Amordization of bond issuance costs over the term of the related debt. {1,166,811)

Amortization of bond premium over the term of the related debt, 3,318,341

Estimated liabilities for rebatable arbitrage not recorded in governmental funds {1,804,773)

Estimated liabilites for OPEB cbligation not recorded in governmental funds {611,346)

Capital outlay expenditures capitalized as consfruction in progress, infrastructure 2,092,897

Some expenses reported in the statement of aclivities do not require
current financial resources, and therefore, are not reported
as expenditures in governmental funds.
Increase in compensated absences expense (504,353)
Increase in kability for tort claims and judgmenis {19,500

Some revenues reported in the statement of activities do not provide
current financial resources in the current year

Decrease in ad valorem receivable (232,684)
Increase in prepaid pension obligation 1,499,459
Change in net assets--statement of activities $ (89,177,238)

The notes {o the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Tulsa County, Okiahoma

Proprietary Fund
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2008

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Invesiments
Accounts receivable
Deferred and prepaid expenses
Inventories

Total current assets

Nencurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Horsemen's Trust Account
Restricted investments
Landg
Consiruction in progress
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Bond issuance costs, net

Totai noncurrent assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current liabitities:
Accrued interest payable
Accounts payabie
Cther accrued expenses
Deferred credits and event revenues
Current portion of 2003, 2005, and 2007 revenue bonds

Toial current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Liability to horsemen
Bonds payable
Total noncurrent lfabilities
Totai liabilities
MNet assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted
Total net assets

Total liahilities and net assets

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Tulsa County
Public Facilities
Authority

456,599
1,374,712
1,906,664
1,044,087

51,717

4,833,779

16,868,590
2,260,984
1,176,500

96,000

19,726,865

94,749,665
1,442,123

136,320,727

141,154,506

354,475
1,058,003
212,885
1,373,584
3,222,805

6,221,752

2,260,984
41,324,397

43,585,381

49,807,133

70,025,328
18,045,091
3,276,954

91,347,373

141,154,506
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Tulsa County, Okiahoma

Proprietary Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets
For the year ended June 30, 2008

Tulsa County
Public Facilities

32

Authority
OPERATING REVENUES
Commissions $ 1,276,232
State fair revenue 2,700,794
Space rental (exhibits) 4,392,676
Racing revenue 2,895,845
Other income and fees 9,987,648
Total operating revenues 21,253,195
OPERATING EXPENSES
Perscnnel 9,195,265
Maintenance and operation 9,715,792
Outside services 3,282,240
Total operating expenses 22,193,297
Operating income before depreciation and amortization (940,102}
Depreciation and amortization (5,391,642}
Amortization of deferred credits 133,823
Total depreciation and amortization {5,257,819)
Operating income (loss) {6,197,921)
Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Interest income 853,821
Interest (expense} (2,070,184)
Income (ioss) before contributions and transfers (7,414,284)
Contributions
Contributions of capital assets 20,332,516
Transfers
Transfers of sales tax collections 6,624,221
Total contributions and transfers 26,956,737
Purchase of simulcast facility (2,367,000)
Change in net assets 17,175,453
Net assets at beginning of year 74,171,920
Net assets at end of year $ 91,347,373

The notes {o the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




Tulsa County, Oklahoma

Proprietary Fund
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended June 30, 2008

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments to empioyees

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Capital expenditures
Proceeds from issuance of bonds payable
Principal payments on 2003, 2005, and 2007 revenue bonds
Principal payments on noles payable
Debt issue costs
Purchase of simulcast facifity
Interest paid on revenue bonds and netes payable
Transfers in from County

Net cash provided by {used in) financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received on restricted cash and investments
Payments for the purchase of investments

Net cash provided by (used in} investing activities
Nel increase (decrease} in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) 10 net cash
pravided by (used in) operating activities:
Cperating income (foss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash
provided by (used in} operating activities:
Depreciation and amartization
Amortization of deferred credits
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivabie
Deferred expenses
Prepaid and other expenses
Inventories
Accounis payable
Liability to horsemen
Deferred credits and event revenues
Other accrued expenses

Net cash provided by {used in) cperating activities

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing, capital and financing activities:

Contributions of capital assets

Donated capital Improvements from tenant
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash and ¢cash equivalents

Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Horseman's Trust Account

Cash and cash equivalents

The notes to the financial stalements are an integral part of this statement.

$

&

$

$

$

Tulsa County
Public Facilities

Authority

20,912,694
{14,060,173)

(9.195,265)
(2,342,744

{11,245,154)
15,295,000
{1,370,060)

{76,741}
(806,105}
{2,367 000)
{1,788,171)
6,624,221

4,466,050

853,821

(90,899)

762,822
2,886,128
16,700,045

19,586,173

{6,187.921)

5,391,642
{133,823)

(237,431)
(231,432)
{53)
33,164
(83,074)
(753,268)
(103,070)

(27,507)
(2,342 744)

20,332,518

8,791

456,599
16,868,550
2,260,984

18,586,173



Tulsa County, Oklahoma

Fiduciary Funds
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
June 30, 2008

Pension
Trust Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 564,719
Money market mutual funds 6,722,237
U.S. Government and Agency obligations 40,686,250
Domestic corporate bonds 36,689,787
Domestic stocks 62,905,389
International stocks 37,721,283
Judgments 141,600
Ad valorem receivable H]
Interest and dividend receivable 812,416
Due from brokers for unsettled trades 478,403
Coniributions receivable from employer 674,611
Total assets $ 187,396,095
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 80,683
Payable to brokers for unsettled trades 67,186
Due to other taxing units 0
Due to others 0
Totat liabilities 147,869
NET ASSETS
Net assets held in trust for pension benefits 187,248,226
Total net assets 187,248,226
Total liabilities and net assets $ 187,396,095

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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Agency
Funds

53,712,083

18,226,21

OO RRoCOOOOCO

71,938,297

0
0
56,642,010

15,296,287

71,938,297

Q

0

71,938,297



Tulsa County, Oklahoma

Fiduciary Fund
Statements of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
For the year ended June 30, 2008

Additions:

Conftributions:
Plan member
Employer

Total contributions

Investment Income:
Net appreciation {depreciation) in fair value of investments
Interest

Dividends

Total investment income
Less investment expense

Net investment income
Total additions
Deductions:
Benefits
Refunds of contributions
Administrative expense
Total deductions
Net increase (decrease)
Net assets held in trust for pension benefits

Beginning of Year

End of Year

The notes {o the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Pension Trust

Fund

2,102
8,010,788

8,012,890

(16,148,002)
4,109,186
595,693

(11,443,123)
805,679

(12,248,802)

(4,235,912)

9,923,232
4,930
49,693

9,977,755

(14,213,667)

201,461,893

187,248,226
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Tuisa County, Oklahoma

Discretely Presented Component Units
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2008

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Ad valerem taxes receivable
Accrued interest receivable
Accounts receivabie - net
Intergovernmental receivables-Due from Tulsa County
Intergovernmental receivables-Due from others
Telephone receivable
Inventory
Total current assets

Nencurrent assets:
Restricted cash
Land non-depreciable capital assels
Capital assets, net of accumuiated depreciation
Other assets - net

Total noncurrent asseis

Total assels

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current fiabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued ligbilities
Deferred revenue
Capital lease - current portion
Mortgage loans payable
Escrow deposits payable
Total current labilities

MNoncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences, less current portion
Capital lease - long-term portion
Long term debt - morigage loans payable
Total nencurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Resftricted for Criminal Justice Authority operations
Unrestricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

Tulsa County Tulsa Tuisa County
Criminal City-County Home
Justice Heaith Finance Total
Authority Department Authority 2008
3,240,326 % 8,330477 $ 553241 % 12,124,044
0 64,886 0 64,5886
6,234 0 0 6,234
0 112,723 4678 117,401
4,100,594 0 0 4,100,594
965,657 1,526,905 0 2,492,562
51,805 0 0 51,805
0 723,823 684,262 1,408,085
8,364,616 10,758,814 1,242,181 20,385,611
0 991,924 0 091,924
3,323,685 1,969,939 0 5,293,624
56,225,807 7,275,635 0 63,501,442
0 447,182 0 447,182
58,549,492 10,684,680 0 70,234,172
67,914,108 21,443,494 § 1,242,181 § 90,509,783
31,076 552,669 § 520 § 584,265
o} 108,209 0 108,209
¢ 206,781 0 206,781
o] 241,830 0 241,830
¢ 0 24,583 24,583
[ 0 4,175 4,175
31,078 1,109,489 29,278 1,169,843
0 863,691 0 863,991
0 7,839,610 0 7,839,610
0 0 598,657 598 857
0 8,703,601 598,657 9,302,258
31,0786 9,813,090 627,935 10,472,101
59,549,492 2,314,048 0 61,863,540
8,333,540 0 0 8,333,540
0 9,316,356 614,246 9,930,602
67,883,032 11,630,404 614,246 80,127,682
67,914,108 § 21443494 § 1,242,181 & 90,509,783

The notes to the financial statements are an integral pan of this statement.
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Isa County, Oklahoms

”‘&‘@‘é% to the Financial Stafemends
Jupe 34, 2008

Note I, - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of Tulsa County are presented in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America as applied to government units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental
accounting and financial reporting principles. With respect to proprietary activities, including component
units, the County has adopted GASB Statement No. 20, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities that use Proprietary Fund Accounting”. Tulsa County
has elected to apply all applicable GASB pronouncements as well as Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinions issued on or before
November 30, 1989 unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncemenits. For
fiscal year end of June 30, 2006, Tulsa County impiemented GASB Statement No. 44, “Economic
Condition Reporting: The Statistical Section”. For fiscal year end of June 30, 2007, Tulsa County
implemented GASB Statement No. 43, “Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans other
than Pension Plans”. The implementation of GASB Statement No. 43, did not have a material impact on
Tulsa County’s financial statements. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, Tulsa County impiemented
GASB Statement No. 50, “Pension Disclosures: An amendment of GASB statements 25 and 27,

Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncements:

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) - In June 2004, GASB issued Statement No. 45,
“Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions.”
Statement Nao. 45 is effective for Tulsa County during the year ended June 30, 2008.

The Statement establishes standards for the measurement, recognition, and display of OPEB
expense/expenditures and related liabilities, note disclosures, and required supplementary information
(RS1) in the financial reports of state and tocal governments.

The approach followed in this Statement generally is consistent with the approach adopted in Statement
No. 27, “Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers” with modifications to
reflect differences between pension benefits and OPEB Statement No. 43, “Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, © addresses financial statement and disclosure
requirements for reporting by administrators or trustees of OPEB plan assets or by employers or sponsors
that include OPEB plan assels as (rust or agency funds in their financial repor(s.

Postemployment benefits (OPEB as well as pensions) are part of an exchange of salaries and benefits for
employee services rendered. Of the total benefits offered by employers to attract and retain qualified
employees, some benefits, including salaries and active-employee healthcare, are taken while the
employees are in active service, whereas other benefits, including post-employment healthcare and other
OPEB, arc taken after the employees” services have ended. Nevertheless, both types of benefits constitute
compensation for employee services.

From an accrual accounting perspective, the cost of OPEB, like the cost of pension benefits, generall
& pers) » LG + 8

should be associated with the periods in which the exchange occurs, rather than the periods (often many

years later) when benefits are paid or provided. However, in current practice, most OPED plans are



Tulsa County, Oldahoma
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2008

financed on a pay as you go basis, and financial statements generally do not report the financial effects of

OPEB until the promised benefits are paid.

This Statement improves the relevance and usefulness of financial reporting by a) requiring sysiematic,
accrual-basis measurement and recognition of OPEB cost (expense) over a period that approximates
employees” years of service and (b) providing information about actuarial accrued liabilities associated
with OPEB and whether and to what extent progress 1s being made in funding the plan.

Significant Tulsa County accounting policies and practices are described below.

A. Financial Reporting Entity

In accordance with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 14, “The Financial
Reporting Entity”, as amended by GASB Statements 34 and 39, Tulsa County has presented the entities
that comprise the primary govermment including its blended component units and its discretely presented
component units in ils basic financial statements.

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the basic
financial statements present the reporting entity, which consists of the primary government and all of its
component units. Component units are legally separate entities that meet any one of the following three
tests: test 1: The primary government appoints the voling majority of the board of the component unit and
the governing body of the primary government is able to impose its will on the component unit and/or is
in a relationship of financial benefit or burden with the potential component unit; test 2: the component
unit is fiscally dependent upon the primary government; test 3: other organizations for which the nature
and significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion could cause the
County’s basic financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

1. Blended Componeunt Units

The following component units have been presented as blended component units because the component
unit’s governing body is substantially the same as the governing body of the County, or the component
unit provides services almost entirely to the County.

Tulsa County Employees’ Retirement System - The Board of Trustees of the Tulsa County
Employces’ Retirement System (TCERS) was established to oversee operations of the pension fund and
establish policies affecting eligibility, benefits, investment practices and other matters perfamning to the
proper administration of the system in accordance with law. All decisions made by the Board of Trustees
are subject to final approval by the Board of County Commissioners.

Tulsa County Public Facilities Authority — The Public Facilities Authority is a public trust
established under the provisions of the Oklahoma Trust Act on January 17, 1983, The Authority
commenced operations on March 1, 1983, and as successor to the Tulsa County Fairgrounds Trust
Authority, operates and manages certain properties owned by Tulsa County, commonly referred to as the
Tulsa County Fairgrounds located at Expo Square. The three Tulsa County Commissioners serve on the
Tulsa County Public Facilities Authority (TCPFA) board and they appoint the other two members.
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Tulsa County Industrial Authority - The Industrial Authority is & public trust established under
the provisions of the Oklahoma Trust Act on March f, 1965, The Authority was created to promote the
development of industry within territorial limits of Tulsa County and the State of Oklahoma. The three
Tulsa County Commissioners serve as the Tulsa County Industrial Authority board. In accordance with
Oklahoma Statutes, 68 O.5. 1994 Supplement # 1370.2A, the voters of Tulsa County passed three
temporary sales taxes titled 4 to Fix, 4 to Fix I, and Vision 2025 to fund capital improvements projects to
benefil the citizens of Tulsa County. The financial activity for 4 to Fix, 4 to Fix I, and Vision 2025
capital projects and related debt service activities are reported in the Tulsa County Industrial Authority.

Complete audited financial statements of the individual blended component units can be requested from
the Tulsa County Clerk’s office at 500 South Denver, Tulsa, Okiahoma 741403,

2. Discretely Presented Component Units

The component unit’s column in the government-wide financial statements includes the financial
data of the County’s component units. The discretely presented component units are reporied in a separate
column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize their legal separation from the County.
The following discretely presented component units are inciuded in the financial statements:

Tulsa County Criminal Justice Authority - The Criminal Justice Authority was created pursuant
to an Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust dated October 20, 1995 as a public trust for the use and
benefit of the county and other municipalities, under authority of and pursnant to the provisions of Title
60, Oklahoma Statutes, as amended and supplemented. The Authority was created to administer the funds
used to construct and operate a new county jail (the David L. Moss Criminal Justice Cenler) and to
account for certain activities and operations of the existing jail until construction of the new jail was
completed. Seven {rustees, including the three County Commissioners of Tulsa County, the Mayvor of the
City of Tulsa, and three mayors chosen by the Tulsa County Commissioners from the remaining cities of
the County govern the Authority. The Chairman of the Board of County Commissioners also serves as
Chairman of the Authority’s Board of Trustees. In the event of a financial shortfall, Tulsa County along
with the other beneficiaries of the public trust is responsible for any financial burden.

Tulsa  Ciy/County Health Board {Department) - The Tulsa City/County Health Board
(Department) was created in 1950 by joint resolution of the City of Tulsa and the Board of County
Commissioners. A nine {9) member board oversees the day-io-day operations of the Department. The
City of Tulsa appoints five (5) members, all of which must be licensed physicians. The remaining four
(4) members that are appointed by the Board of County Commissioners are only required to be registered
voters. If the IHealth Department were not included in the financial statements of Tulsa County, the
accompanying financial statements would be misleading and incomplete.  Tulsa County acts as the
collecting agent and treasurer for the Health Department. Tulsa County processes the payables and
payroll for the Health Department. Tulsa City/County Health Department employees also participate in
the Tulsa County Employees’ Retirement Sysiem. The City of Tulsa does not contribute any funding (o
this component unit,

Tulsa County Home Finance Authority — The Tulsa County Home Finance Authority (TCHFA}Y is
a publie trust established under the provisions of the Okiahoma Trust Act on October 16, 1978, The first
amendment 1o the Trust Indenture was dated Febroary 7, 1979 and the second amendment was dated
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January 19, 1982, The Authority was created o provide housing for iow to middle income residential use
whether a single or multi-family dwelling. The Tulsa County Commissioners appoint four members of
the TCHFA board; the fifth member is one of the Tulsa County Commissioners. If TCHFA were not
included in the financial statements of Tulsa County, the accompanying financial statements would be
misleading and incomplete. The Tulsa County Home Finance Authority has a December 31 fiscal year
end.

Complete audited financial statements of the individual discretely presented component units can be
requested from the Tulsa County Clerk’s office at 500 South Denver, Tulsa, Oklahoma 74103,

3. Jointly Governed Organizations

Tulsa City/County Library Board — The Tulsa City/County Library was created on July 1, 1962
by joint resolution of the City of Tulsa and the Board of County Commissioners. Under the resolution, an
eleven (11) member board was created to oversee the daily operations of the Library, The City of Tulsa
appoints ¢ members, Tulsa County appoints 3 members, one member is the Chairman of the Board of
County Commissioners, and the other member is the Mayor, City of Tulsa. The City does not provide any
funding to the City/County Library. The County acts as a collecting agent and treasurer for the Library;
however, the County does not provide any bookkeeping functions. The Library has been excluded from
the reporting entity since the County assumes no responsibility for its day-to-day operations. The County
has no control over budgets, fee schedules or any other operating or management decisions. The Library
is considered a jointly governed organization.

Complete audited financial statements of the jointly governed organization can be requested from the
Tulsa County Clerk’s office at 500 South Denver, Tulsa, Oklahoma 74103.

4. Joint Venture

The County is a participant in a joint veniure in which it retains an ongoing financial interest or
an ongoing financial responsibility.

River Parks Authority (RPA) - The County is a participant with the City of Tulsa in a joint
venture to operate and maintain a park along the Arkansas River. The RPA, a public trust, was created on
April 9, 1974 for that purpose. The County and the City of Tulsa contribute to the annual operating
budget of the RPA. The Board of Trustees is comprised of seven members, three appointed by the City,
three appointed by the County, and one by the Tulsa Metropolitan Area Planning Commission. The RPA
recelves grants from Tulsa County and from the City of Tulsa to finance operations. For the year ended
June 30, 2008, Tulsa County’s grants totaled $656,210, the City of Tulsa’s grants totaled $824,144, and
the City of Sand Springs’s grants totaled $19,920. Tulsa County does not have an equity interest in this
organization. Compiete audiled financial siatements for RPA can be obtained from the Executive
Director at 707 S. Houston, Sutte 510, Tulsa, Oklahoma, 74127,

The change in net assets for RPA for cach of the last four years was as follows:

2008 2007(Restated) 2006 2005
Change in net assets $ 3,646,591 $ 1,173,220 $ 203,835 $ (233,648)
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B. Basic financial statements

The basic Tinancial statements include both government-wide (based on the County as a whole) and fund
financial statements.

Both the government-wide and fund financial statements categorize as cither governmental activitics or
business-type activities, In the government-wide Statement of Net Assets, both the governmental and
business-type activities columns (a) are presenied on a consolidated basis by column, and (b) are
reflected, on a full accrual, economic resource basis, which incorporates long-term assets as well as long-
ternt debt and obligations.

The governmeni-wide Statement of Activities reflects both the gross and net cost per functional category
(public safety, roads and highways, etc.), which are otherwise being supported by general government
revenues {ad valorem taxes, sales and use taxes, permits and charges, etc.). The Stalement of Activities
reduces gross expenses {(including depreciation) by related program revenues, operating grants, and
capital grants. The program revenues must be directly associated with the function or a business-type
activity. Program revenues include revenues from fines and forfeitures, fees for licenses and permits, and
charges for services. The operating grants include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or
capital) grants while the capital grants column reflects capital-specific grants.

The net cost (by function or business-type activity) is normally covered by general revenue (ad valorem
taxes, sales taxes, inlerest income, etc.). Historicalty, the previous financial reporting model did not
summarize or present net cost by function or activity.

The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the County as an entity and the change in the
aggregate financial position resulting from the activitics of the fiscal period. Each presentation provides
valuable information thas can be analyzed and compared (between years and between governments).

The fund financial statements now place an emphasis on the major funds in either the governmental or
proprietary fund categories. Non-major funds (by category) or fund type are summarized into a single
column.

The totals on the praprietary fund statements directly reconcile to the business-type activity column in the
government-wide statements because Tulsa County does not maintain any Internal Service Funds.

The governmental funds major fund statements in the fund financial statements are presented on a current
financial resource measurement focus and the modified acerual basis of accounting. This is the manner in
which these funds are normally budgeted. This presentation is deemed most appropriate to (a)
demonstrate legal and covenant compliance, (b) illustrate the source and use of liquid resources, and

(¢) demonstrate how the County’s actual experience conforms to the budget. Since the governmental fund
statements are presented on a different measurement focus and basis of accounting than the government-
wide statements’ governmental column, reconciliation is presented on the fund stalement or on the page
following each statement which briefly explains the adjustments necessary to transform the fund based
financial statements into the governmental column of the government-wide presentation.

The County’s fiduciary funds (which have been redefined and narrowed in scope by the new financial
reporting model) are presented in the fund financial statements by type (pension and agency). Since by
definition these assels are being held for the benefit of a third party (other local governments, school
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districts, pension participants, etc.) and cannot be used to address activities or obligations of the
government, these funds are not incorporated into the government-wide financial statements.

C. Financial statement presentation

The financial transactions of the County are recorded in individual funds. Each fund is accounted for by
providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, reserves, net assets,
revenues and expenditures/expenses.

Proprictary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services or producing and delivering goods in
conneclion with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing activity. Operating expenses include cost of sales
and service, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses,

3ASB Statement No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of the assets, liabilities, revenues or

expenditures/expenses of either fund category or the governmental and enterprise combined) for the
determination of major funds. The nonmajor funds are combined in a single column in the fund financial
statemenis. Tulsa County reports the following major funds.

Major Funds

¢ General Fund is the government’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

¢ County Highway Fund accounts for various taxes remitted to the County from the Oklahoma Tax
Commission for the purpose of maintaining certain reads and bridges in the County.

¢ Sales Tax Fund accounts for two separate sales tax levies. Part of the sales tax collections is
transferred to the Tulsa County Criminal Justice Authority for the maintenance of the jail. The
remainder of the sales tax collections is transferred to the Tulsa County Industrial Authority for
servicing the debt and for various capital improvement projects.

4 Sheriff Jail Fund accounts for the contract revenue received from the Tulsa County Criminal Justice
Authority by the Tulsa County Sheriff’s office to operate the jail.

¢ Tulsa County Industrial Authority Special Revenue Fund accounts for the invesiment earnings
and the proceeds from the issuance of revenue bonds as the financial resources are used to construct
and maintain capital projects for Tulsa County and other Beneficiaries.

¢ Tulsa County Industrial Authority Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation of financial
resources for the payment of interest and principal on revenue bonds.

¢ Tulsa County Public Facilities Authority operates and manages certain properties owned by Tulsa
County, commonly referred to as the Tulsa County Fairgrounds located at Expo Square.



Tulsa County, Oklahoma

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2608

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary Funds are used to report assets held in a trustec or agency capacity for third parties and
therefore are nof available to support County programs. The reporting focus i1s upon net assets and
changes in net assets and employs accounting principles similar to proprietary funds.

Pension Trust Fund reports the resources held in trust for members and beneficiaries of a defined benefit
plan (employee’s retirement system).

Agency Funds are used to report resources held by the County in a purely custodial capacity {assets equal
liabilities). Agency funds typically involve the receipt, temporary investment, and remittance of fiduciary
resources to school districts, cities and towns, and other agencies located in Tulsa County.

D. Basis of Accounting & Measurement Focus

Basis of accounting determines when transactions and events arc recognized in the accounting records.
Measurement focus refers to what items are being reported in the financial statements.

The Government-wide, the Proprietary, the Fiduciary, and the Component Unit Financial Statements are
presented on an accrual basis of accounting and an economic resource measurement focus. The
Governmental Funds as reported in the Fund Financial Statements are presented on a modified accrual
basis and the current financial resource measurement focus.

Accrual — Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred, regardless
of the timing of the cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are
levied.

Modified Acerual — All governmental Tunds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to
accrual; i.e., both measurable and available. “Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be
determined. “Available” means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used
to pay Habilities of the current period.

Tulsa County defines the length of time used for “available™ for purposes of revenue recognition in the
governmental fund financial statements {0 be 60 days.

In applying the “susceplible to accrual” concept to intergovernmental revenues pursuant to GASB
Statement No. 33, the provider recognizes liabilities and expenses when the applicable eligibility
requirements including time requirements, is met. The recipient under most circumstances, reports
resources transmitied before the eligibility requirements are met, as advances by the provider and as
deferred revenue.

Economic Resource Measurement Focus — Measures both current and long-term assets and liabilities.
A Statement of Nel Assets prepared on the ¢conomic resource measurement focus reports the balances in
capital assets and long-term liabilities as well as the short term assets and liabilities.
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Current Financial Resource Measurement Focus — Activitics of governmental funds are expendable;
the focus is on the receipt and expenditure of resources. Accounting systems of governmental funds are
designed 1o measure (a) the extent to which financial resources obtained during a peried are sufficient to
cover claims incurred during that period against financial resources and (b) the net financial resources
available for future periods.

E. Assets, liabilities, and net assets

Cash and cash equivalents

State law requires that all cash belonging to the County be placed in the custody of the Couaty Treasurer.
A “pooled cash” concept is used in maintaining the cash and investment records. Under this concept, all
cash is pooled together for investment purposes. Interest income is credited to the General Fund, unless

otherwise provided by law, For cash flow statement purposes, cash equivalents with maturity of 3 months
or less are included with cash.

Investments

Investments, except for some U.S. Treasury and Agency obligations with maturities of less than one year,
are reported at fair value. Fair value is the amount at which an investment could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The U.S. Treasury and
agency obligations with maturitics of less than one year are reported at cost, which approximates market
value.

Accounts receivable and taxes receivable

Trade receivables and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncoliectibles.

Notes and mortgage loans receivable

Notes receivable is restricted to the payment of the related long-term debt held as collateral. Morigage
loan receivables are written-off as an expense in the year in which they are deemed uncollectible.
Internal balances

Amounts reported in the fund financial statements as interfund receivables and payables are eliminated in
the entity-wide governmental and business-type activities columns of the Statement of Net Assets, except
for the net residual amounts due between governmental and business-type activities, which are presented

as internal balances,

Due To/Due From — Ameounts owed to one fund or component unit by another which are due within one
year are reported as due to other funds or component units.

Advances to Other Funds — Amounts owed to one fund or component unit by another which are due
within one year are reported as advances to other funds or component units.

Due to other taxing units/others
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Tulsa County acts as a collecting agent for many other governmental entities. The County is responsible
for assessing ad valorem taxes, sending out statements, collecting the tax and distributing collections to
the appropriate recipients. These recipients include, but are not limited to, schools, cities, the City/County
Health Department, the City/County Library, Tulsa Career Tech Scheols and Tulsa Community College.
The County may also collect misceilaneous revenues for all or some of the above-mentioned entities. All
unremitled collections on hand at June 30 are reported as due to other taxing uniis. Unapportioned
collections held in depository accounts are reported as due to others.

Restricted assets

Certain proceeds of the County’s revenue bonds, as well as certain resources thal are set aside for their
repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the government-wide financial statements and proprietary
type fund financial statements balance sheets because their use is limited by applicable bond covenants or
laws/regulations imposed by other governmentai agencies and the restricted asseis are maintained in
separate bank accounts.

Capital assets

Capital asscts, consisting of property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges,
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities
columns in the governmeni-wide financial statements. Capital assets purchased or acquired are carried at
historical cost or estimated historicai cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market
value al the date of the donation. Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly
extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. The cost of normal maintenance and repair that does not
add to the value of the asset or materially extend the asset life is not capitalized.

Interest is capitalized on assets, other than infrastructure assets, acquired with tax-exempt debt. The
amount of interest capitalized is the net interest expense incurred (interest expense less interest income)
from the date of borrowing until completion of the project.

Depreciation on capital assets is calculated on the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful
lives:

Assets Years

Buildings 40-50 years
Building improvements 30-40 years
Machinery & equipment 8-20 years
Signal light installations 20 years
Bridges 75-100 years
Roads and highways 15-40 years

State Statutes require Tulsa County to maintain an inventory of all “working tools, apparatus, machinery
and equipment” with a cost of $500 or more. These items are generally purchased from the “capital
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outlay” accounts of cach elected official or department head. Tulsa County’s capitalization policy for
financial reporting purposes for the capital assets mentioned above has been set at $5,000. The
capitalization threshold for infrastructure improvements has been set at $25,000. All capital outlay
expenditures, therefore, are not necessarily reported as additions to capital asses.

Bond premiums and issuance costs

In the governmental funds, bond premiums and issuance costs are treated as period costs in the year of
issuance. Bond premiums are treated as an “other financing source”. Bond issuance costs are reporied as
expenditure.

In proprietary funds, both bond premiums and issuance costs are deferred and amortized over the term of
the bonds using the effective interest method. Bond premiums are presented as an increase in the face
amount of the revenue bonds payable whereas issuance costs are recorded as other costs.

As part of the recoociliation and presentation at the government-wide level these costs in the
governmental funds are adjusted and reflected similarly to proprietary funds.

Fund balance

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts that
are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for a specific purpose.
Designations of fund balance, if any are appropriate, represent management plans that are subject to
change,

F. Revenues, Expenses and Expendifures
Property tax revenue

The County’s property taxes are levied October 1, on the assessed value listed as of Januvary 1 of the same
year for all real and personal property located in the County, except certain exempt property. The Tulsa
County Assessor is responsible for the valuation of all real and personal property located within Tulsa
County. A revaluation of all property is required once every four years. The assessed value as of January
1, 2008, was $4,588,773.538 after excluding homestead exemptions of $121,894,120.

Tulsa County will levy on October {, 2008, 10.30 mills for General Fund operations, 2.58 mills for the
County Health Department, 5.32 miils for the County Library and .01 mills for Debt Service.

In addition, the County also collects the ad valorem taxes assessed by cities and towns and school districts
and apportions the ad valorem tax collected to the appropriate taxing unit.

Property taxes are collected and apportioned to the County by the Tulsa County Treasurer. Taxes are
levied annually on Qctober | and are due one-half by December 31 and one-half by March 31. Major (ax
payments are received in the months December through April, and are recognized as revenue in the year
levied. Lien dates for personal and real property are in June and October, respectively. Governmental
funds report deferred revenues in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered to be
available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Revenues received within 60 days of year-end are
considered to be available.
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Current year tax collections for the year ended June 30, 2008 were 95.84% of the tax levy. Over the past
ten fiscal years, the average percent outstanding collected is 95.6%%.

Drainage assessments

Each year, property owners in two scparate areas of Tulsa County arc assessed a special tax in order to
maintain levy systems 1o control periodic flooding of the Arkansas River. Levy amounts are determined
based on property values and are billed at the same time as ad valorem taxes. Drainage assessments are
collected by the County Treasurer and maintained in two separate drainage district funds to be expended
for the maintenance of the levy systems. Each district submits an annual budget of expected costs, which
will determine total fevy requirements. Delinquent assessments are handled in the same manner as ad
valorem taxes. Neither district has any outstanding debt. Due to the characteristics of the two funds, they
are preseniled as other Special Revenue Funds i the financial statements of Nonmajor Governmental
Funds,

Grant revenue

The County, a recipient of grant revenues, recognizes revenues when all applicable eligibility
requirements are mef. Resources transmitted to the Couniy before the eligibility requirements are met arce
reported as deferred revenues,

Sales tax revenue

The County has a 5/12" % sales tax Jevy, which is collected by the State of Oklahoma and remitted to the
County monthly. The allocated portion of the sales tax collections is wire transferred by the Oklahoma
Tax Commission {0 the Counly’s Sales Tax Fund, The sales tax coliections are then transferred to the Jail
Operations Fund (Tulsa County Criminal Justice Authority), and to the Tulsa County Industrial Authority,
based on the proportion of the sales tax levy. Funds are disbursed at the direction of the Tulsa County
Board of County Commissioners.

Sales tax revenue 1s recognized in the period when the underlying exchange transaction occurs and the
resources are available.

Compensated absences

It is the County’s policy to permit employees to accumulate carned but unused annual vacation Jeave
benefits. Employees carn annual feave at a rate of 10 days per year for the first 7 years of service and 15
days for 8 years of service through 15 years of service and 20 days per year thercafier. Annual [eave must
be used within the subsequent year. Unused annual leave may be carried forward under certain
circumstances with writlen approval of the official and department manager. All accrued annual leave that
has been earned, is payable to the employee upon layofT, resignation, retirement or death, Each full-time
employee also earns personal (sick) leave at a rate of 1 day per month up to a maximum of 90 days.
There is no liability for unpaid accummulated sick leave, since the County does not have a policy to pay
this amount when employees separale from service. The governmental fund financial statements record
expenditures when employees are paid for annual leave. The government-wide financial statements
present the cost of accumulated vacation leaves as a liability.
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G. Net assets

The governmeni-wide and business-type fund financial statements utilize a net asset presentation. Net
assets are categorized as investment in capital assets (net of related debi), restricted net assets and
unrestricted net assets.

Investment in capital assets (net of related debt) — This component of net assets consists of capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the ouistanding balances of any bonds, morigages,
notes, or other borrowings that are altributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those
assels.

Restricted net assets — Net assets are reported as restricted when constraints placed on net assets use are
etther externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or faws or
regulations of other governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
fegislation. It is the County’s policy to use restricted net assets prior to the use of unrestricted net assets
when both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available for an expense which has been incurred.

Unrestricted net assets — Unrestricted net assefs represent net assets that are not restricted because of
constraints imposed by external partics or imposed by laws of other governments or related to the
acquisition and construction of capital assets. Unrestricted net assets consist of net assets that do not meet
the definition of “restricted” or “invested in capital assets, net of related debt”.

H. Reclassifications in Current Year

The Indusirial Authority’s Capital Project Fund has been renamed Special Revenue Fund to more
accurately reflect the function of this fund. The purpose of this fund is to account for capital projects bond
proceeds, which are primarily expended for or transferred to other governmental units,

In addition, certain historical expenditure accounts and net asset groupings in the Industrial Authority’s
Special Revenue Fund and Debt Service Fund have been reclassified in the current year preseniation,
These reclassifications do not affect reported excess of revenues over expenditures and other financing
sources (uses), or changes in net assets, but do materially 1impact the presentation of net assets.

NOTE II. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
A. Legal and Contractual Obligations

Under Oklahoma taw, the County may not obligate funds for periods extending beyond the current fiscal
year, except for the issuance of general obligation bonds. All lease and lease-purchase agreements,
whether or not they are capitaiized, must be re-approved at the beginning of each fiscal year. Federal and
State grant revenues and expenditures are accounted for in accordance with applicable contract
provisions. General obligation bonds and related interest are levied for and paid in accordance with
appropriate State laws,

Note 111, — Detail Notes on all Funds
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A. Cash and Investments

State Statutes govern Tulsa County’s invesiment policies. Allowable investments for general purposes
(non-pension) include certificates of deposit, savings accounis and direct obligations of the U.S.
Government and its Ageneies. State Statutes also restrict the pension fund investments to the above
investments but afso include certain public and private debt securities. Certificates of deposit are carried
on the County’s books at cost. The interest ecarned at the balance sheet date will be reflecied as a
receivable. Judgments against Tulsa County have typically been purchased by the County’s retirement
system as an investment. The amount reported in the financial statements as fair value represents the
unpaid principal, which will be paid from future property tax receipts.

State Statutes designate the collateral requirements for County deposits. All deposits are to be covered by
pledged securities for amounts not covered by federal deposit insurance. The County’s policy is to
maintain pledged securities at 110% of current deposits. Collateral to be pledged is restricted to
obligations of the federal government and its agencies or obligations of the State of Oklahoma and its
subdivisions. Collateral is identified and registered with the office of State Treasurer. Prior authorization
from the County Treasurer is necessary for any collateral to be released to the bank’s discretion. The
County monitors the collateral requirements on a daily basis to assure all County funds are properly and
adequately covered.

The County’s deposits and investments as of June 30, 2008 are categorized below after defining the
different types of risk disclosures that the County’s deposits and investments are subject to.

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of bank failure, the County’s deposiis may
noi be returned or the County will nat be able 1o recover collateral securities in the possession of an
ouiside party. The County requires deposits 1o be 110 percent secured by collateral valued at market or
par, whichever is lower, less the amount of Federal Deposit Insurance (FDIC) imsurance as detailed in the
Investment Policy approved by the Board and authorized by the Oklahoma State Treasurer under the Unit
Collateral System.

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment wili not fulfill its obligations,
Generally, the County’s investing activities are approved by the Board of County Commissioners and
managed under the custody of the County Treasurer. Investing activities comply with the Investment
Policy adopted by the Board and also comply with State Statutes. The Investment Policy states that the
issuing corporation of prime commercial paper must have the highest credit rating of either Moody’s (P-
1) or Standard & Poor’s (A-1+). The Investment Policy does not provide credit rating guidelines for other
permissible investment vehicles.

Concentration of Credit Risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the County’s investient
is a singie issuer. U.S. Government and Agency securities are excluded from these restrictions.
Investments in Guaranteed Investment Contracls are also considered safe investments and are not
normally included in the calculation of concentration of credit risk.

Interest Rate Risk is the risk that changes in inlerest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Investments held for longer periods are subject to increased risk of adverse interest rate
changes. The Counly provides that te the extent practicable, investments are matched with anticipated
cash flows, Investments are diversified to minimize the risk of foss resulting from over-concentration of
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assels in a specific maturity period, a singie issuer, or an individual ¢lass of securities. To mitigate the
exposure to interest rate risk, the Couniy’ normal policy is to hold long-term, fixed rate debt until
maturity.

Foreign Currency Risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of
an invesiment. The constraints on the international equity portfolio managers are to diversify
internationally across the giobal equity markets. The international equity manager invests in only non-
U.S. dollar denominated eqguity securities. The manager is required to invest in a prudent manner and to
operate under the restrictions indicated in their prospectus. These include regional constraints,
diversification requirements, and the type of securities held.

Governmental Activities-Without EIndustrial Authority, Pooled with Agency Funds
Deposits

On June 30, 2008, the cash and cash equivalents balance for Governmental Activities is $45,603,765
including cash and cash equivalents of $1,194,598 relating to Tulsa County Industrial Authority’s General
Fund, which was reclassified as a non-major Special Revenue Fund. Agency Funds also have total
deposits of $53,712,083. The deposits of Governmental Activities exclusive of the Industrial Authority
are pooled with the deposits of the Agency Funds; several financial institutions maintain the pool, which
is invested in demand accounts or certificates of deposits in the County’s name.

Industrial Authority
Deposits

On June 30, 2008, the cash baltance includes $205,351 and is maintained by three financial institutions in
demand accounts in the Authority’s name.

Investments

[nvestments of the Industrial Authority’s funds are governed by Title 190SA 953.1A, as amended, of the
Oklahoma Statutes. The Oklahoma Statutes places no limitations or restrictions on the choice of
investment vehicles other than those a prudent investor would select. All investments are carried in street

name (in the name of the agent, ctc.).

The composition of the Industrial Authority’s reported cash and cash equivalents of $1,194,598 and
investments of $211,680,091 is shown in the following table.
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Number of Years o
Average Credit | Maturity (2)
Fair Value Cost Quality/Rating (1}

Money Market (U.S. $ 106,558,504 $106,558,504 AAA .02
Treasuries)
Guaranteed 44,454,348 44,454 348 AAA 7.98
Investment Contract
BOK Investor Fund 61,656,486 61,656,480 N/A N/A
Corporale (3)
Cash 205,351 205,351 N/A N/A
Total Investments $ 212,874,869 $212,874 869

(1) Ratings are provided where applicable to indicate Credit Risk. N/A indicates not applicable,

(2) Interest Rate Risk is estimated using weighted average days to maturity.

(3) The BOK Investor Fund does not have a weighted average to maturity. It is an internal money
market fund whose rate is tied to the American Performance Cash Management Fund plus 5 basis
points. It is not rated but collateralized.

As of June 30, 2008, the Industrial Authority had the following investments and maturities:

Investment Maturities (In Years)

Fair Value Less than | 1-5 6-10 More than 10

Money Market (U.S. $106,558.504 70.56% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Treasuries)

Guaranteed Investment 44,454 348 00% 3.35% 26.09% 0.0%
Contract

BOK  Investor Fund 61,656,486 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Corporate

Cash 205,351 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Total Investments §212,874,869 70.56% 335% 26.09% 0.0%

Proprietary Activities (Tulsa County Public Facilities Authority)

Cash and Investments

Horsemen's Trust Account

Included in the Horseman’s Trust Account is cash held in a custodial capacity, for the payment of purses
during the live racing meet. A liability for these amounts has been recorded and is included in liability to
Horsemen.

Restricted cash and investments

Restricted assets consist primarily of cash and investments held by a bank trustee for debt service
payments and managed pursuant to the bond indenture. In accordance with the bond indentures and state

statutes, authorized investimenis consist of abligations of the U.S. Treasury, agencies and
instrumentalities, investment contracts, commercial paper, repurchase agreements and money market
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mutual funds, During fiscal year 2008, the Authority invested in money market mutual funds and
investment contracts.

The Authority does not have formal policies covering credit, interest rate, or foreign currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the Authority’s investments in money market mutual funds reported as cash
equivalents at June 30, 2008 amounted to $16,781,424. As of June 30, 2008 for the investments held in
money market mutual funds were rated AAA by Standard and Poor’s. The carrying amount of the
Authority’s investment in investment contracts at June 30, 2008 was $1,176,500. There was no credit
rating available for the investment contracts as of June 30, 2008, Carrying amounts approximate market
value for the Authority’s investments.

Custodial credit risk-Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Authority’s deposits may not be
returned to it. The Authority does not have a policy to limit custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2008,
$2,364,483 of the Authority’s bank balance of $4,111,754 was uninsured and uncollateralized, resulting
in exposure to custodial credit risk.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Tulsa City/County Health Department

All cash is maintained by the Treasurer of Tulsa County and is subject to the depository collateral risk of
all paoled funds of Tulsa County.

Restricied cash consists of money market funds held in trust at a local bank for repayment of debt.

The Department has designated cash of $529,270 for seli-insurance, and $200,000 designated for
equipment failure contingency. The Department has also designated $1,504,576 for capital improvements.

Tulsa County Criminal Justice Authority

State statutes designate the collateral requirements for the Authority’s deposits. All deposits are to be
covered by pledged securities for amounts not covered by federal deposit insurance. The Authority’s

policy is to maintain pledged securities at 110 percent of current deposits. No gains were realized as a
result of the sale of investments during the year ended June 30, 2008,

At June 30, 2008, cash and cash equivalents and investments include money market accounts and Federal
Home Bank guaranteed debt. All accounts are held through Tulsa County. The money market and sweep
accounis are invested in U.S, government backed securities and, therefore, are not subject to the collateral
depository risks. Money market and sweep accounts represented approximately $1,240,326 at June 30,
2008. Funds pooled with Tulsa County funds were $2,000,000 at June 30, 2008.

Tulsa County Home Finance Authority

Oklahoma state statutes govern the investment policies of all Tulsa County agencies, including the
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Authority. Allowable investments include certificates of deposits, savings accounts and direct obligations
of the U.S. government and its agencies, The Authority’s deposits of cash and cash equivalents at
December 31, 2007 are categorized in the table below to give an indication of the level of risk assumed.

Bank deposits, consisting of cash and U.S treasury money market accounts, are carried at market value.
Bank deposits are as follows:

Bank deposits Carrying Financial
Amouni Institution

Balance

Insured deposits $ 12,526 $12,526
Un-insured deposits 540,715 540,715
Total bank deposits $553,241 § 553,241

Insured deposits are fully insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Cerporation (FDIC). Un-insured
deposits are deposits in excess of FDIC coverage, including any bank balance that is collateralized with
securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent in the Authority’s name.
Any difference between the carrying amount and the financial institution balance would be due to
outstanding checks. While the Authority has a large amount of cash and cash equivalients that are
considered un-insured deposiis, these funds are invested in a U.S. treasury security money market fund,
the underlying investments of which are backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. government.

Pension Trust Fund (TCERS)
Deposits

On June 30, 2008, the cash balance was $564,719, and is maintained by the Bank of Oklahoma in &
demand account in the County’s name.

Custodial eredit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of bank failure, the retirement system’s
deposits may not be returned or the retirement system may not be able (o recover collateral securities in
the possession of an outside party. According to Title 62 OSA 517.4, Security for Local Public Deposits
Act, the amount of the collateral securities or instruments to be pledged for the security of public deposits
shail be established by the treasurer of the public entity. The Tulsa County Treasurer with the approval of
the retirement system requires deposits to be 110 percent secured by collateral valued a market or par;
whichever is lower, less the amount of Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insurance. The
Bank of Oklahoma has placed the required collateral securities in a restricted account at a Federal Reserve
Bank, which serves Oklahoma. The market vaiue of pledged securities shall be provided not less than
quarterly to the treasure by either the financial institution holding the deposit or the financial institution
holding the collateral sccurities, which market value must have been obtained from an independent,
recognized and documented source. TCERS’s deposits are not exposed to custodial credit risk because the
deposits are insured by FDIC insurance and are collateralized.

Invesimenis

Investments of the TCERS s funds are governed by Title 1908A 953.1 A, as amended, of the Oklahoma
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Statutes. The Oklahoma Statutes places no limitations or restrictions on the choice of investment vehicles
other than those a prudent investor would select. The Board of Trustees has retained five outside
investment management firms to manage six different portfolios for the retirement system except for
certain judgments against Oklahoma government entities and a small amount of cash. Bank of Oklahoma
Trust Services is the custodian of cash and investments. All investment securities are not exposed to
custodial credit risk because all securities are held by a third party custodian rather than a counterparty
and are carried in streel name.

The composition of the retirement system’s investments as of June 30, 2008 is shown in the following
table:

Weighted  Average
Average  Credit | Number of Years to
Fair Value Cost Quality/Rating (1) | Maturity (2)
Money Market Mutual Fund $ 6,722,237 £6,722,237 AAA -
U.S. Government 20,529,737 19,6963,353 N/A 8.7
U.S. Agency obligations 20,156,513 20,075,419 AGY 6.6
Corporate Bonds 36,689,787 37,194,286 A 5.4
Domestic stocks 62,905,389 58,408,855 N/A N/A
International stocks 37,721,283 16,878,515 N/A N/A
Judgments 141,000 141,000 N/A N/A
Tolal Investments $184,865,946 $159,113,665

(1) Ratings are provided where applicable to indicate Credit Risk. N/A indicates not applicable.
(2) Interest Rate Risk is estimated using weighted average days to maturity.

As of June 30, 2008, the retirement system had the following investiments and maturities:

Investment Maturities (In Years)

Fair Value Less than | 1-5 6-10 More than 10
U.S. Government (1) 20,529,737 0.0% 13.4% 9.9% 32%
U.S, Agencies (2) 20,156,513 9% 3.3% 4.0% 17.4%
Corporale Bonds 36,089,787 1.4% 23.1% 14.5% 8.9%
Total Investments $77,376,037 2.3% 39.8% 28.4% 29.5%

(1) Includes Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA) investments, which are explicitly
guaranteed by the U.S. government.
(2) Investments in various agencies, which are not explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. Government.

The Board has adopted the following asset allocation among stocks, bonds, and cash to serve as a general
guideline in investing the Plan’s assets.
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Minimum Target Maximum
Domestic equity 7.5% 37.5% 67.5%
Core Equity 0.0% 10.0% 20.0%
Mid Capitalization 7.5% 17.5% 27.5%
Small Capitalization 0% 10% 20%
International equity 12.5% 22.5% 32.5%
Bonds (maturity greater than 1 year) 30% 40% 50%
Cash (maturity less than 1 year) 1% 0% 5%

TCERS s mternational equity portfolio comprises 20.4 % of the total portfolio investments at fair value as
of June 30, 2008. The manager of this pooled portiolio does not hedge the foreign currency risk and the
Investment Policy does not require it

B. Receivables
Receivablies as of year-end for the County’s individual major funds and aggregate nonmajor

governmental funds, and proprietary fund, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible ad
valorem taxes, as reported in the government wide Statement of Net Assets are as follows:

Industrial Endustrial Nonmajor
Sales Autitority Authority Govern Total
General County Tax Special Debt mental Proprietary Primary
Fund Highway Fund Revenue Service Funds Fands Government
Recefvables:
interest
Recervable $158,339 513,019 $31,603 $38,137 $432,243 $1,124 50 5676,466
Ad Valorem
Tasxes Reeeivable 2,050,371 0 0 0 0 26,098 0 2,076,469
Sales Tax
Receivable 0 0 16,676,295 0 0 0 G 16,676,295
Use Tax
Reeeivable ¢ 0 1,145,243 0 0 0 0 1,145.215
Accounts
Receivable 0 0 0 0 0 0 761,449 761,449
Intergovernmental
Receivables 395227 1,225,640 G ¢ 0 559,273 1,145,215 3,325,355
Gross
Receivables 2,603,937 1,240,659 17,853,113 38,137 432,243 586,495 1,906,604 24,661,248

Less: Allowance
for Uincollectible 88,373 G 0 0 ¢ 1,125 Q 89,498
Ad Valorem Taxes

Net
Receivables 52515564 $1,240,659 $17,853,113 $38,137 $432,243 $585,370 51,906,664 $24,571,751
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Transfers

Purpose of Trans{ers

Transfers are used 1o (1) move sales tax revenues from the Special Revenue Fund established to collect
the sales tax revenues to the funds established by the various Authorities that wilf expend the funds and
(2) move receipts restricted {o debt service from the funds collecting the receipts to the Debt Service Fund
as debt service payments become due.

Transfers for the year ended June 30, 2008, consist of the following amounts:

TRANSFERS FROM
INDUSTRIAL
SHERIFF AUTHORITY INDUSTRIAL OTHER
COUNTY SPECIAL AUTHORITY GOVERNIME]
GENERAL HIGHWAY SALES TAX JAaL. REVENUE DEBT SERVICE NTAL
------------ TRANSFERS I --xennrern FUND FUND FUND Funo FUND FUND FUNDS
Arimary Govarmimont:
Governinental Aclivities:
Major Funds:
General Fund 5510882 54,763 . 3,700 - - 5442419
County Highway Fund 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
Sales Tax Fund - -
Tulsa County Industrial Authoity
Special Revenue Fund 9,217,338 - 9,217,339
Debt Service Fund 8,843 419 - - - 8,843,419 - -
Sulby-total Majer Funds 24,571 640 - 64,763 - 3,700 £,843,418 9,217,338 5,442,419
Nonmajor Governmental Funds:
Other Nonmajor Funds 10,969,438 7,707 286 1,161,844 201 A36 - - - 1898672
Sub-tolat Nonmajor Funds 10,969 438 7,707,386 1,161,944 201,438 - - - 1,888,672
Total Governmental Activities 35,541,078 7,707,386 1,226,707 201,436 3,700 8,843,419 9,217,339 B.341,001
Business-Type Activilies:
Public Facities Authority $,624,221 - - 6,624,221
Telal Business-type Aclivilie £,624,221 - - 6,624 221
“otal Primary Government 42 165,299 7,707 386 1,226,707 6,825 B57 3,700 8843418 §.217,33% 8,341 091
‘he Statement of Aclivities reports; Transfers- Transfers Net
In Qu Transfers
imary Government
Cavernmerdal Activities 35 541,078 {42,165,200) (6 624,221)
Business-type Aclivilies 6,624,221 ] 5,624,221

‘otal Primary Government 42,165,298 (42,165,299)
e e, T ———

The transfers between the Business-type Activities and the Government Activities net to zero for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.
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C. Capital assets

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2008 was as {ollows:

L.and

Construction in progress
Total non-depreciable
Depreciable assets:

Buildings

Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total capital assefs being
depreciated

Capital Assets
Accumulated Depreciation:

Buildings

Machinery and eguipment
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation
Depreciable assets, net
Governmental capital assets, net

§

Beginning Ending

Balance Increases Decreases Balance
21,620,120 § 119,726 § 1,750 § 21,738,096
21,379,709 7,658,632 10,874,366 18,163,975
42,999,829 7,778,358 10,876,116 39,902,071
30,040,560 20,585 - 30,061,145
26,532,070 2,398,231 1,416,193 27,514,108
81,708,230 8,199,716 735,507 89,172,458
135,280,880 10,618,532 2,151,700 146,747,711
181,280,709 18,396,890 13,027,816 186,649,782
19,415,894 402,820 - 19,818,714
13,332,960 1,828,689 1,056,030 14,105,619
30,284,759 2,634,330 553,633 32,385,456
63,033,613 4 885,836 1,609,663 06,309,789
75,247,267 5,732,693 542,037 80,437,922
118,247,096 §% 13,511,051 & 11418,151 § 120,339,993

The capital assets reported under Governmental Activities includes the Industrial Authority’s Capital Assets, which
are as follows:

Industrial Authority:
Non-depreciable assets:

58

Land

Total non-depreciable

$
¥

Beginning Linding

Balance Increases Decreases Balance
2,360,964 % - 8 - § 2,360,964
2,360,964 % - % - 2,360,964

The capital assets in the Industrial Authority represent expenditures incurred in connection with certain
Vision 20235 projects for various non-profit eatities. The expenditures were initiaily capitalized by the
Industrial Authority as land and construction in progress as the facilities were being constructed. Upon

completion in fiscal 2007, the facilities were made available for use by the certain non-profit

organizations under long-lterm capital iease arrangements which only require nominal restal payments.
Under applicable accounting guidance, the accumulated construction costs have been expensed by the
Industrial Authority in fiseal 2007, and the land will remain on the books of the Industrial Authority.
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Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Business-type activities:
Non-depreciable assets:
Land $ 096,000 $ - 3 - % 96,000
Construction in progress 6,347,671 28,582,160 15,202,966 19,726,865
Total non-depreciable 6,443,671 28,582,160 15,202,960 19,822,865
Depreciable assets:
Buiidings and system 112,924,595 17,266,599 - 130,191,194
Equipment 10,332,629 031,876 - 11,264,505
Total capital assets being
depreciated 106,508,460 16,748,764 “ 123,257,224
Capital Assets 123,257,224 18,198,475 - 141,455,699
Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings 35,739,310 4,416,494 - 40,155,804
Equipment 5,813,535 736,695 - 6,550,230
Tatal accumuiated
depreciation 41,552,845 5,153,189 - 46,706,034
Depreciable assets, net 81,704,379 13,045,280 - 94,749,665
Business-type capital assets, net $ 88,148,050 § 41,627446 § 15202966 114,572,530
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Discretely Presented Component Units:
Capital Assets Non-
depreciable assets:
Land and improvements $ 5,293,624 % - 3 - % 5,293,624
Total non~depreciable 5,293,624 - - 5,293,624
Depreciable Capital Assets:
Buildings 84,873,030 - 8,093 84,864,937
Equipment 3,806,646 1,134,750 - 4,941,396
Infrastruciure 131,148 - - 131,148
Total depreciable capital
assels: 88,810,824 1,134,750 8,003 89,937,481
Total Capital Assets 94,104,448 1,134,750 8,093 95,231,105
Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings 21,321,937 2,145,095 203 23,466,829
Equipment 2,477,037 484,362 - 2,961,399
Infrastructure 5,186 2,623 - 7,809
Total accumulated
depreciation 23,804,160 2,632,080 203 26,436,037
Depreciable Capital Assets, net 05,006,664 -1,497,330 7,890 63,501,444
Component Units capital assets, net  § 70,300,288 §$ -1,497.330 % 7,890 § 68,795,068
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Depreciation expense is charged to function as follows:

60

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Component Units
Public Facilities Criminal Justice
General Government $ 1,218,343 Authority § 5,153,189 Authority $ 2,220,188
B City/County

Public Safety 54,409 $ 5,153,189 Health 431,893
Health & Welfare 81,454 $ 2,652,081
Culture & Recreation 456,209
Education 2,046
Roads & Highways 3,073,376

5_ 4885839

The total of governmental capital assets, net, as presented above as of June 30, 2008 is $117,979,029 and
the Industrial Authority had an additional $2,360,964 reported as land, which together provides the
individual components of the amount reported for capital assets used in governmenial actlivities that is
presented on the governmental activities Statement of Net Assets. The reconciliation of the Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of
Activities reports that capital outlay exceeded depreciation expense during the current period by $81,836.
Depreciation expense during the current period for Governmental Activities is $4,885,839 while capital
outlays totaled $4,967,675 resulting in the reconciling amount of $81,836.

E. Judgments Payable

Under Oklahoma law, judgments granted against the County are payable over a three year period and bear
annual interest at four (4) percentage points above the average United States Treasury Bill rate for the
preceding year, nol (0 exceed 10% per annum. Judgments are levied against all taxable property within
the County and are accumulated and paid out of the Debt Service Fund. During the year, the County paid
$75,500 in judgments principal and $14,624 in related interest on these judgments. At June 30, 2008, the
total amount of unpaid judgment principal of $144,333 is reflected in the government wide Statement of
Net Assets.

F. Notes and Mortgage Loans Payable

The Tulsa County Home Finance Authority has various notes and mortgage loans payable as follows:
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Nonmajor Component Unit Principal Interest
Home Finance Authority $ 623,240 $ 398,577
Total $ 623,240 $£398,577
The estimated aggregate future debt service requirements are as follows:

Year Ended Principal Interest

2008 i 24,583 $ 46,099

2009 27,388 44,137

2010 29,501 42,024

2011 38777 39,747

2012 34,229 37,295

2013 2017 215,086 142,537

2018 - 2022 260,676 46,738

Tota} $ 623,240 5 398,577

The Tulsa County Home Finance Authority has a mortgage loans payable of $623,240 at fiscal year end.
The mortgage loans payable is the outstanding obligations for homes purchased by the Tulsa County
Home Finance Authority under the 203(k) Demonstration Housing Program. A total of twenty-five (25)
homes remain as inventory and serve as collateral for the outstanding mortgage ioans payable, The
Authority must make monthly payments on the mortgages to cover principal reduction, interest, and
escrow payments, The monthly payment required for the remaining twenty-five (25) rental properties are
approximately $6,000. The outstanding mortgage loans are thirty-year, 7.5% fixed rate, and FHA
assumable. The majority of the mortgage loans were initiated in 1992.

G. Compensated Absences

Employees earn annual vacation leave at a rate of 10 days per year for the first 7 years of service and 15
days per year for years 8 through 15 and 20 days per year thereafter. Vacation leave must be used within
the subsequent year. Unused vacation time may be carried forward under special circumstances with
wrilten permission of the official or department manager. All accrued vacation time that has been earned
is payable to the employee upon layoff, resignation, retirement or death. Each full-time employee also
earns personal (sick) leave at a rate of 1 day per month up to a maximum of 90 days. This accrued time is
not payable to the employee upon termination of employment. The amount of accumulated unpaid
vacation benefits including the employer FICA portion is $3,261,221 for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2008. $2,688,688 is reported as a current liability for compensated absences, and the remainder of
$572,533 is shown as a non-current liability in the government wide Statement of Nel Assets.
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H. Capital Leases
Governmental Activities

The County acquires machinery and equipment, finances the acquisition of buildings, and makes
improvements to golf courses through lease-purchase agreements. Oklahoma law prohibils the County
from entering into contracts of this nature for longer than one year. It is the County’s intent to exercise its
right to purchase this property: accordingly, the lease-purchase agreements have been capitalized to
conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The unpaid portion
of these agreements have been reported as capitalized lease obligations both as a current and a non-
current Hability in the Statement of Net Assets at an amount equal to the present value of all remaining
payments to maturity. Assuming that all capital leases are renewed each year by resolution of the Board
of County Commissioners, minimum lease commitments under capitalized lease-purchase agreements as
of June 30, 2008 are as follows:

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Totals
2009 $ 816,814 § 328,774 § 1,145,588

2010 712,979 300,004 1,013,043

2011 444,084 274,237 718,321

2012 461,479 256,540 718,419

2013 315,000 238,636 553,636
2014-2018 1,775,000 983,794 2,758,794
2019-2023 2,210,000 547,590 2,757,590
2024-2025 1,185,000 59,338 1,244,338
Total $ 7,920,356 % 2989372 § 10909728

Changes in all types of capital leases as reflected in the statement of net assets are as follows:

Balance Balance Due Within

7172007 Additions Deletions 6/30/2008 One Year
Building & Improvements  § 1,081,605 % - 3 393,657 & 687,948 % 402,948
Golf courses 6,915,000 - 270,000 6,645,000 275,000
Eguipment 719,548 - 132,140 587,408 138,866
$ 8,716,133  § - % 795,797 % 7.920,356 § 816,814

Component Unit: Tulsa City/County Health Department

On December 1, 1997, Tulsa County Industrial Authority (TCIA) issued $9,720,000 of Health Facilities
Revenue bonds. A capital lease with the Department secures repayment of these bonds. The bonds were
issued at a discount that 1s amortized over the term of the lease. The amount of the discount is $447,482
at June 30, 2008. The amortization of these costs is included as a component of interest expense and was
approximately $14,000 during the year ended June 30, 2008, A portion of the bond proceeds was retained
in trust and is used to retire interest and principal of the capital fease. At June 30, 2008, $991,924 was
held for future debt payments. Under the terms of the lease, quarterly payments are made 1o the bond
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trustee for retirement of the applicable bonds and the related interest. The lease matures in December
2027, bears interest from 4 to 5 percent and is secured by certain property.

The Pepartment leases certain land and buildings, improvement, and equipment under an agreement
classified as a capital lease. The cost of these assets represents approximately $8,111,200 and
accumulated amortization at June 30, 2008, was approximately $1,689,244. Capital lcases are capitalized
using intercst rates appropriate at the inception of the lease. Amortization of these assets is included in
depreciation expense.

Minmurmn lease commitments under the capital lease are as follows:

Year Ended June 30: Principal Interest Total
2000 % 220,000 % 395,000 § 615,000

2010 230,000 383,000 613,000

2011 240,000 372,000 612,600

2012 250,000 359,000 609,000

2013 265,000 346,000 611,000

2014-2018 1,535,000 1,515,000 3,050,000
2019-2023 1,955,000 1,080,000 3,035,000
2024-2028 3,305,000 506,875 3,811,875

3 8,000,000 § 4,956,875 § 12,956,875

The Department leases certain copy machines under an agreement classified as a capital lease. The costs
of these assets represent approximately $153,840. Capital leases are capitalized using interest rates
appropriate at the inception of the lease. Amortization of these assets in included in depreciation expense.
The future maturities of copier leases are as follows:

Year Ended June 30: Future Maturities
2009 $21,830
2010 23,374
2011 26,793
2012 10,133
2013 2,493

Changes in all types of debt and compensated absences as reflected in the statement of net assets are as
follows:

Balance Balance Due Within

77172007 Additions Deletions 6/30/2008 One Year
Capitai lease-Building  $ 8,210,000 § - 3 210,000 % 8,000,000 3 220,600
Capital lease-Copiers 209,335 67,840 45,735 81,440 21,830
Compensated absences 863,774 105,192 38,079 910,887 46,896

$ 9,103,109 § 203,032 8 313,814 § 8,992,327 § 288,726
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I. Operating Leases

Tulsa County leases office facilities under operating leases. Oklahoma law prohibits the County from
obligating funds for periods exceeding one year. Tulsa County’s obligation are contingent upon the
BOCC appropriating funds each fiscal year sufficient to pay any required lease payments due and payable
for that fiscal year. Total costs for such leases were $170,686 for the year ended June 30, 2008, The future
minimum lease payments under these operating leases are as follows:

Year Ending June 30 Amount
2009 223,609
2010 243,108
2011 250,813
2012 259,825
2013 135,492

Thereafter 33,873

Total $1,146,720

Business-type Activities

The Public Facilities Authority leases certain equipment under noncancelable operating feases. As of June
30, 2008, the future minimum lease payments are as feliows;

Year Ending fune 30 Amount
2009 $100,128

2010 96,908

2011 94,4064
$291,500

Rent expense under these lease agreements during ihe year ended June 30, 2008 was $101,126.

J. General Long-term Bonded Debt

Governmental Activities

The General Fund and the Debt Service Funds (Tulsa County and Tulsa County Industrial Authority) are
used to liquidate liabilities such as revenue bonds payable, capital leases, judgments, and compensated
absences. Puring the conversion to the full accrual basis of accounting, the result of adding the current
and non-current portion of revenue bonds payable to the positive amount of reserved fund balance on the
Tulsa County Industrial Authority’s Balance Sheet-Governmental Funds results in a negative balance in




unrestricted net assets on the Tulsa County Industrial Authority’s Statement of Net Assets, Debt service
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of the revenue bonds is to be repaid from future sales tax collections and is a different revenue stream

from the proceeds of bonds which finances the “4 to Fix the County™ and Vision 2025 projects. The

purpose for “4 to Fix the County” funding primarily related to Tulsa County facility improvements, road

expansion, park, and Expo square capital improvements. The purpose of Vision 2025 funding was for

capital improvements for American Airlines, which will promote economic development for and provide

additional jobs and payroll within Tulsa County, education, health care and events facilities, which will

promote economic development for and provide additional jobs and payroll within Tulsa County, and
capital improvements for community enrichment within Tulsa County.

Changes in all types of debt as reflected in the Statement of Net Assets are as follows:

Revenue bonds payable-2003
Revenue bonds payable-2005
Revenue bonds payable-2005
Revenue bonds payable-2006
Revenue bonds payable-2006
Revenue bonds payable-2000
Premium on debt issuance
Subtotal

Capital lease payable
Judgments payabie

Compensated absences

Total

Balance Balance Due Within
7-1-07 Additions Deletions 6-30-68 One Year
194,800,000 $ - 16,300,000 % 178,500,000 % 16,600,000
128,115,000 - 11,490,300 116,625,000 11,950,000
55,500,000 - 4,700,000 50,800,000 4,950,000
12,910,000 - - 12,910,000 -
31,650,000 - - 31,650,000 -
47,090,000 - 11,070,000 36,420,000 11,575,000
18,016,386 - 3,319,342 14,697,004 -
488,081,380 - 46,879,342 441,202,004 45,075,000
8,716,153 - 795,797 7,920,356 816,814
124,833 95,000 75,500 144,333 62,167
2,666,868 4,202,644 3,608,291 3,261,221 2,688,688
499,589.240 § 4297644 51,358,930 § 452527954 § 48,642,669

The total of general long-term bonded debt as presented above as of June 30, 2008 is $452,527,954,
which provides the individual components of the amount reported for long-term liabilities ($441,202,004
for the revenue bond issues and $11,325,910 for the remaining long-term liabilities) used in governmental
activities that is presented on the government wide Statement of Net Assets. The purpose for which the
general long-term bonded debt is issued is to finance the capital projects of the Tulsa County Industrial

Authority, which entrust the capital projects to Tulsa County and other Beneficiaries.

During 2003 the Authority issued the $242,150,000 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Funds to pay
the revenue bonds will come from the sales tax that was approved by voters in September 2003, The
proceeds from the bond will be used to fund:

+  Capital improvements for American Airlines which will promote economic development for and
provide additional jobs and payrolt for the County;
* Education, health care and event facilities which will promote economic development for and

provide additional jobs and payroll within the County;

¢ Capital improvements for community enrichment within the County.

65



66

Talss County, Oklahoma
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 20608

Tulsa County began collecting those taxes in January 2004 and will continue collection for the next
thirteen years. Interest on the bonds for the Series 2003A bonds will be at a variable rate, (3.60% at June
30, 2007 and remarketed twice a year), and the Series 2003B bonds are at rates of 4 to 5 percent and paid
in semi-annual intervals along with the principal coupons on May 15, 2005 and ending May 15, 2017
The amount outstanding at June 30, 2008 was §178,500,000.

Debt requirements for the years ending June 30 are as follows:

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 16,600,000 $ 7,170,330 $ 23,770,330

2010 17,150,000 6,314,900 23,464,900

2011 17,600,000 5,457,400 23,057,400

2012 - 4,577,400 4,577,400

2013 - 4,577,400 4,577,400
2014-2017 127,150,000 18,309,600 145,459,600
Totals $178,500,000 $46,407,030 $224,907.030

During 2005 the Authority issued the $130,000,600 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds. Funds to pay
the revenue bonds will come from the sales tax that was approved by voters in September 2003, The
proceeds from the bond will be used to fund:

¢ Capital improvements for American Airlines which will promole economic development for and
provide additional jobs and payroll for the County,

*  Lducation, health care and event facilities which will promote economic develaopment for and
provide additional jobs and payroll within the County;

e (Capital improvements for community enrichment within the County.

Tulsa County began collecting those taxes in January 2004 and will continue collection for the next
thirteen years. Interest on the bonds for the Series 2005A bonds will be at a variable rate, (3.60% at June
30, 2008 and remarketed twice a vear), and the Series 20058 bonds are at a fixed rate of 5 percent and
paid in semi-annual intervals beginning on November 15, 2005, Principal coupons begin on May 15,
2006 and end May 15, 2017, The amount outsianding at June 30, 2008 was $116,625,000.

Debt requirements for the years ending June 30 are as follows:

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 11,950,000 $ 5,608,790 $ 17,558,790

2010 12,240,000 5,011,290 17,251,290

2011 12,720,000 4,399,290 17,119,290

20142 31,340,000 3,763,290 35,103,290

2013 32,485,000 2,196,290 34,681,290
2014-2017 15,890,000 572,040 16,462,040
Totals $116,625,000 $21,550,990 $138,175,990
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During 2006 the Authority issued the $60,000,000 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds. Funds to pay
the revenue bonds will come from the sales tax that was approved by voters in September 2003. The
proceeds from the bond will be used to fund:

s Capital improvements for American Airlines which will promote economic development for and
provide additional jobs and payroll for the County;

* Education, health care and event facilities which will promote economic development for and
provide additional jobs and payroll within the County;

*  Capital improvements for community enrichment within the County.

Tulsa County began collecting those taxes in January 2004 and will continue collection for the next
thirteen years. Interest on the bonds for the Series 2005C bonds will be 5 percent and paid in semi-annual
intervals beginning on May 15, 2006 and ending May 15, 2017. The amount outstanding at June 30, 2008
was $50,800,000.

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 4,950,000 $ 2,540,000 $ 7,490,000

2010 5,225,000 2,292,500 7,517,500

2011 5,300,000 2,031,250 7,331,250

2012 5,000,000 1,766,250 6,766,250

2013 5,600,000 1,516,250 7,116,250
2013-2017 24,725,000 3,143,750 27,868,750
Totals $50,800,000 $13,290,000 $64,090,000

During 2006 the Authority issued the $12,910,000 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds. Funds (o pay
the revenue bonds will come from the sales tax that was approved by voters in December 2005. The
proceeds from the bond will be used to fund the following projects:

* Juvenile justice center and courthouse complex renovations, improvements, [urnishings and
equipment;

*  Capital improvements at each of the Tulsa County Parks;

*  Phase three of Expo Square’s Master Plan, and;

* Improving setected County roads.

Tulsa County began coliecting those taxes in October 2006 and will continue collection for the next five
years. Interest on the bonds for the Series 2006A bonds will be 3.5 and 5 percent paid in semi-annual
intervals beginning on January 1, 2007 and ending January 1, 2012. The amount outstanding at June 30,
2008 was $12,910,000.

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2009 $- $ 548,750 $ 548,750
2010 - 548,750 548,750
2011 6,450,000 548,750 6,998,750
2012 6,460,000 435,875 6,895,875
Totals $12,910,000 $2,082,125 $14,992,125

67|



Tulsa County, Oklahoms
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2008

During 2007 the Authority issued the $31,650,000 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds. Funds to pay
the revenue bonds will come from the sales tax that was approved by voters in September 2003, The
proceeds from the bond will be used to fund:

¢ Capital improvements for American Airlines which will promote economic development for and
provide additional jobs and payrol} for the County;

*  [ducation, health care and event facilities which wilf promote economic deveiopment for and
provide additional jobs and payrol! within the County;

*  (Capital improvements for community enrichment within the County.

Tulsa County began collecting those taxes in January 2004 and will continue collection for the next
thirteen years. Interest on the bonds for the Series 2006 B bonds will be 4.25 and 5 percent paid on semi-
annual intervals beginning on November [5, 2006 and ending May 15, 2017, Interest on the Serics 2000
C Bonds will be 3.94 and 3.99 percent paid on semi-annual intervals beginning November 15, 2006 and
ending May 15, 2015, The amount outstanding at June 30, 2008 was $31,650,000. Debt requirements for
the years ended June 30 are as follows:

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2009 $ - $ 1,432,375 $ 1,432,375

2010 2,200,000 1,432,375 3,632,375

2011 2,400,000 1,338,875 3,738,875

2012 2,425,000 1,236,875 3,061,875

2013 2,650,000 1,127,750 3,777,750
2014-2017 21,975,000 2,146,500 24,121,500
Totals $ 31,650,000 $ 8,714,750 $ 40,364,750

During 2007 the Authority issued the $47,090,000 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds. Funds to pay
the revenue bonds wiil come from the sales tax that was approved by voters in December 2005, The
proceeds from the bond will be used to fund the following projects:

e Juvenile justice center and courthouse complex renovations, improvements, furnishings and
equipment;

*  Capital improvements at each of the Tulsa County Parks;

*  Phase three of Expo Square’s Master Plan, and,

¢ Improving selected County roads.

Interest on the bonds for the Series 2006 I bonds will be 3.375 and 5.25 percent paid in semi-annual
intervals beginning on July 1, 2007 and ending January 1, 2011. The amount outstanding at June 30, 2008
was $36,020,000.

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 11,575,000 31,520,988 $ 13,095,988
2040 12,000,000 936,813 12,936,813
2011 12,445,000 424,688 12,869,688
Totals $ 36,020,000 $ 2,882,489 $ 38,902,489
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Conduit Debt Obligations

The Tulsa County Industrial Authority has issued industrial revenue bonds and other debt instruments that
provide financial assistance to private sector and other governmental entities for the acquisition and
construction of industrial and commercial facilities that is deemed to be in the public interest. The bonds
and notes (conduif debt obligations) are secured by the property financed and are payable solely from
payments received on the underlying mortgage foans. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of the
acquired facilities transfers to the private-sector entity served by the bond issuance. The Authority, the
County, the State, nor any other political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of
the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds and notes are not reported as Habilities in the accompanying financial
statements. The total amount of conduit debt obligations outstanding as of June 30, 2008 was
$413,439,657.

Tulsa County Home Finance Authority has conduit debt obligations that are certain limited-
obligation revenue bonds, certificates of participation, or similar debt instruments issued by a
state or local government entity for the express purpose of providing capital financing for a
specific third party that is not a part of the issuer’s financial reporting entity, Although conduit
debt obligations bear the name of the governmental issuer, the issuer has no obligation for such
debt beyond the resources provided by a lease or loan with the third party on whose behalf they
are issued. The bonds issued by the Authority are conduit debt and are not the legal obligation of
the Authority, County, State nor any political subdivision and are payable solely from the
pledged revenues. Accordingly, the Authority has elected to exclude the conduit debt as a
liability and the related assets from their statement of net assets. The total amount of conduit debt
obligations outstanding as of December 31, 2007 was $221,304,262.

Business-Type Activities

Revenue bonds outstanding consist of unmatured debt issued by the Tulsa County Public Facilities
Authority (TCPFA). TCPFA has been included as an Enterprise Fund within the basic financial
statements for financial reporting purposes. The debt of TCPFA does not constitute debt of the County
and is solely payable from resources of TCPFA. Primarily the revenues derived from Expo Square fairs
and exhibits collateralize revenue bonds.

Long-term Liabilitics

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2008, was as follows:

69



| 70

Tulsa County, Oklahoma
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2608

Beginning Ending Pue within
Balance Increases Decreases Balance One Year

Bonds payable
Series 2003 revenue 54,700,000 $500,000 1 $4,200,000 $550,000
bonds
Series 2005 revenue 25,745,158 092,956 25,052,202 1,172,805
bonds
Series 2007 revenue - 15,295,000 - 15,295,000 1,500,000
bonds
Total bonds payable $30,445,158 $ 15,295,000 $1,192,956 | $44,547.202 1 $3,222.805
Notes payable
Payable 1o a $47.668 % $47,668 $ - $ -
governmenial enlity
Payable to a bank 29,073 29,073 - -
Total notes payable $76,741 $ $76,741 $ -1 % -

Notes Payable

Noies payable of the Tulsa County Public Facilities Authority at June 30, 2008, consisted of the

following:

Note payable to a governmental entity,
monthly payments of $7,263, interest was
7.5% through February 2006 and 0%
thercafter, with unpaid principal and interest

due December 2007, unsecured $47,668
Note payable to bank, monthly payments of
$1,275, mterest at 4.75%, with unpaid
principal and interest due January 13, 2008,
collateralized by equipment 8,652
Note payable to bank, monthly payments of
$3,009, interest at 4.75% including unpaid
principal and interest due January 13, 2008, 20,421
collateralized by equipment

$76,741
Less current maturities -
Long term obligations $ -

Bonds Payable

As of December 1, 2003, the Authority issued $5,800,000 of its Recreational Facility Refunding Revenue
Bonds, Series 2003 (2003 Series Revenue Bonds™) (average interest rate of 2.8%) principally to
currently refund $4,990,000 of outstanding 1992 Series revenue bonds (average interest rate of 6.2%). Of
the net proceeds of $5,522,002 (after underwriting fees and other issuance costs of $210,300 and interest
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to call date on original issue of $67,698), $5,064,850 was used to refund the outstanding 1992 Series
revenue bonds, including premium of $74,850, and $457,152 was used (o purchase U.S. Government
securities which were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to finance certain additions
and improvements. As a resulf, the 1992 Serjes revenue bonds were defeased and the Authority has no
liability on the 1992 bonds.

Interest on the 2003 Series revenue bonds is due semiannually. The 2003 Series revenue bonds
outstanding at June 30, 2008, mature or have mandatory redemption, in the amounts and bear interest at
the rates indicated below:

Dates of Maturity

Or Redemptions Principal Interest Annual Interest Rate
November 1, 2008 $ 550,000 $61,119 2.25%
May 1, 2009 - 54,931 2.25%
November 1, 2009 575,000 54,931 2.55%
May 1, 2010 - 47,600 2.55%
November 1, 2010 625,000 47.600 2.80%
May 1, 2011 - 38,850 2.80%
November 1, 2011 650,000 38,850 3.00%
May 1, 2012 - 29,100 3.00%
November 1, 2012 800,000 29,100 3.15%
May 1, 2013 - 16,500 3.15%
November 1, 2013 1,000,000 16,500 3.30%

$4,200,000 $435,081

The 2003 Series revenue bonds are subject to redemption, at the option of the Authority, in whole or in
part, at redemption price equal fo the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest in the event of
extraordinary events as stated in the bond indenture. All rights, title and interest of the Authority in
leascholds, property and equipment, accounts, intangibles and related revenues, are pledged under the
bond indenture.

The Authority is required under the 2003 Series bond indenture to maintain a series of funds for various
purposes including unexpended construction funds, interest payments, principal repayments, bond reserve
funds, renewals and replacements and contingencies.

As of Qctober 1, 2005, the Authority issued $27,805,000 of its Capital Improvement and Refunding
Revenue Bonds, Series 2005 (the “2005 Series revenue bonds™) (average interest rate of 4.3%) principally
to refund $22,228,368 of outstanding 1999 Series Revenue Bonds (average interest rate of 6.5%). The
bond payable includes a bond insurance premium of $ 411,394, net of amortization of $138,159, as of
June 30, 2008.The premium is being amortized utilizing the effective interest rate. Of the net proceeds of
$27,229,003 (after underwriting fees and other issuance costs of $1,125,550 and a premium on the bond
issuance of’ $549,553), $22,228,368 was used to refund the outstanding 1999 Series Revenue Bonds, and
$5,000,635 was deposited into an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to finance certain additions and
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improvements. As a result, the 1999 Serics Revenue Bonds were defeased, and the Authority has no
further liability on the 1999 bonds. The difference between the reacquisition price (funds required to
refund the 1999 Series Revenue Bonds) and the net carrying amount of the 1999 Series Revenue Bonds is
shown as a reduction of $2,049, 217 i bonds payable and is being amortized to interest expense utilizing
the effective interest method. Of this amount, $177.047 was amortized during 2008,

Interest on the 2005 Series revenue bonds is due semiannually. The 2005 Series revenue bonds
outstanding at June 30, 2008 mature or have mandatory redemption, in the amounts and bear interest at
the rates indicated below:

Dates of Maturity

Or Redemptions Principal Interest Annual Inferest Rate
November 1, 2008 $ 1,125,000 $ 583,439 3.50%
May 1, 2009 - 563,752 3.50%
November 1, 2009 1,190,000 563,752 3.50%
May 1, 2010 - 542,927 3.50%
November 1, 2010 1,260,000 542,927 3.60%
May 1, 2011 - 520,247 3.60%
November 1, 2011 1,325,000 520,247 3,70%
May 1, 2012 - 495,734 3.70%
November 1, 2012 1,400,000 495,734 5.00%
May 1, 2013 - 460,734 5.00%
November 1, 2013 1,480,000 460,734 5.00%
May [, 2014 - 423,734 5.00%
November 1, 2014 1,605,000 423,734 4.00%
May 1, 2015 - 361,634 4.00%
November 1, 2015 1,705,000 391,634 5.00%
May 1, 20106 - 349,009 5.00%
November 1, 2016 1,810,000 349,009 4.125%
May 1, 2017 . 311,678 4.125%
November 1, 2017 £,890,000 311,678 4.25%
May [, 2018 - 271,516 4.25%
November 1, 2018 2,040,000 271,516 4.375%
May 1, 2019 - 226,891 4.375%
November 1, 2019 2,155,000 226,891 4.375%
May 1, 2020 - 179,750 4.375%
November 1, 2020 2,250,000 179,750 5.00%
May 1, 2021 - 123,500 5.00%
November 1, 2021 2,410,000 123,500 5.00%
May 1, 2022 - 63,250 5.00%
November 1, 2022 2,530,000 63,250 5.00%

$26,175,000 $10,432,151

The 2005 Series revenue bonds maturing after November 1, 2016, are subject to redemption at the option
of the Authority on or after November 1, 2015, in the whole or in part, in the inverse order of maturity at
par, with accrued interest.
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As of July 1, 2007, the Authority issued $15,295,000 of its Capital Improvement Revenue
Bonds, Series 2007 (2007 Series revenue bonds) {(average interest rate of 4.2%). Net proceeds of
$14,688,844 (after underwriting fees and other issuance costs of $606,156) were deposited in an
irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to finance certain additions and improvements,

Interest on the 2007 Series revenue bonds is due semi-annually, The 2007 Series revenue bonds
outstanding at June 30, 2008, mature or have mandatory redemption, in the amounts and bear
interest at the rates indicated below:

Dates of Maturity

Or Redemptions Principal Interest Annual Interest Rate
November 1, 2008 $ 1,500,000 $ 319,744 5.00%
May 1, 2009 - 282,244 5.00%
November 1, 2009 1,525,000 282,244 4.63%
May 1, 2010 - 246,978 4.63%
November I, 2010 1,550,000 246,978 4,00%
May 1, 2011 - 215,978 4.00%
November 1, 2011 1,470,000 215,978 4.00%
May 1, 2012 - 186,578 4.00%
November 1, 2012 925,000 186,578 4.00%
May 1, 2013 - 168,078 4.00%
November 1, 2013 825,000 168,078 3.85%
May 1, 2014 - 152,197 3.85%
November 1, 2014 1,750,000 152,197 4.00%
May 1, 2015 - 117,197 4,00%
November 1, 2015 1,850,000 117,197 4.00%
May 1, 2016 - 80,197 4.00%
November 1, 2016 1,925,000 80,197 4.10%
May 1, 2017 - 40,734 4.10%
November 1, 2017 1.975.000 40,734 4.13%

$15,295,000 $3,300,106

The 2007 Series revenue bonds maturing on or after November I, 2013, are subject to
redemption at the option of the Authority on or afier November 1, 2010, in whole or in part, in
reverse order of maturity at par, with accrued interest.

The 2003, 2005, and 2007 Series bond indentures also provides that the Authority shall establish and
collect such rates, fees and charges so as to render annual gross revenues (net of operating expenses),
equal to at least 1.10 times the average annual principal of and interest on all bonds.

The Authority’s 2003, 2005, and 2007 Series revenue bonds are equally secured. Under the Indentures,
the Authority grants a first lien on and pledge of and a first security interest in the Gross Revenues
derived from the ownership, existence and/or operation of the Tulsa State Fairgrounds and the Authority
grants a first mortgage lien on its [easchold interest in the racing facilities.
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K. Employees’ retirement system

As provided by Title 19, §951 through §962 of the Oklahoma Statutes, Tulsa County maintains a single-
employer, defined benefit contributory pension pian designated the Tulsa County Employees’ Retirement
System (“TCERS™), which covers participants with retivement, death and disability benefils. A nine-
member Board of Trustees administers the System. Of the nine members, the Chairman of the Beard of
County Commissioners, the County Treasurer and the County Clerk serve as ex-officio members. The
Board of County Commissioners (BOCC) appoints two members, One of the members appointed by the
BOCC must be a licensed attorney, the other a licensed CPA, and both with pension fund administration
experience. Three members, who must be current participants, are clected at large from all current
participants. One member, who must be a retired member, is elected at large from all current participants
and from retired members and beneficiarics of the system. The Board of Trustees meets the last Tuesday
of each month to conduct business. Agendas are posted in properly designated arcas.

Plan Description and Provisions

Membership in the TCERS is mandatory for all eligible employees. An employee becomes eligible on the
first day of employment as a regular, full time employee. Oklahoma Statutes include ¢lected and appointed
salaried County officials as employees for retirement system purposes. No seasonal, temporary, hourly, part-
time or contracted worker is eligible to be a member of the TCERS.

As of June 30, 2008 and 2007, the TCERS participants are as follows:

2008 2007

Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits 755 734
Terminated employees entitled to benefits not

yel received 354 334

Current active employees:

Fully vested 956 951

Nonvested 883 808

Total participants 2,948 2,887

For the year ended June 30, 2008, the County’s total payroll for all employees amounted to $67,211,076.
Of the 1,839 current active employees, 956 are fully vested and 883 are nonvested.

Normal Retirement Benefits - Service credit for employment prior to July 1, 1965 is granted only to
employees who were contributing to TCERS on March 6, 1974. The employee becomes eligible to
receive benefits at age 62 with 5 years of service unless he/she attains the Rule of 80, This rule applies if
the employee’s age and vears of service together equal at least 80 points,

The monthly annuity payable to the employee is based on a percentage to be applied to the average
compensation of the highest paid thirty-six (36} months of employment, The three highest years need not
be contiguous, but cach year must consist of twelve continuous months. Benefits are calculated on the
average base payroll earnings and do not include overtime, allowances, cte. The benefil percentages for
years of credited service are as follows:
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Years of Credited Services Benefit Percentages
5 12.5%
6 15.0%
7 17.5%
8 20.0%
9 22.5%
10 23.0%
11 28.0%
12 31.0%
13 34.0%
14 37.0%
15 40.0%
16 42.0%
17 44 (%
18 46.0%
19 48.0%
20 50.0%

Beyond 20 years, there wifl be a 1.5% increase in the percentage rate for each year of credited service, to
a maximum of 100%.

Disability Benefiis

Disability benefits are available to participants who have become permanently disabled as a direct result of
County employment, The employee must have the required § years participation in the retirement system fo
receive benefits. Medical proof of disability, as well as a written statement of condition and cause from the
employee’s supervisor must accompany applications for disability. The retirement system's Board of
Trustees may require additional medical proof and makes the final determination of eligibility. There are no
age requirements.

The percentage and base salary used to calculate benefits for employees who qualify for disability
retirement is the same as that used in calculating "regular” retirement benefits except that the maximum
percentage that may be applied is 40% (for a disability retiree having 15 or more credited years of service).

A review of all disability retirees is conducted by the TCERS Board of Trustees each August, at which time
disability retirees must submit medical proof that they remain disabled. This requirement for the annuat
disability review ends when the retiree reaches age 62.

Death Benefits - All spouses of vested participants who die while employed, after termination prior to
commencement of benefits, or while receiving benefits are entitled to receive a life annuity equal to 70%
of the retirement benefits for which the deceased was entitled. The benefit shall commence at the earliest
date the deceased could have elected to begin receiving benefits or nnmediately if the benefit had already
started. The benefits shall be paid to the surviving spouse until death.

Contributions -In accordance with Title 19 OSA 954 of the Oklahoma Statutes, coniribution rates as set
by the Board are applied to all fuli-time salaries and wages and the resulting contributions are credited to
the pension fund on a monthly basis. During the fiscal years ending June 30, 2008 and 2007, the County
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contributed 12 and 10%, respectively, of the employee’s base salary while the employees contributed $1
per year, Effective July 1, 2007, the Countly maximum contribution rate can be raised to 13.5% and the
total maximum contribution rate for both the County and employees shall not exceed16.5%,

Actuarial Assumptions

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of the
actuarial valuations at the dates indicated. During June 2004, the amortization period for actuarial gains
and losses was changed from fifteen years and benefit enhancements was changed {rom iwenty years;
both actuarial gains and losses and benefit enhancements arc now amortized over thirty years, Additional
information as of the valuation for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 follows,

Contribution rates

Employer 12%
Plan Members $1 per year
Annual Pension Cost 6,511,329
Annual Required Contribution 6,530,947
Contributions made (employer) 8,010,788
Contributions made {(employee) 2,102
Valuation Date 7/01/07
Actuarial cost method Entry age
Amortization method 30 years closed as a level percentage of

projected payrolls for actuarial gains/losses
and for benefit improvements

Remaining amortization period 25 years for actuarial gains/losses and benefil
improvements

Asset valuation method Fair value

Investment rate of return 7.75% per annum

Projected salary increase 4% to 6% (varies by attained age)

Includes inflation at 3%

Cost-of-living adjustments None (plan does not provide for automatic
cost-of-living increases)
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of Tulsa County Employees Retirement System are prepared using the accrual
basis of accounting and in conformity with accounting principles generaily accepted in the United States
of America. Member and employer contnbutions are recognized as revenues in the period in which
employee services are performed and expenses are recorded when incurred regardless of when payment is
made. Contributions from members are recognized when the employer makes payroll deductions from
plan members. Employer contributions are recognized when due and the employer has made a formal
commitment to provide the benefits. Benefits and refunds arc recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the terms of the plan.

Method Used to Value Investments

Investments are reported at fair value. Fair value of investments is based on published market prices and
quotations from major investment brokers at current exchange rates, as available. Many factors are
considered in arriving at fair value. Corporate bonds are valued based on yields currently available on
comparable securities of issuers with similar credit ratings, TCERS has no investments of any commercial
or industrial organization whose market value equals 5% or more of TCERS’s net assets available for
benefits.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the TCERS are presented in accordance with the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 25, "Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and
Note Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans", GASB Statement No. 27, "Accounting for Pensions by
State and Local Governmental Employers” and GASB Statement No. 31, " Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Cerfain Investments and for External Investmenti Pools". Prior to adoption of these
standards, the financial statements were prepared under the criteria of Statement No, 6 of the National
Council on Governmental Accounting (NCGA) and any additional disclosures as required by the GASB
{including GASB Statement No. 5, "Disclosure of Pension Information by Public Employee Retirement
Systems and State and Local Government Employers™).

(GASB Statement No. 25 establishes financial reporting standards for defined benefit plans and standards
for the notes to the financial statements of defined contribution plans. GASB Statement No. 27 establishes
standards of accounting and financial reporting for pension expenditures/expense and related pension
liabilities, pension assets, note disclosures, and required supplementary information in the financial
reports of state and local government employers. GASB Statement No. 31 establishes accounting and
financial reporting standards for all investments held by governmental external investment poots. GASB
Statement No. 40 establishes and/or modifies risk disclosure requirements relating to deposits and
investments. GASB Statemeni No. 44 amends the portions of NCGA Statement No.1, Government
Accounting and Financial Reporting Principles that guide the preparation of the statistical section. GASB
Statement No. 50 amends statements 25 and 27 to require defined benefit pension plans to modify certain
disclosures in either RSH or the notes.
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TCERS is considered a Pension Trust Fund (Fiduciary Fund) in Tulsa County's Financial Report and is a
blended component unit of Tulsa County. Copies of Tulsa County Employees Retirement System’s
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report are available from the County Clerk's office.

Funding Status and Progress

Presented in the required supplementary information are the Schedules of Funding Progress, Schedule of
Employer Contributions and Notes to the Required Supplementary Information of the Tulsa County
Employees® Retirement System. The supplementary information has been presented for the past four
years according to GASB Statement Numbers 25 and 27. The total amount that the employer
contributions exceed the net pension obligation as of June 30, 2008 is $2,566,457. The negative net
pension obligation is reported as an asset in the government-wide statement of net assets. There are no
assets legally reserved for purposes other than payment of plan member benefits of the System. There are
no fong-term contracts for contributions. The funded status of the plan as of June 30, 2008 and 2007, the

most recent actuarial valuation dates, is as follows:

() (6)
Actuarial (3) UAAL as a
@) Accrued Unfunded (4 {5) % of
Market Liability AAL Funding Annual Covered
Valuation Value of (AAL) (UAAL) Ratios Covered Payrol]
Date Assets Entry Apge (2)-(1) {1(2) Payroll (3Y(3)
6/30/2008 | $187,248,226 | $234,573,356 | $47,325,130 79.83% $67,211,076 70.41%
6/30/2007 201,461,893 | 224 786,456 | 23,324,563 89.62% 65,367,653 35.68%

The schedules of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information (RS1) following the
notes to the financial statementis, present multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial values
of plan assets arc increasing or decreasing over time relative to the AALs for benefits.

Trend Information

Fiscal Annual Percentage Net Annual
Year Pension Of APC Pension Required
Ended Cost (APC)  Contributed Oblipation Contribution
2001 $ 2,474,260 119.9% $ (6,286,086) $ 2,311,032
2002 4,789,172 68.2% (4,762,050) 4,612,058
2003 6,189,965 07.6% {2,758,788) 6,055,792
2004 5,734,273 §7.8% (2,056,836) 5,791,898
2005 5,524,312 92.1% (1,621,160) 5,569,772
2006 5,994,450 95.7% (1,363,408) 6,028,429
2007 6,541,673 95.5% (1,066,998) 6,568,566
2008 6,511,329 123.0% (2,566,457) 6,530,947
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Annual Pension Cost under GASB No.27

1. Net Pension Obligation {NPQ) at June 30, 2007 3 {1,066,998)
2. Annual Pension Cost for the year ended June 30, 2008 6,511,329
3. Employer Contributions year ended June 30, 2008 8,010,788
4. Net Pension Obligation (NPO} at June 30, 2008: (1)+(2)-(3) $ {2,566,457)
5. Annual Required Contributions {ARC) FY 6/30/09 9,908,991
6. Net Adjustment to ARC * (40,791)
7. Annual Pension Cost for the year ended June 30, 2009 3 9,868,200

*Interest on (4) (-$198,900) less 25 year amortization of (4) (-$158,109)

L. Post Employment Health Plan (PEHP)

Administration and Plan Provisions

Post Employment Health Plan or PEHP is a defined contribution arrangement. The Tulsa County
Board of County Commissioners {(BOCC) signed the participation agreement that established
PEHP, on May 27, 1997. PEHP is designed to assist Tulsa County employees offset the ever-
increasing burden of post employment medical expenses. PEHP, which began on July 1, 1997,
establishes an investment account for each qualified Tulsa County employee to help pay future
medical expenses and is a separate benefit from Tulsa County Employees Retirement System
(TCERS) or from the Section 457 deferred compensation program. PEHP, which contains two
sub-accounts—a Universal Reimbursement Account and an Insurance Premium Reimbursement
Account, is funded entirely by contributions from Tulsa County (employee contributions are not
allowed). The current funding level for the Universal Reimbursement Account is $40 per month
per employee and for the Premium Reimbursement Account is 2% of salary. The BOCC can
amend or alter the contribution amount or rate at any time. All administrative charges are paid by
Tulsa County. These two sub-accounts provide tax-free return on investment and tax-free
payment of medical costs after separation from County employment. Each participaling
employee has the flexibility to direct both the investments inside his/her account and the
distribution of benefits upon separation from County employment.

Financial Reporting

PEHP’s assets and the respective changes in financial position as of and for the year ended June
30, 2008, are not included in the basic financial statements of Tulsa County.
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Participating Employers

The following organizations and departments were invited to participate in PEHP:

Tulsa County

Court Fund

Drainage District #12

Law Library

Oklahoma State University Extension Agency Center

Tulsa Arca Emergency Management Agency (civil defense)
Tulsa City/County Health Department

Tulsa County Public Facilities Authority (fairgrounds)

Membership is available in PEHP for all regular, full time employees in the participating
employers.

Number of Participants

As of June 30, 2008, the number of participants in PEHP is:

Organization Number of Participants
Tulsa City/County Health Department 303
Tulsa County Public Facilities Authority 81
All others 1,294
Totals 1,678

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting

The financial report for PEHP is prepared using the accrual basis of accounting and in conformity with
accounting principles generaily accepted in the United States of America. Employer contributions are
recognized in the period in which employee services are performed and deductions are recorded when
incurred. The accounting for PEHP is in accordance with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No. 25, "Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note Disclosures
for Defined Contribution Plans", GASB Statement No. 27, "Accounting for Pensions by State and Local
Governmental Employers", GASB Statement No. 31, " Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain
Investments and for External Investment Pools", and GASB Statement No., 43, “Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefit Plans and other than Pension Plans™.

Method Used to Value Investiments

Investments are reported at fair value. Fair value of investments is based on the market value of the
investments as of the balance sheet date as reported by a third party administrator. Individual participants
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make their own investment selections, so Tulsa County is not exposed to any concentration risk,
Investment securitics are exposed to various risks such as interest rate, market and credit risk. Due to the
level of risk associated with certain investment sccurities, it is af least reasonably possible that changes in
the values of investment securities will occur in the near term and such changes could materially affect
the participants’ account balances.

The financial report of PEHP can be requested from the Tulsa County Clerk’s office at 500 South Denver,
Tuisa, Oklahoma 74103,

M. Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)

Plan Description

The County provides post employment healthcare benefits (OPEB) for retired employees and surviving
spouses by Tulsa County (the Plan) through the Tulsa County Employees’ Retirement System (TCERS),
a defined benefit contributory pension plan, which covers participants with retirement, death, and
disability benefits.

Benefits Provided

The Plan covers ali current retirees who clected postretirement medical coverage through the TCERS and
future retired employees. All healthcare benefits are provided through the County’s fully insured health
plan. The benefit levels are the same as those afforded to active employees. The benefits provided by the
County to retirees include medical and life insurance. Service credit for employment prior to July 1, 1965
is granted only to those employees who were contributing to TCERS on March 6, 1974, The employee
becomes eligible to receive benefits at age 62 with 5 years of service unless he/she attains the Rule of 80.
This rule applies if the employee’s age and years of service together equal at least 80 points.

Membership

AtlJuly 1, 2006, membership consisted of the following:

Active 1,789

Retired members 217

Spouses of retirees 56

Total membership 2,062
Funding Policy

The County does not coniribute a subsidy towards the medical coverage of retirees and surviving spouses.
If a retiree elects to be covered by Medicare, the premium charged by separate participation through Tulsa
County is the group rate established by the provider and is separate from the rate charged active Tulsa
County employees. As of June 30, 2008, no irrevocable trust had been established for the funding of the
Plan’s post-retirement benefit obligation. The Plan is funded on a pay-as-you-go basis.
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Annual OPEB Costs and Net OPEB Obligation

This is the first year for which the County had an actuarial valuation performed to determine the projected
liabilities of the plan as of fiscal year-end, as well as the employer’s annual required contribution {ARC).
The County’s annual OPEB cost (expense) of $917,246 was equal to the ARC for 2008,

The Net OPEB obligation al June 30, 2008, was calculated as follows:

Anmnual Required Contribution $917,246

Interest on Net OPEB Obligation -

Adjustment (o Annual Required Contribution -

Annual OPEB Cost 917,246
Contributions 305,900
Increase in Net OPEB Obligation 611,340

Net OPEB Obligation, beginning of year -

Net OPEB Obligation, end of year 611,346

Net OPEB obligation reported in Governmental Activities 611,346

Funded Status and Funding Progress

The funded status of the plan as of July 1, 2006, is as follows:

Actuarial Accrued Liability {AAL) $9,197,900

Actuarial value of plan assets .

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued liability (JAAL) 9,197,900

Funded ratio {actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) -

Covered payroll (active plan members) 00,572,000

UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 15 %
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Actuarial Methods and Assumpiions

The actuarial present value of future benefits determined by the initial valuation is split into the unfunded
accrued liability and the actuarial present value of future normal costs. The unfunded accrued liability is
adjusted in subsequent years for principal payments, interest accruals, plan amendments, changes in
actuarial assumptions, and actual experience gains and losses. The actuarial present value of future
normal costs is funded over future covered payroll.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. The schedule of funding
progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements,
presents multi-year trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets in increasing
or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits,

Valuation date fuly 1, 2006
Actuarial cost method Entry Age
Amortization method Level percentage of projected payroll
Remaining amortization periods 30 years open
Baseline discount rate 5%
Initial annual healthcare cost trend rate (post 65) 10 %
Annual reduction of heaithcare cost trend rate 1%
Ultimate annual healthcare cost trend rate 7%
Years until ultimate inflation rate 4 years

Note IV. Risk Management

The County’s risk-management activities are all recorded in the General Fund. The workers’
compensation claims are administered in a separate fund (Workers® Compensation Fund) but are included
as a non-major Special Revenue Fund for financial reporting purposes.

In accordance with State Statutes, the County is required to maintain a blanket bond for all employees of
the County Treasurer’s Office in the amount of $50,000 per employee. The County Treasurer cairies a
$250,000 rider in addition to the $50,000. All other county employees are covered in the amouni of
$2,500. The Oklahoma Tort Claims Act limits the County’s liability Tor tort claims 1o $1,000,000.
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In July 2007, Tulsa County made the decision to become fully self-insured. Tulsa County purchases
services from a third part administrator to pay the claims and reinsurance. The reinsurance protects Tulsa
County against catastrophic losses that might exceed fund reserves. In addition, Tulsa County services
four ongoing worker’s compensation cases that were open from a time when Tulsa County was
previously self-insured. For insured programs, there have been no significant reductions in insurance
coverage. Scitlemenl amounts have not exceeded insurance coverage for the current or the three prior
years.

Reported judgments (tort liability) are principally funded through property taxes over a three-year period.
Taxes collected are recorded in the Debt Service Fund, with the exception of those amounts associated
with workers® compensation judgments, which are recorded in the Worker’s Compensation Fund. The
Worker’s Compensation Fund receives transfers [rom the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds to
pay for insurance, claims, claim reserves and administrative costs of the program. The workers’
compensation judgments include lump-sam judgments which are paid in full at the time of judgment and
long-term installment judgments which are payable in installments. Based on the four claimants still
remaining the Tulsa County Workers Compensation Fund, the difference between the cash on hand and
the accounts payable liability is considered Fund Balance Reserved for Future Medical Claims on the
modified accrual basis. When converting to the entity wide statements and the full accrual basis of
accounting, the fund balance is replaced with a current hability representing the claims expected to be
paid within the next fiscal year and then a long term liability representing the projected future medical
benefits expected to be paid to claimants based on a projected payout schedule discounted back te the
current period, The remaining liabifity as of June 30, 2008 was $595,593.

2008 2007
Fund balance Reserved, beginning of year $ 669,670 $ 731,670
New claims recorded - -
Claims paid 73,777 62,000
FFund balance Reserved, end of year 595,593 669,670

NOTE V. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Federal Grants

Amounts received or receivabie from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor
agencies, principalty the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already
collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable fund. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may
be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time; although, the government expects such
amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

Litigation
The government is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not

presently determinable, in the opinion of the Tulsa County District Attorney, the resolution of these
matlers will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the government.
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NOTE V1. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Public Facilities Authority

The County provides, at its cost, certain printing and office supplies to the Public Facilities Authority,
which are used for administrative purposes. During 2008, the Authority paid the County $73,625 for these
items. In addition, the Authority uses the County computer facilities at no cost to the Authority.

During 2008, the County paid for capital improvements totaling $20,332,516. During 2008, $448,784 of
these funds were used for “4 1o Fix the County” capital improvements. From the inception of the project,
the Authority has received $20,430,415 from the County for “4 to Fix the County” capital improvements.
The Authority also received funds from the County in 2008 in the amount of $5,880,478 for Phase Il
capital improvements and $14,003,254 in Phase 1V capital improvements. These improvements are
recorded as capital assets on the Statement of Net Assels and as transfers on the Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Assets in the period in which they are received.

Tulsa County Industrial Authority

The Industrial Authority has issued conduit debt obligations for the benefit of Tulsa County and the Tulsa
City-County Health Department. The Authority received lease payments from these entities totaling
approximaiely §1,466,000 for the year ended June 30, 2008, which corresponded to the debt service
payments due on the conduit debt.

During 2008, capital outlay for designated projects for Tulsa County was approximately $25,519,000 and
the Tulsa County Public Facilities was approximalely $18,873,000,

Tulsa County Criminal Justice Authority

The Criminal Justice Authority has no employees. Personnel for the operation of the jail and related
activities are provided by Tulsa County. Personnel costs per the financial statements represent those costs
altocated by the County, Funding from Tulsa County provides the principal source of revenues for the
operations of the Authority. This funding consists primarily of sales and use taxes collected by the County
for the operations of the Authority,

The Authority purchases vehicles used for the operations of the jail facility and these assets are accounted
for by Tulsa County. Vehicles used in the transporting of prisoners are included as part of the conymon

fleet of vehicles maintained by Tulsa County. For the year ending June 30, 2008, the Authority’s purchase
of vehicles accounted for by Tulsa County totaled $172,000.

NOTE VII. Subsequent Events

Tulsa Ceunty Public Facilities Authority

Effective July 1, 2008, the Authority will change its fiscal year end to December 31,
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Criminal Justice Authority

The Tulsa County Criminal Justice Authority on Friday, December 20, 2008, authorized invoicing the
city of Tulsa for the $54.13 per-inmate daily charge that is the focus of a lawsuit filed by the city against
Tulsa County. Under the old agreement, which expired November 30, 2008, the city paid no fee to house
its municipal immates i the jail in exchange for providing certain assets and services to the county. But
the Authority maintains that increased operating costs and the terms of the original agreement now
require the ¢ity pay a direct fee,

Note VIII. Unrestricted Net Assets-Tulsa County Industrial Authority

Unrestricted net assets of the Tulsa County Industrial Authority for the entity-wide statements consist of:

2008
Net assets available for fulure operations $1,195,722
Amount o be provided by {uture sales tax
coliection for retirement of revenue bonds (325,529,371
Unrestricted net assets $(324,333,649)

The Authority has been given the responsibility of providing the accounting and financing for the “4 to
Fix the County” I and 11 and Vision 2025 sales tax initiatives. Most of the capital assets constructed with
the proceeds of the revenue bonds are transferred to other governmental units while the related debt has
been retained in the Authority. Three of those projects have been retained and leng-term agreements were
made with beneficiary.

The conduit debt operation of the Authorily has generated the net assets available for future operations
that are recorded as part of the unreserved fund balance in the general fund.

Note IX Jail Operations

The Criminal Justice Authority has contracted with the Tulsa County Sheriff’s Department to manage the
operations of the jail effective July 1, 2005. The terms, agreement and budget of the Sheriff’s Department
proposal accepted by the Authority are based on running the jaif at a cost of $1,638,650 per month for a
total of $19,993,807 per year. In February 2007, the organization increased the contract by $630,000 for a
total of $20,293,806 for just fiscal year 2007. In June 2007, the organization increased the contract by
$1,933,001 for a total of $22,226,807.

Note X Future Changes in Accounting Pronouncements

GASB Statement #51- In June 2007, GASB issued Statement #51, “Financial Reporting for Intangible
Assets.” This stalement requires that all intangible assets not specifically excluded by its scope provisions
be classified as capital assets. This Statement also provides authoritative guidance that specifically
addresses the nature of these intangible assets. Such guidance should be applied in addition to the existing
authoritative guidance for capital assets. The requirements of this statement are effective for financial
statements for periods beginning afier June 15, 2009.
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GASB Statement #53-Statement #53 is “Accounting and Reporting for Derivative Instruments.” This
staterment addresses the recognition, measurement, and disclosure of information regarding derivative
instruments entered into by state and local governments. Derivative instruments are often complex
financial arrangements used by governments to manage specific risks or to make investments, Derivative
instruments, however, can expose governments 1o significant risks and liabilities. Common types of
derivative instruments used by governments include interest rate and commodity swaps, interest rate and
commeodity swaps, interest rate locks, options {caps, floors, and collars), swaptions, forward contracts,
and future contracts. The County is still assessing the impact of this statement,
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Pension Trust Fund

Schedule of Funding Progress

Last Ten Years

{2)

7)

Actuarial (3) 4) UAAL as 8)
(1) Accrued Unfunded Excess of (5} (6} a % of Excess as a
Actuarial Liability AAL Assels Funding Annual Covered Percentage of

Vatuation Value of (AAL) (UAAL) over AAL Ratios Covered Payrci Covered Payroll

Date Assets Entry Age (23-(1) {(1)-(2) {1){(2) Payroll* (3)¥(6} (4)/(6)
6-30-99 $ 132,821,242 $ 118614455 - $ 14,306,787 112.06% § 37,471,358 - 38.18%
6-30-00 137,008,114 132,865,938 - 4,042 176 103.04% 40,564,905 - 9.96%
6-30-01 137,703,610 149,751,254 $ 12,047,644 - 81.95% 45,303,378 26.58% -
6-30-02 135,211,804 158,074,719 22,862,915 - 85.54% 48,141,04G 47 .49% -
6-30-03 138,895,986 168,449,085 29,553,098 82.46% 49,266,036 59.89% -
6-30-04 154,721,093 182,297,070 27,575,977 84.87% 51,047,872 54.02% -
6-30-05 163,154,208 162,770,507 29,616,289 - 84.64% 54,876,834 53.97% -
£-30-06 175,794,111 206,600,310 30,806,189 - 85.08% 60,188,618 51.18% -
8-30-07 201,461,893 224,786,456 23,324,563 - 89.62% 65,367,653 35.68% -
8-30-08 187,248,226 234,573,356 47,325,130 - 79.83% 67,211,076 70.41%

*The amount reflected in the annual covered payroll as of June 30, 2008 includes Tulsa County regular payroll, the City/County Heaith
Department (including seven state employees), the Public Facilities Authority, the Crainage District, and the Courl Fund.

Schedule of Employer Contributions

Eight Year Trend Information

Annuat Annual

Pension Percentage Net Required Percentage
Year Cost of APC Pension Contribution of ARC
Ended (APC) Contributed Obligation (ARC) Contributed
5-30-01 3 2,474,260 119.90% & (6,286,086) § 2,311,032 128.39%
6-30-02 4,789,172 68.18% (4,762,050) 4,612,058 70.80%
6-30-03 6,189,965 67.64% (2,758,788) 6,055,792 69.14%
6-30-04 5,734,273 87.76% (2,056,836) 5,791,898 86.89%
6-30-05 5,524 312 92.11% (1,621,160) 5,669,772 91.36%
6-30-06 5,994,450 95.70% (1,363,408) 6,028,429 95.16%
6-30-07 6,541,673 95.47% (1.066,958) 6,568,566 95.08%
6-30-08 8,511,329 123.03% * (2,566,457) 6,530,947 122.66%

*The Nel Pension Obligation is {$2,566,457) as of June 30, 2008. This amount is actuaily
an asset because the County's contributions have exceeded the annual required contribution.

The APC and the ARC calculation for the upcoming year ending June 30, 2009 are $9,868,200

and $9,908,991, respectively.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Required Supplementary Information.
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General Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Beginning fund balance, budgetary basis:

Revenues:

Ad valorem taxes

Other taxes

Charges for services

intergovernmental revenues

Miscellaneous revenues

investment incame

Payment from Component Units
Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:
General Gevernment
Public Safety
Heaith and Weifare
Culture and Recreation
Education
Roads and Highways
Total expenditures

Excess revenues and beginning fund balances
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess revenues, beginning fund balances, and other inancing
sources {uses) over (under) expenditures and other uses

Reconciliation to Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances
Ad valorem receivable
Accrued interest receivable
Due from other governments
Prior year reserve for encumbrances
Current year reserve for encunmibrances
Ending fund balance, (GAAP Basis)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget
Qriginal Final Amounts Qver (Under)
$9,110,333 410,178,987 $9,712,247 $466,740
43,501,000 43,751,000 45,275,575 -1,524,575

1,729,700 3,066,776 3,128,304 -51,528
4,038,210 4,038,510 4,354,643 -316,133
380,088 381,156 465,138 -83,982
1,267,717 2,032,165 2,155,013 -122,848
1,880,034 1,880,034 2,218,533 -338,49%
280,666 -280,666
52,796,749 55,148,641 57,877,872 -2,109,066
40,159,773 42,310,536 35,627,202 6,683,333
8,206,395 8,432,478 8,505,606 -73,127
5,684,816 6,418,400 6,703,892 -285,492
5,508,140 4,965,689 4,800,478 165,211
444,384 444,078 438,974 5,104
513,574 840,275 741,968 98,307
51,807,082 63,411,456 56,818,120 5,593,336
0 1,817,172 10,771,999 -8,854,827
5,779,465 5,510,881 268,584
-7,707,386 7,707,386 0
-1,927,%21 -2,196,504 268,584
-$10,748 8,575,495 -$8,586,243

484,148

158,339

385,227

938,917

1,036,113

_...$11,588,239

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Required Supplementary Information,



TULSA COUNTY , OKLAHOMA
COUNTY HIGHWAY FUND

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year ended June 30, 2008

FUND 20
Qriginal and Variance with
Final Budgeted Final Budget,
Amounts Actual Amounts over funder
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE (AS OF JULY 1, 2007) $ - $ 8,368,020 5 4,368,020
REVENUE:
Digsel Fuel % 1,314,000 $ 1,303,840 $ {10,160)
Gasoline Tax 3,379,650 3,361,641 {18,009)
Motor Vehicle Fees 2,406,350 2,688,726 292,376
Intergovernmental - 1,806,744 1,806,744
Misceflaneous - 326,534 326,534
Reimbursements 945,304 945,304
Estopped Warrants . 409 409
Total Revenue: $ 7,160,000 % 10,443,198 S 3,343,198
EXPENDITURES:
Salaries $ 3,966,082 $ 4,003,388 $ {37,306)
Employee Benefits 1,635,936 1,509,673 76,262
Operating Expenditure 1,447,973 3,345,273 (2,500,300}
Other Charges 10,000 749 9,251
Capital OQutiay 40,000 307,749 (267,749)
Total Expenditures: 57100000 5 9219841 5 (2119840
Excess revenues and beginning fund balance
over (under) expenditures, budgetary basis $ - 3 9,591,376 S 2,581,376
Other Financing Sources {uses):
Transfers i $ 1,000,000
Transfers Qut o {1.226,707)
Totai Other Financing Sources {uses): (226.707)
Adjustments to conform with GAAP:
Adjustment for Encumbrances 163,093
Ending Fund Balance, GAAP basis $ 9,527,762
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Tulsa County, Oklahoma
Required Supplementary information
Other Post Employment Benefits

Schedule of Funding Progress

(2) 7
Actuarial (3 (4) UAAL as (3
(1) Accrued Unfunded Excess of (8) 5) a % of Excess as a
Actuarial Liability AAL Assets Funding Annual Covered Percentage of
Valuation Value of {AAL) {UAAL) over AAL Ratios Covered Payrolt Covered Payroll
Date Assets Entry Age (2)-(1) (1)-{2) {1¥(2) Payroll {3¥(6) {4)/(6)
7-106  § 0% 9,197,975 9,197,875 § 0 0.00% $ ©0,572,000 15.19% 0.00%

Prior year data unavailable-the County implemented GABS Statement No. 45 in 2008

Schedule of Employer Contributions

Annual
Required Percentage
Year Employer Coniribution of ARC
Ended Contribution (ARC) Contributed
6-30-08 $ 305,900 % 917,246 § 33.3%

Prior year data unavailable-the County implemented GABS Statement No. 45 in 2008

The accompanying notes are an integrat part of the Required Supplementary Infermation.



Required Supplementary Information
Notes to Required Supplementary Schedules
(1) Schedules of Funding Progress-TCERS and OPEB

The information contained in the schedule of funding progress is based on the actuarial valuation as
of each year-end. The actuarial accrued liability is presented based on the valuation reports generated
by Milliman. The actuarial value of assets for that date is based on the fair value of assets.
Investment income in excess or shortfall of the expected 7.75% return on fair value is smoothed over
a thirty year period.

(2) Schedules of Employer Contributions-TCERS and OPEB

The annual pension cost required to be paid by Tulsa County along with the corresponding
percentage actually contributed and the net pension obligation is presented as required
supplementary information. The annual required contribution as determined by the actuary is also
presented.

(3) Budgetary Comparison Schedules-General Fund and County Highway Fund

A cash basis of accounting is used to prepare the Budgetary Comparison Schedule. A reconciliation
from the cash basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting, which is GAAP, is presented on the
face of the schedule.

Budget Law and Practice

Guidelines for the County Budget Actare set out in Title 19, Section 1410 of Oklahoma Statuies. At
least thirty (30) days prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, the county budget board shall
complete a budget for cach fund of the county for which a budget is required. Each budget shall
provide a complete financial plan for the budget year. The budget format shall be as prescribed by
the State Auditor and Inspector. The format shall contain at least the following in tabular form for
cach fund, itemized by department and account within cach fund:

1. Actual revenues and expenditures for the immediate prior fiscal year;
2. Lstimated actual revenues and expenditures for the current fiscal year; and
3. Estimated revenues and proposed expenditures for the budget year.

The Budget Board of Tulsa County complies with the purpose of the Budget Act, which is to:

1. Establish uniform and sound fiscal procedures for the preparation, adoption, execution and
control of budgets;

2. Enable counties to make financial plans for both current and capital expenditures and to
ensure that their executive staffs administer their respective functions in accordance with
adopted budgets;

3. Make available to public and investors sufficient information as to the financial conditions,
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requirements and expectations of the county government;

4. Assist county governments to improve and implement generally accepted accounting
principles as applied to governmental accounting, auditing, and financial reporting and
standards of governmental finance management.

The legal level of control is that expenditures budgeted in each fund may not exceed the
budgeted revenues, including fund balance, for the fund. Once approved the County Budget
Board may amend the legally adopted budget when unexpected modifications are required m
estimated revenues and appropriations.

Budgets are submitted annually in accordance with the budget act. The budgets are prepared on
the cash and expenditures/encumbrances basis. Revenues are budgeted in the year receipt is
expected; and expenditures, which include encumbrances, are budgeted in the year that the
applicable purchase orders are expected to be issued. The General Fund and the County
Highway Fund are the two major funds with legally adopted annual budgets and the Budgetary
Comparison Schedules are reported in Required Supplementary Information. The Visual
Inspection Fund, the Juvenile Detention Fund, the Parks Fund, and the Debt Service Fund are
non-major funds with legally adopted annual budgets. The budget and actual financial statements
report expenditures when liabilities are due for payment. Unencumbered appropriations for
annually budgeted funds lapse at fiscal year-end. Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with
State of Oklahoma legal requirements. A reconciliation from the budgetary basis of accounting
to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 1s presented in the
Budgetary Comparison Schedule or the Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance-Budget and Actual. Other funds do not have annual budgets. Appropriations for
these funds are made on a monthly basis, according to the funds available.

Budgetary Control

Each fund’s appropriated budget is prepared on a detailed line item basis. Revenues are budgeted
by source. Expenditures are budgeted by department and character (health and welfare and
capital outlay) which constitutes the legal level of control. Expenditures may not exceed
appropriations at this level. All budget revisions at this level are subject to authorization by the
Department Head and approval by the Budget Board. All budget revisions are subject to final
review by the County Budget Board. Revisions to the budget were made throughout the year.
There were no supplemental appropriations for any major funds during the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2008.

Encumbrances

Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods or services.
Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the
expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is
utilized in the governmental funds. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reporied as
reservations of fund balances and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the
commitments will be honored during the subsequent year.
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Tulsa County, Oklahoma
Nommajor Govermmental Fonds
June 30, 2008

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted
to expenditure for particular purposes.

Visual Inspection — Established to account for the revaluation of property within Tulsa
County. All entities within Tulsa County receive a proportionate share of the revalued
property.

Parks F'und — Established to account for revenues coilected and expenditures incurred for
the operation and maintenance of the County’s park systent.

Resale Property - Established to account for various revenues collected and expenditures
incurred to seil abandoned properties.

Special Projects ~ Established to account for the receipt and expenditure of federal and
state grants.

Sheriff’s Cash — Established to account for the revenues collected and expenditures
incurred to {or the operation of the Sherifl’s department.

Record Preservation — Established to account for the receipt and expenditure of record
preservation fees.

Worker’s Compensation Fund - Established to account for claims, claim reserves, and
adminisirative costs associated with workers” compensation judgments.

Other Special Revenue Funds — A grouping of fourteen small funds with varying
revenue and expenditure types. A few of the more significant are the County Clerk’s Lien
Fee, Drainage District #12, Juvenile Cash Fund, Court Clerk Revolving Cash. and
Treasurer Certification Fee.

Debt Service Fund

The Debt Service Fund 1s used to accumulate resources to make the principal and iterest
payments of certain general long-term debt of Tulsa County.
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Tulsa County, Oklahoma

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues-Budget and actual {Budgetary Basis)

For the year ended June 30, 2008

Ad vaiorem tax

1 Current Tax

2 Back Tax

3 Penalties

4 Other
Other Taxes

5 Tobacco tax

& Other taxes

7 Documentary stamps

8 Vehicle registration stamps

Charges for services

9 Recording fees

10 Admission

11 Zoning Fees

12 Treasurer fees

13 inspection fees

14 Motor Vehicle fees

15 Print and Duplic Services
29 Printing

16 Pharmacy
17 Other fees

Intergovernmental
18 Federal grants
19 State contracts

20 DA state fund

21 Election Board Exp

22 Election Board Salaries
23 Other Grant Revenue

Investment Income
24 Interest
34 Realized Gain on Sale of Assets

Miscellaneous

25 Concessions

26 Rents and royalties
27 Sale of materials
28 Telephone incame
30 Refunds

3t Fines

32 Estopped Warrants
33 Sale of Assets

35 Reimbursements
36 Gifts

37 Donations

38 Miscellaneous

Payment from Component Unit

Total Revenues

Final Budget

Variance {Over)

$ 41,924,000
1,815,000

12,000

43,751,000

1,337,076
4,700
1,500,000
225,000

3,068,776

2,228,210
125,000

390,600
820,000
350,000

300
125,000

4,038,510

G0
245,000
58,650
76,438
1,008

381,156

1,880,034

1,880,034

100
47,600
150,330
426
21,495
400
1,640

1,774,268
0

4,234
11,672

2,032,165

$ 55,149,642

Actual Under
$ 42,935,336 $  {1,011,336)
2,339,890 {524,850)
0
349 11,651
45,275,575 1,524,575
1,337,076 0
5,136 {436)
1,552,180 {52,180)
233,912 (8,912)
3,128,304 -61,528
2,241,005 {12,79%)
)
124,635 365
14,935 {14,935)
656,429 (266,429)
826,610 (6,610)
420,977 (70,977)
2,631 -2,331
67,421 57,579
0
4,354,643 -316,133
0
80 0
232,280 12,720
155,556 (96,906)
76,235 203
1,008 0
465,138 -83,982
2,059,620 -179,586
574 -574
2,060,194 -180,760
395 -295
62,400 -14,800
153,026 -2,696
2 424
26,589 -5,004
397 3
8,185 -6,544
3,383 -3,383
1,983,709 -209,440
28,371 -28,371
4,234 0
42 662 10,991
2,313,351 -281,186
280,666 -280,666
$ 57,877,871 $  (2,728,230)




101|

LE¥ZEL $  6OL'EEE'r  $  09Z'v0E $  6¥8820'F s OrG'GOp'Y $ Vi2'ely GLZER8'E
) 0 0 0 0 love'z.8) 0Fe'eie EENNEERN
LO¥'6 08L'6Y5 S¥1'202 SEO°LPE 185'866 z88'967 661°Z0¢ Aepno jepden
2494 1602001 £68'F6 702 206 §42°9.0%% 988'5¥1 628'0£6 SUONEISIC PUB BOUBUSIUEN
tach H80'G zZT) ¥98'¢ 0£4'9 002 0£0'0 [enely,
009°01 01+'899 0 OLF'899 010'849 6Z2'84 G8Z'009 syjeusq svfoldwiz
FLLOE 9££'801L'Z 0 9888017 o5¥ P12 216°Z9¢ Zes'18l'L SOVINISS [BUOSIDY
Swis1sAg uoneunoju] uawmabeuey
ZZ6°98F GEO'LGLS Slc eel 0Z7 606'9 155'881°g (€629} 01£'652'8
3} 0 0 0 0 (raress) PO 6S.L FETNEEE
vz 064269 Z09°'66 886'Z6G ¥1.9269 £20'902 L6G'03Y fepno feyden
5£9 (0325 0 ove 5.8 0 Gi6 sabieyd Ui
0LL’eLy GREZLLY £19'Z69 ZLL6LP'e §51'62G'y 967° 159 158'488'¢ sUolesde pue souBUSUIBIY
) €€ 0 €e £g £e o [aABI)
9z1'68 91£'878 0 oLe'szs ZPr'ees {eev'osl) G/8'680'L sysusq safoldwz
L9864 LIE'890°T 0 L2£'890°'2 8££'940°2 082°LY 25970 $30IAISS [BUOSIBd
sueciiesadg Buiping
630°9Z1 625'€0R'Z 006 8LE 6Z0°58F'Z BLO'6E6T 698'GE BY6'£68'Z
] ) 0 0 0 (zZ1s'cie) ZLGELE EEINEEEN
0¥ il £88'/61 205, §68'142 000°'2¢1 GGRPEL Repng |epden
8L §59°'870'L 219021 260'8Z6 BER'EOL'E La'2el 866°666 suoneiado pue soueusilely
166’ £25'98¢ 0 125'96E 81520V (09g°2L) gl8'0ey syjauaq 2oAo|dwg
baady 298'980'1 0 796'980°1 Q0¥ LB0 L 00z'z9 902'6Z¢°L SAVIAIBS [RUOSIBY
S9IIAIBG IANENSIUNUDY
6.V Cy zLL'867 L 62802 CPERIY L LG9'ZPG Y £88' LY 694005}
i} 0 0 0 0 (Y RTIN) LG 'GPl SOAISSOY
287’1 284zl £60'S 689'/ ¥90'pL £0L°2 ReToge) Repng jepnden
9 bl 0 Feyl 0GY'L (o08) 052’ safiieysd euio
felorarard LOE'PS oLz L Ghl'cs 185'901 9z5'0¢ £209/ suolessdo pue sausuSuIBI
LGy £98'8T 00L'¢ £92'62 8L9'ce (zzg) ObL'vre [enei]
06901 Z0'EYE 0zZr'L Z99'LYE Z11'ESE 9z6'0v AFY'ZLE syyeusq sakadwiz
FLG'Y $ oegg'BE0't  $ 0 g 9£9'320°L $ 0G1'8804 $ 0ov'0LL 052226 SIDIAISS [BUOSISG
SIoUOISSIIULIOD
INTWNYIACD TYHIANTD
{lapun) [EG SSoUBIGUINOLY EENGIVERTE] ej0). sjusunsnipy Hmmvzm 9 o | abed
JE=T ) 18N 2 sjuawsjddng jeuBbng
SOUBLIEA, SUOTENOoIa0Y

8002 '0¢ aung papusa 129k 3y} 1oy

plemuo Aises soueiquinaua Jesh Joud sapnioug - AjAnoyucnound Ag -suocneudoiddy jo sinpausg

pund |elsusn



¥25'S § 96241 $ 0 95211 g 08741 $ 0 08241
L2l b 0 0 1245 0 1z EEINELE
Leg't 822'¢C 0 6227 019'¢ ] 018'e suopelado pue soUBUSIUIEN
XA 0 0 0 1974 ] £¥Z [@ABIL
£z2 149 0 449 008 0 006 spyauaq sshodwg
0561 052'g 0 058°¢ 00801 0 008°0% S2IMISS |BUCSIR]
pieog asI0xX]
A {SSELLE 109721 9G6'386°Z 711 78R LEZ L5E £FPGEEG'E
955°23¢ [} 0 0 955°Z8¢% (965" /71) ¥GG0ES SaAISSEY
2ie'e o 0 0 z1Z'e (gzz'sl) 008'22 Aegno euded
P68t LE6'0GE' L 0 116062 L §50°081'L Li6'9 PRO'BTY L sableyd JaYlo
G0E'ZEL Pl '3ES' LZS'E0L LLL'9EG"L BP0 1AL G289 /by AR TA SuopeIsdo pug SouBUBIUEN
oLt 09% 0 09l 0.2 0 042 fenel L
0£8°48 AN N A PIBLE 89°10Z 215182 [Relegsse LL6'ieT siyousq safojdws
JUDLLLLIDADE) jRlalan
057Gy 218'¢09 098’ or6 /66 Z81'2%9 (3 £0°16) ¥
girel 0 0 0 2LY'EL (921709} ¥PSEL EINEEEN
B69'Z 1GLy 0 151 0s8'c 0G4 004 Aepno j2nde)
7922 9z£'¢z SFL'E L8G'6L 885'6Z {S1g'1L) £0Z°LE suofelads pue sousuSURYY
1687 8.4'¢ Lz 858'2 941G {P0z'c) 08E'8 UL
£65'6Z LG L57L 0 LELBYE iV {c16°1) £59°9L) syyeusq sakodwz
L S0¥'GZY 0 GOv'GZy SO¥'GTr {g2e'sl) 87400 S90IAIDS [2U0SI9d
pieogq 19Bpng
ZrvhlL S0¥ PO L 095°GS 9F8'8¥S'L k0678 ¢ IR 16 YA
0 0 0 ) 0 (gi572iL) /5211 SBAIBSY
865 z59°/¢ £LL°08 B£6'0 0g9'es 0 069°8¢ Aepngy fenden
8821 £0e'00L 0 £0£'00t 996211 81£'50L 059°' L safileyd 810
oLg'an 055'62¢ FAZ08 74 £02'50¢ 0oL'8LY ¥ee'LE 9£Z°98¢ sucReIado pue scususuEK
04T 7901 00% £HL0L 062°¢) 0089 066'0 pazll
LLL'EL $£.'002 0 5£/2°992 906642 Svi'ol L9L'e9Z sjauaq saAodul
£80'9Z £25'656 v £26°656 9L9'636 080'601 955648 SBONIBS jBUOSIS]
pigog UoHIS| 3
ZFEBOC 585'081 EVR'¥ G511 DEB'GSS {ovG'y) 9.¥'086
0 0 ) ) 0 {909'6%) 90965 EETNEEEN
000G 85 o] 86t 85¥'G (81} LIPS Aepng jepdesd
0067 0 ] o] 0082 0 0052 sebleys BUlO
SL8'C £i¥'S 61 086'y 8876 185 £04'8 SUOIRIBC0 PUB BDUBUDIUIRIY
£09'Z BLL'sy 0SE'Y 685'0F A WA {5t2) 1818y [BreLy
Z65'y gLe'6eL ] 8LE°GEL 0/9'654 {gzz'e) £60'crL spsuaq aakoldwg
Zi8'06¢ s $ 0 0L¥'see $ Z18'06% §  99B'CS 906'962 SOTIMSS |BUOSIAd
Joyoedsu| Ajunon
(d2puny) 210} EERTEITHE] salnypuadxy el sjuswisnipy Jebpng
19A0 BN 2 sjuawsddng eubu0
SIUBLIBA SUONENGOIAAY

g o 7 obed

|102



103 |

L86°4L S BGSBE S 004 $  Z65'z8 $ 0%5'28 $  (JzZ0'6y) $  jo6'z
0 ¢ 0 0 0 (0P8'S} 0¥8's SEINECEN]
188's 1oLl 2L0'F 6082 89711 (0002} 89Z°%Z fegno jedes
PBOZE 811°82 GEB'Z 3T 2LE 0V {4817 6G¥'ZF suopelado pue sousuS)UIEN
Japuajag Jgnd
005’8 116652 906°Li L1O'3PE LIV'692 [ L4Y'69E
0 0 0 0 0 (005 +2) 005z anasy
005'8 LIB'6ST 906°LL LIO'8YE LIV'69Z 005'vZ LIBPPE sucgeladQ pue souBUBILIE
Asulony 301381Q
16480} 0 0 0 1027801 1027301 0
1047801 0 0 0 102801 L0730k 0 EYNEEEY]
XBj 9S8I0X3 020B(O]
8£8°L9 620 9Pr'Z £G6'C 8L0'CPPE A98°406¢ [ Y65 teY'E
0 0 3] 0 0 {ZLEgpe} zZle'ere EEINEEENY
95E'GL 68€°¢ 0 68ET SyiLL (000'ss) SHLTEL fepno ende)
$S0'0L 008'2S £G6'Z L¥E'6Y $68°Z9 L18'6T LIVIE suoneiado pue soueusLIR
106°2 668'9 0] 668°9 C08'6 000's 008'% [orel]
166 £11'629 0 £11'62% 0LL'629 96E'9 L2220 spauaq svkoidug
085'6¢ 89/°895.°4 0] 892'854°L 2628841 ZLe'62E 9¥5' 95T L SB3IAISS |2U0SISY
a1y Aunon
2/8'61E 0C4'216'¢ 6816 L6 Z96'E 209'982'v ¥68'1PZ 804 0F0'F
0 0 ) 0 ] (0F0'S9¢} 0F0'GeE SarIB5aY
878'901 999'209 0 209°208 967°69. 806" 188 188188 Aepno jepden
ZEO'Gh SFF'GSE 9382 z90'8re 080°1L0¢ 2.2'99 808'vET SUCIEISCO pUR BoUBUSIUIEH
061’2 £28'6¢ £0v'E AR cL0Zk 000'2Z £10'02 EITTR
86¢ 131 2£0'684 0 zZeo'ses 0P 988 {045°2¢) 000'v¥Z8 sjysuaq sakoidw
¥z 68546822 0 6SL'682'C £82°692' £Z8'cs) 096°GLL'Z SOVIAIDS fRUOSIEd
1055358y
£/EG8 L9148 ] L9249 7L0'C96 (02671.42) 66 72T |
0 0 0 ) 0 (88%'£Z)) B6¥'EL1 EEYSEEE
0 0 0 ¢} 0 (220'6) L80'G safilzyo soi0
o] PEF'SGE 0 YEF'GEE ¥6¥'6G¢ 0 PBY'55E suclelsdo pue soususiLEK
0 008’y 0 008’y 008'% 0 008y [ones ]
90G6°6¢ LG6°LEL 0 iG6'181 CoF'LiL {0av'es) CI6'vre syjeuaq sakaduz
198°6¥ $ 06£'68¢ s 0 g 0BE'GRE S ISTLEY $  (¥66'69) $ LGT 05 SO0IAISS [2UOSIad
dalnseal)
(1apun) 10| SAOLEIqUINDUY SR Mipusdxg B30} siuaunsnipy 1Bbpng 9 jo ¢ abed
1BA0 13N 2 Sjusaddng jeuiblzQ
DOUBLIEA SUCIERdoIaay




589'8E 3 S¥6'879'8 3 L6906 vGE'ZZ9'8 3 $E9LLLE g 0.8'Gee +9.°16£'Q Asjeg Sijqnd g0l
0 0 3} 0 g (G89°808) 58908 EEINERE
0 Z228'vL 0 ZZe 8L ZTEPRE (z9) ¥8E'¥a1L Aepno [guded
0 SCY68L 0 SZr'68. GZ¥'68L GZ6'GZE 005'co¥ safiieyo JayiQ
0g8L'LL ge0'sey £69'CE e LoV 6.8'9vF (Z1%'8) LEZ'G5% suonesado pue aoueuBIUE Y
0 002'L 0 002" slor 0 00z’ [2ABLL
LLP'6 G6Y'240'T 000°€T SS¥ySE0'C 998'980'Z 09€'96 905’066 ¢ sjjeuaq ssAodwz
267 AL ¥05'G81'S 0 yOS'GRL'G zZ00'€0z's PriGLL 8528V’ Y S3DIAISE [BUOSIS
Jusyg
AL3SVYS OIdnd
¥9.%80°L SyLLiE ¥GL'G02°2 P08 PP 'GE ZLE88L VY (gzs9lee) 6E0°CLG LY JUBLULLIBAOD) |etatag) |ejof
ZLL'BSB'E 0 0 0 Z11'856°E (Z/26LZ D) ¥86'8/1°8
ZLLBSE'E 0 0 0 FATN T (8¢1'308°¢] (AN Y] SIAI9SEY
0 0 0 0 0 {Pre'iL) A ZAAR Aepno jepded
wawabeuepy ysen
o] gr9’ 168 GZ8 APS £ZQ'E0E 2ro'L58 910’ 7£9'8v8
0 g 0 0 0 (00G'Ly) 005 4 ¥ sanlasay
G 95L'E 0 982’ 961°¢ 0 9G.'¢ fegno Epded
o 268198 SER'LVG 480°'00¢ Z68'.¥8 ALG'vy 9/£'c08 SUCHEISAO pUB SOUBUBILIEIN
pny
o 000'584 0 000'682 000°684 0 000S8.
& g 0 0 0 (005’84 0058 sanlasay
o 000'682 0 000'G8L 000°684 00G'gL 00%'90.4 sableys 120
DOINI
GOE L0F Q0¥'526'S 0 00¥'G26'S §92'9Z¢'9 (£r2708) 20S'/GE'g
3} 0 0 0 0 {154'688) 1GL'GE9 SBAIBSaY
09% O¥T'e 0 ovzZ'e 0042 0 00L'e suoljelado pue aoueUSIUENY
LET'C 68L'G 4] 68.L'G 020'9 000°4 oeo's [BAR1}
0£6'Gy £05°509'L 0 £05'609°) EEV'LGY" L 86Z°9L G21'GIS L syyeusq ssholdwz
PrL2SE $  eegLE'Y $ 0 298'LIe'Y g L9799’y $  054°.T§ LO2°9CL'Y $B0INBS [BUOSIBd
}e|g uhaed
{1opuny) 12104 SSIURIGUINDUT] SaIN)IPUSEX] [B10]. swsLnsnipy 189604 g 40 ¢ abed
1PA0D BN » siswe|ddng eubuo
BOUBLIBA SuonendoIaay

| 104



105 |

sz ez % 1¥5'09Z°9 8 2e5'8s GZ0'Z02'9 $ LBLLE6Y'9 {6.9'7.2) 9.7'99.'9 aielspy pue yjjeaH |gjol
1G9'CH L25zeL'L £0L'LE Per 104 8/1'8Z2'L (€18'vE) L6629Z'L
GS9'Zl 0 4] 0 5592l 0807201} SELELL sealasay
£r0'g £4L0F 06Z'1Z 86l alLg'ay 0g0'sz 96L'c2 Rejno pudes
£EE'PY LGL bl Y2874 FAR I PEY' 20T 198'84 £C9'625 sableyo 1sylo
£’z iy ) 696'% 694°69 18694 ¥58'G1L 121749 suoljelsdo pue soUBLAIELY
0 0 0 0 Q (021°1) OLL'L [enely
iy'e ZRLPET 0 Z8LvET £61'862 {r16'07) 194°'v92 syeusq sako/dws
996'f ££0'8€9 0 ££0'859 6E0'EP9 {rzs'B1) £94°299 $S0IAISS [BUOSIBd
SIDIAIDG |BID0G
208'Le I TAA s #0902 £99°1.28'% 698'€/8' ¥ (1056'682) 0.€'601°S
0 0 0 ¢ 0 (CEYTTS) ov6 861 SoAlaSRY
Sil 868'vL 0 96617/ £L1'GL 8L'9z 9/6'8y Aepno jeyde)
0 0 G G 0 (8rg'eLe) B¥SELE sebBreyo soyi0
Gye'elL zzl'ese 69611 £€2°942 192208 (961 1) £V ELE suoyesado pue asuzuIUIEN
FrAN ZE6'09 GLo9'g 21£°8G BS0°0L ¥E9'E GZ¥'e8 ned |
gry's CEL'LAL'L ¢ 0L LLL L 9.59LL°L {p99'00) OyZ'ere’L syauag avkodwiz
60£'6 Sgr'ore’e 0 S8 OvE'e P6L6YZ'E E8B'129 LL8'7E9'T $80IAIBS jeU0SIad
a|luaAng
LBB'EDL £61°58¢2 5180 9£6'842 0569 [CER) SiLPBE
880'6L €] [ 0 96061 {rez'se) 0EEPS $9AlBSaY
€8 246°) 0EY'L L8 000't 009°L 0 Aepno eyden
51£°)8 $86'69 000'G G96°'%9 00€'LS1 00€'02 000'LEL sabileyo 1sui0
96¢ L8’ 115 29F'G £rL'o {605°1) 2892 sucijelado pue sausUSLIE
108 0BL'6S 0 061°GS 16965 GZL'e ZLG'ES sjyyauaq sakoidwy
00LE $ ¥lLT'ESL $ 0 PLZ'EsL FLE'GSE £5e's 19G° 7L SSVUAISS BUOSIB
Aoruneyd
FHVSIAM GNY HLTVIH
(14=pun) [EGTR SOOUBIqLINOUT salnjipuadxs [EIG sjuswsnipy 1ebpng g o g obed
18A0D BN % sjuswsiddng rewBug
SIUBLIBA SUONEII00I00Y




ZEY'ZE0'L $ 2/9'9€185  $ £99°€9¥°2 g 12780095 % 0.1'628'69 (660'222°¢) $ 89Z'050°69 pung jeisusg jejop
220°88 904 254 8¥L'9E 585912 528058 16592 PEZ vZ3
90L'L 0 0 0 90L°1 (1G9°¢ ) L6E7Lg SOAIDTRY
09% P2 LL 008'ZE la2A4 POLLL 266'.9 Z5L°6 Kepno [epded
000'0L 0 0 0 000’01 0 00001 safiieyo 1Bylo
Zse'le Y667 6¥E'E GBS Or 98Ti4 188'se SOV LY suoljeisdo pue soueusiLiE)y
DEL'L 0442 0 0LLT 005y 0 008"y jonell
2Li8'vy civ vl 0 CIV iV LGEZ61 (818'22Z1) 0.2°02¢€ syjeusy sakodwy
196'G 20E°GLy 0 L0€°GLY 89¢'L8¥ 8LE'0EL 0%6°08¢ SAUMDS |elOsiad
1abpng Aemuybiy
SAYMHOIH ¥ SAYOY
9€9'y £9€'89y ¥lLe'az CI0TPY £en'ely {££92) 959’6y uofjeonp3 [ejop
£8L°¢ Z6v'esy ¥lLE'92 8.1°9¢F SL9'GGY {/2£°7) Z200°85y
0 0 0 0 0 (£29°CY) CLQZY seABsTY
GELe £9¢'981 G £99'081 866'984 86662 000651 safueyn saw0
Pee 9L8'LL 962°¢2 0Z29'%S 05Z'8L (zom Z99'8L suCieado pue souBUSLIRY
¥LS €50'GE 8Lo'E GE0'ZE £96'G¢ {1eLa) 8658 [eAB1]
0 Z89'cE ¢ 769'cZ 269°¢Z (Lez'2) £86'0¢ sijausq askoldui
0 891621 ¢ 291621 891'62% zi1'0Z 966'801 SVIAISS [BUOSISY
Ugisua:IX3y1 NSO
£GP L S68'Gl 0 SA8'GL areLlL {90¢) Y89 /L1
0 0 0 0 0 (CEYN) 99"t SaIasSY
$45 GrAN 0 6ZL'L 2041 09z Srr'L sjyouaqg sakoiduy
848 99.'F4 0 994yl SP9'Sl 00z’ Spr'vl SODIAISS |BUOSIad
s$pJenc jooysg
NOILYONa3
990'6eZ £15198' Y €808 L9084V 66060 0gyvlL 660'220°G uohiealday pue amng [eloy
900'GEE £16'198'y L£8°08 819084 Y 5.5'060'G 0gy'vi 660'280°G
0 0 0 0 0 (PLE¥6T) PLE'vEY sorlasey
006'Z LLGE c08'le plLE'ES £10'8L PiG'Op £05°1LE Aepng |eydes
9 £TE'681 peQ'as 68T 0EL 18£'631 Lee'Le 9G¥ 201 sucgelsd(y pue souBUBUIEIN
058'98 2C¥' 02T 0 8E¥'0ZT L 887 1081 {1p608L) BT EEY L spjauag sshojdwa
Z5T'St) g SES'QLE'E $ 0 3 ge9'0.8’e g 188125 06Z'L1LS % 16G°010°€ SSVIAIFS [BUCSIR
syled
NOILYIHO3IH GNY I3HNLND
(lapun) 1210 SAOURIqUINJUT sampusdxy 2101 SJUBUESNIPY 18bpng g jo g abed
BAD 18N 2 sjuswAddng feuibliy

BOUBLIEA

StonEndoIa0y

| 106



TULSA COUNTY , OKLAHOMA

VISUAL INSPECTION FUND

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Eor the Year ended June 30, 2008

FUND 12

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE (AS OF JULY 1, 2007)

REVENUE:
Visual inspection Fees
Estopped Warrants

Total Revenue:

EXPENDITURES:
Salaries

Employee Benefits
Travel

Qperating Expenditures

Total Expenditures:

Excess revenues and beginning fund balance
over (under) expenditures, budgetary basis

Other Financing Souwrces (uses):
Transfers in:
Transfers Qut:

Totat Cther Financing Sources {uses):

Adjustments to conform with GAAP:
Ad valorem taxes receivabie

Ending Fund Balance, GAAP basis

Criginal and Final
Budgeted
Amounts

$0

2,267,000

2,267,000

1,457,000
505,400
55,000
249,600

2,267,000

Actuat Amounts

$4,155

2,266,910
78

2,266,288

1,471,967
513,793
45,068
186,011

2,217,739

53,404

1,000,000
-1,024,065

-24,065

$29.339

Variance with
Final Budget,
over f{under)

54,155

78

-12

-14,967

-8,393

9,032

63,589

49,261

53,404
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TULSA COUNTY , OKLAHCMA
JUVENILE DETENTION FUND

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Baiance - Budget and Actual
For the Year ended June 30, 2008

108

FUND 15

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE (AS OF JULY 1, 2007}

REVENUE:

State Grants

Federal Granls

Cily and County Geanls
Miscellaneous Reimbursemenls
Employee nsurance

Juvenile Probation Fees
Estepped Warrants

Refunds

Total Revenue:
TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENDITURES:

Salaries

Employze Benefils
Travel

Operating Expenditures
Other Charges

Capital Outlay

Total Expendilures:

Excess revenues and beginning fund batance
over {under} expendilures, budgetary basis
QOlher Financing Sources (uses)
Trangfers In:
Transfers Qut:
Tolal Other Financing Sources {Uses):

Adjusiments 1o conform with GAAP:
Ad valorem taxes receivable

Ending Fund Balance, GAAP basis

Criginal and Final
Budgeted Amounts

$1,063.243

2,157,043
254,830
57,440

2,472,513

2,168,004
924,329
700
380,373
8200
44,150

3,525,756

Aclual Amounts

$986,758

2,760,926
267,963
38,958
270,600
11

3230

813

179

3,242 760

1,874,062
G24,677
100
211,985
o
137,680

2847754

1,480,764

436,598
416,934

19,664

$1.500.428

Variance wilh Final

Budget, over funder)

567,485

503,883
13,182
-18,502
270,600
111

30

813

179

870,247

293,942
299,812
600
168388
8,200
-92 940

678,002

1,480,764



TULSA COUNTY, OKLAHOMA

PARK FUND

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year ended June 30, 2008

FUND 26

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE (AS OF JULY 1, 2007)

REVENUE:
State and Federal Granls
Estopped Warrants
Golf Green Fees
Gall Surcharge
Court Fees
Golf Cart rentals
Restauranl Receipls
Swimning Receipts
Soltball Fees
Concession & Commissions
Misc Revenue

Totat Revenue:
EXPENDITURES:

Salaries

Employes Benefits
Travel

Operaling Expendilures
Oler Charges

Capilal Quilay

Tolat Expenditures:

Excess revenues and beginhing lund balance
aver (under) expenditures, budgelary basis

Cther Finanging Sources (uses):
Transfers In.

Translers Oul:

Total Other Financing Scurces (uses):

Adjustments (o conform wilh GAAP:
Ad valorem taxes receivable

Ending Fund Balance, GAAP basis

Criginal and Final
Budgeted Amounls

$0

0

0
2,000,000
200.000
32,000
160,000
320,000
60,000
50,000
125,000
150,000

3,087,000

225,000
45,096
2,000
2.531,405
283,500

G

3.087,000

Actual Amounts

$1,137.023

306,175
2,638
1574,696
202,529
30.492
159,388
466,507
69,256
42,850
93,132
206,001

3,154,545

¢

[

0
2,430,429
281427
37,638

2,749,794

1,541,774

106,658
23699

82,859

$1,624 733

Variange with Final

Budgyel, over f{lunder)

$1,137.028

308,175
2,639
~425,404
2,629
-1.,508
9,368
146,587
9,256
-7.050
-31,668
58,801

225,000
45,005
2,000
100,976
2,073
-37.838

337,206

1,541,774

19



Tuisa County, Oklahoma

110

Debt Service Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2008

Beginning fund balance, budgetary basis

Revenues:
Ad valorem taxes
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Debt service
Principal
Judgment Principal
Judgment interest
Total expenditures

Excess revenues and beginning fund balance
over (under) expenditures, budgetary basis

Adjustments to conform with GAAP:
Ad valorem taxes receivable

Ending fund balance, GAAP basis

Variance with

Original and Final Budget
Final Budgeted Actuai Over
Amounts Amounts {Under)
85,165 § 85,165 § 0
4,959 82,072 57,113
4,959 62,072 57,113
75,500 75,500 0
14,624 14,624 0
90,124 90,124 0
0 57,113 § 57,113
654
57,767



A% B

iduciary Fund
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Tulsa County, Oklahoma
Fioancial Funds
June 30, 2008

Fiduciary Funds are used (o report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and which
therefore cannot be used to support the County’s own programs.

Pension Trust Fund ~ Accounts for the accumulation of resources for pension benefit payments
to qualified County employees and the payment of expenses associated therewith.

Agency Funds — Accounts for assets held by Tulsa County in a pureiy custodial capacity. These
include ad valorem taxes and other revenues collected by the Tulsa County Treasurer for various
cities and towns, school districts, and other agencies within Tulsa County.
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Tulsa County, Oklahoma

All Agency Funds

Combining Statement of Changes In Asset and Liabilities
For the year ended June 30, 2008

Schools

Assets:
Cash and investments
Ad valorem receivable
Total assets

Liabilities:
Due to other taxing units
Total liabilities

Cities and Towns

Assets:
Cash and investments
Ad valorem receivable
Total assets

Liabilities:
Due to other taxing units
Total liabilities
Official Depository

Assets:
Cash and invesiments
Total assets

Liabilities:
Due to cthers
Total liabilities

City-County Library

Assets:
Cash and investments
Ad valorem receivable
Total Assets

Liabilities:
Due to other taxing units
Total Liabilities

=« €4

& & eH

o S

Balance
711107

2,038,697
13,994,420

16,033,117

16,033,117

16,033,117

546,048
2,616,840

3,162,898

3,162,898

3,162,898

10,846,315

10,846,315

10,846,315

10,846,315

28,746,623
937,846

29,684,489

29,684 469

20,684,469

page 10f 2

Balance
6/30/08

Additions Deductions
405,232,890 § 405,149,514 3 2,122,073
15,378,456 13,994,420 15,378,456
420,611,346 $ 419,143,934 $ 17,500,529
420,611,346 415,143,934 $ 17,500,529
420,611,346 $ 419,143,934 $ 17,500,529
58,821,151 58,700,368 3 657,832
1,837,237 2,616,849 1,837,237
60,658,388 5 61,326,217 3 2,495,069
60,658,388 $ 61,326,217 % 2,495,069
60,658,388 $ 61,326,217 % 2,495,069
82,885,012 80,167,442 $ 13,563,885
82,885,012 $ 80,167,442 $ 13,563,885
82,885,012 $ B0,167.442 § 13,563,885
82,885,012 $ 80,167 442 $ 13,563,885
38,080,676 36,063,082 $ 30,764,210
1,010,521 937,846 1,010,524
39,091,197 $ 37,000,935 $ 31,774,731
39,091,197 37,000,935 31,774,731
39,091,197 $ 37,000,935 § 31,774,731
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Tulsa County, Oklahoma

Al Agency Funds page 2 of 2
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
For the year ended June 30, 2008

Balance Balance
THi07 Additions Deductions 06/30/08
Unapportioned Receipts
Assets:
Cash and investments $ 18,461,067 (1,484,145) 12,105,241 $ 4,871,681
Total Assets $ 18,461,067 $ (1,484,145) $ 12,105,241 $ 4,871,681
Liabilities:
Due to other taxing units 18,461,067 (1,484,145) 12,105,241 4,871,681
Total Liabitities & 18,461,087 $ (1,484,145) $ 12,105,241 $ 4,871,681
Other Agencies
Assets.
Cash and investments % 1,080,723 120,666,470 120,014,731 % 1,732,402
Total Assets g 1,080,723 $ 120,666,470 $ 120,014,791 3 1,732,402
Liabilities:
Due o others 1,080,723 120,666,470 120,014,791 1,732,402
Total Liabilities $ 1,080,723 § 120,666,470 $ 120,014,791 $ 1,732,402
Total All Agencies
Assets:
Cash and investments $ 61,719,474 $ 704,202,054 $ 712,209,445 $ 53,712,083
Ad valorem receivable 17,549,115 18,226,214 17,549,115 18,226,214
Total Assets $ 79,268,589 $ 722,428,268 $ 729,758,560 $ 71,938,297
Liabilities:
Due to other taxing units 67,341,551 518,876,786 529,576,327 56,642,010
Due to others 11,927,038 203,651,482 200,182,233 15,298,287
Total Liabilities $ 79,268,589 $ 722,428,268 § 729,758,56C $ 71,938,207

Note: During fiscal year ended 6/30/08, there was a reconfiguration of the groups.
The beginning balances remained the same in total.
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Tulsa County, Oklahoma

Capital Assets Used in Operation of Governmental Funds

Comparative Schedules by Source
June 30, 2008 and 2007

2008
Governmental funds capital assets

Land $ 21,738,005
Buildings 30,061,145
Machinery and equipment 27,514,108
Infrastructure 89,172,459
Construction in progress 18,163,975

Total governmental funds capital assets $ 186,649,783

2007

$ 19,258,156
30,040,560
26,532,071
81,708,250

21,379,709

$ 178,919,745
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For the Year Ended June 30, 2008



Statistical Section

This part of Tulsa County’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents detailed
information as a way to help understand the information in the financial statements, note
disclosures, and required supplementary information and what is says about the County’s overall
financial health.

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the government’s
financial performance and financial position have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the County’s most significant
revenues sources, ad valorem and sales taxes,

Debt Capacity
These schedules present schedules that help the reader evaluate the affordability of the County’s
current level of outstanding debt and the County’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the
environment within which the County’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the
mformation in the County’s financial report relates to the services the County provides and the
activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports for the relevant year. The County implemented GASB
Statement 34 in 2002; schedules presenting government-wide information begin with that year.
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Year

2008
2007
2006
2005
2004
2003
2002

Tulsa County, Oklahoma

Governmental Activities - Tax Revenues by Source

(accrual basis of accounting)

L.ast Seven Years

Property Sales Use
Tax Tax Tax Total

49,482.719 % 96,112,765 § 6,624,221 152,219,705
45,864,389 90,933,560 6,626,032 143,423,981
45,909,403 86,610,499 5,853,841 138,373,743
44,471,995 79,689,715 5,554,851 129,716,561
43,075,236 51,720,361 2,774,402 97,569,999
46,490,278 29,888,615 0 76,379,893
45,989,167 23,021,186 0 69,010,353

Note: Data not available for previous years.
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Year

2008
2007
2006
2005
2004
2003
2002

Note: Data not available for previous years.

Tulsa County, Oklahoma

General Governmental Tax Revenues hy Source

Last Seven Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

Property Sales
Tax Tax

47,896,494 % 96,112,765
44,273,087 90,933,560
44,503,356 86,610,499
41,749,218 79,689,715
41,025,713 51,720,361
43,331,731 29,889,615
42,646,177 23,021,186

Use
Tax Total
6,624,221 150,633,480
6,626,032 141,832,679
5,853,841 136,967,696
5,554,851 126,993,784
2,774,402 95,520,476
0 73,221,346
0 65,667,363
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Tulsa County, Okiahoma
Property Tax Levies and Collections,
L.ast Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Collected within the
Year Taxes Levied Fiscal Year of the Levy Collections Total Collections to Date
Ended for the Percentage  in Subsequent Percentage
June 30, Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Years Amount of Levy
2008 $56,063,597 $53,731,697 95.84% $0 $53,731,697 95.84%
2007 53,086,779 49,974,723 94.17% 2,382,518 52,357,241 98.66%
2006 51,778,308 48,373,393 93.42% 2,194,299 50,567,692 97.66%
2005 49,483,871 46,291,963 93.55% 2,406,544 48,698,507 98.41%
2004 48,670,887 46,153,357 94.83% 1,576,801 47,730,158 98.07%
2003 50,865,555 48,350,094 95.05% 1,763,472 50,113,566 98.52%
2002 49,781,014 48,303,073 97.03% 1,216,816 49,519,889 99.48%
2001 43,549,016 42445322 97.47% 891,454 43,336,776 99.51%
2000 41,993,076 41,053,753 97.76% 838,431 41,892,184 99.76%
1999 34,395,609 32,628,471 97.77% 734,100 34,362,571 99.90%

Source: Tulsa County Treasurer's Records
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Tuisa County, Oklahoma
Direct and Overtapping Sales Tax Rates
Last Ten Years

Tulsa City of State of
Year County Tulsa Oklahoma
2008 1.02% 3.00% 4.50%
2007 1.02% 2.00% 4.50%
2006 1.02% 3.00% 4.50%
2005 1.02% 3.00% 4.50%
2004 1.02% 3.00% 4.50%
2003 0.42% 3.00% 4,50%
2002 0.42% 3.00% 4.50%
2001 0.42% 3.00% 4.50%
2000 0.42% 3.00% 4.50%
1999 0.42% 3.00% 4.50%
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Tulsa County, Oklahoma

Computation of Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt

June 30, 2008

Direct Debt:
Tulsa County
Total Direct Debt:

Overlapping Debt:
School Disfricts:

#1 - Tulsa

#2 - Sand Springs

#3 - Broken Arrow

#4 - Bixby

#5 - Jenks

#6 - Collinsville

#7 - Skiatook

#8 - Sperry

#9 ~ Union

#10 - Berryhili

#11 - Owasso

#12 - Glenpool

#13 - Liberty

#14 - Keystone
Total School Districts

Cities:
Tulsa
Jenks
Glenpool
Broken Arrow
Bixby
Sand Springs
Total Cities:

Total Overlapping Debt:

Total Direct and Overlapping
Bonded Debt:

Net
Indebtedness (1)

<

Percentage
Applicable To
Tuisa County {2)

Amount
Applicable To
Tulsa County

145,450,000
13,480,000
65,125,000
24,500,000
65,900,000

3,290,000
3,235,000
1,175,000
58,550,000
810,000
23,800,000
3,290,000
1,140,000
180,000

409,925,000

316,430,000
21,910,000
495,000
65,420,000
24,075,000
14,630,000

442,960,000

862,885,000

862,885,000

100.00%

98.06%
95.77%
71.69%
100.00%
98.36%
83.50%
23.03%
53.45%
100.60%
100.00%
80.37%
100.00%
56.92%
68.06%

99.25%
100.00%
100.00%

88.67%

99.17%

97.90%

Source: Estimates of Needs and Financial Statements filed in County Clerk's office.
(1} Total general obligation bonds outstanding at June 30, 2008
{2) Percentage based on poriion of applicable government's assessed valuation which lies in Tulsa County

to total valuation of Tuisa County.

142,628,270
12,909,796
46,688,113
24,500,000
64,819,240

2,747,150
745,021
628,038

58,550,000
810,000
19,128,080

3,290,000
648,888
122,508

378,215,083

314,056,775
21,910,000
495,000
58,007,914
23,875,178
14,322,770

432,667,637

810,882,719

810,882,719
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Tulsa County, Oklahoma

Principal Employers for the City of Tulsa

Current and Past Year

2008 2007
Percentage of Total Perceniage of Total
Employer Employees Rank City Employment Employees Rank City Employment

American Airlines, In¢. 7,500 1 1.77% 8,000 1 1.78%
Tulsa Public Schools 7.000 2 1.65% 6,500 2 1.45%
Saint Francis Health System 4,500 3 1.06% 4,500 3 1.00%
Tulsa, City of 4,437 4 1.05% 4,258 4 0.95%
St. John Medical Center 2,780 5 0.65% 4,250 5 0.95%
Bank of Oklahoma, NA 2,719 8 0.64% 2,750 7 0.61%
Tulsa Community College 2,500 7 0.59% 2,200 8 0.49%
Broken Arrow Public Schools 2,300 3 0.54% 1,800 10 0.42%
Oneok 2,100 g 0.50% 3,000 6 0.67%
NORDAM Group 2,000 10 0.47% 1,600 16 0.36%
Reasor's Foods 2,000 11 0.47% 1,700 13 0.38%
Tulsa, County of 2,000 12 0.47% 2,600 9 0.45%
Unicn Public Schools 2,000 13 0.47% 1,800 12 0.40%
Spirit Aerosystems 1,875 14 0.44% 1,200 26 0.27%
Arrow Trucking Co. inc. 1,800 15 0.42% 1,200 24 0.27%
Jenks Public Schools 1,750 18 0.41% 1,000 33 0.22%
Hillcrest Medical Center 1,600 17 0.38% 1,800 11 0.40%
Alorica Inc. 1,500 18 0.35% NA N/A N/A
Direct TV 1,500 19 0.35% 1,500 16 0.33%
EDS 1,500 20 0.35% 1,500 18 (0.33%
iBM 1,400 21 0.33% 1,300 23 0.28%
Oklahoma State Univ Medicat Cente 1.400 22 0.33% 1,500 19 0.33%
Quik Trip Corporation 1,400 23 0.33% 1,200 25 0.27%
Whirlpool Corporation 1,400 24 0.33% 1,000 36 0.22%
Siate Farm insurance 1,300 25 0.31% 1,500 20 0.33%
Owasso Public Schools 1,200 28 0.28% N/A N/A NIA
University of Tuisa 1,200 27 0.28% 1,100 27 0.24%
Biue Cross/Blue Shigid 1,100 28 0.28% 1,300 22 0.28%
Dollar Thrifty Automctive 1,100 29 0.26% 1,500 17 0.33%
Warehouse Market 1,100 30 0.26% 1,100 28 0.24%
Williams Companies Inc. 1,100 31 0.28% 900 39 0.20%
AT&T 1,000 32 0.24% 1,000 30 0.22%
Avis Budget Group 1,600 33 0.24% 1,000 31 0.22%
Cherokee Casino Resort 1,000 34 0.24% 1,000 32 0.22%
zchostar 1,000 35 0.24% 1,000 37 0.22%
1C of Oklahoma 1,000 35 0.24% NIA NIA N/A
Oral Roberts University 1,000 37 0.24% 1,000 35 0.22%
Centrilift 300 38 0.21% 00 38 0.20%
Verizon(formerly MCI) 800 39 0.21% 1,700 14 0.38%
Ford Glass 800 40 0.19% N/A N/A NIA
HSBC 800 41 0.18% N/A N/A NIA
l.evel 3 Communicaticns 800 42 ¢.18% 1,000 34 0.22%
AAON Inc. 719 43 0.17% 719 40 0.16%

79,950 18.87% 74,377 16.55%

Sources: Cklahoma Depariment of Commerce
Note: Data unavailable for previous years
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Appendix of Abbreviations

{Occasionally used throughout this report)

COUNLY c1 ettt st et e s raae s na s Tulsa County, Oklahoma
FY Fiscal year (July 1 through June 30)
GAAP ... Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
GASB ..o Governmental Accounting Standards Board
GFOA...... Government Finance Officers Association of the United State & Canada
MD&A o Management Discussion & Analysis
SAGL o State Auditor and Inspector
TCCIA oo Tulsa County Criminal Justice Authority
TCERS .. Tulsa County Employees’ Retirement System
TCHEFA . Tulsa County Home Finance Authority
TCIA oot Tulsa County Industrial Authority
TCPEA ..o Tulsa County Public Facilities Authority
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